
ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
Monday, June 06, 2022 - 5:00 PM

City Hall Council Chambers - 385 Goliad St., Rockwall, TX 75087

I. Call Public Mee3ng to Order

II. Execu3ve Session.
The City of Rockwall City Council will Recess into Execu3ve Session to discuss the following ma8er
as authorized by Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code:

1. Discussion regarding possible sale/purchase/lease of real property off of State Highway 276
pursuant to Section §551.072 (Real Property) and Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney).

2. Discussion regarding Economic Development prospects, projects, and/or incen-ves pursuant to
Section 551.087 (Economic Development).

3. Discussion regarding RCH Water & Blackland Water Supply contracts, pursuant to Sec-on
§551.071 (Consultation with Attorney).

4. Discussion regarding possible sale/purchase/lease of real property off of John King Blvd pursuant
to Section §551.072 (Real Property) and Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney).

III. Adjourn Execu3ve Session

IV. Reconvene Public Mee3ng (6:00 P.M.)

V. Invoca3on and Pledge of Allegiance - Councilmember Daniels

VI. Proclama3ons / Awards / Recogni3ons

1. Presentation of Life-Saving Awards - Rockwall Police Department
Officer Kristopher Adair - Life Saving Award
Officer Zachary Stimson - Life Saving Award

2. Presentation of Life-Saving Awards - Rockwall Fire Department
Crew members of Engine 02 "A"
Crew members of Engine 03 "A"
Crew members of Ladder 02 "A"

VII. Open Forum

This is a �me for anyone to address the Council and public on any topic not already listed on the agenda or set for a
public hearing. Per Council policy, public comments should be limited to three minutes out of respect for other ci�zens'
�me. If you have a topic that warrants longer �me, please contact the City Secretary at kteague@rockwall.com to be
placed on the Agenda during the "Appointment Items" por�on of the mee�ng. This will allow your topic to be
provided sufficient �me for discussion and will permit proper no�ce to be given to the public. On topics raised during
Open Forum, please know Council is not permi(ed to respond to your comments during the mee�ng since the topic
has not been specifically listed on the agenda (the Texas Open Mee�ngs Act requires that topics of
discussion/delibera�on be posted on an agenda not less than 72 hours in advance of the Council mee�ng). This, in
part, is so that other citizens who may have the same concern may also be involved in the discussion.

VIII. Take any Ac3on as a Result of Execu3ve Session

IX. Consent Agenda

These agenda items are rou�ne/administra�ve in nature, have previously been discussed at a prior City Council
mee�ng, and/or they do not warrant Council delibera�on. If you would like to discuss one of these items, please let
the City Secretary know before the meeting starts so that you may speak during "Open Forum."

1



1. Consider approval of the minutes from the May 16, 2022, regular City Council mee-ng, and take
any action necessary.

2. Consider an ordinance gran-ng a franchise agreement to Atmos Energy Corpora-on, Mid-Tex
Division to provide natural gas service in the City of Rockwall, and take any ac-on necessary. (2nd
reading)

3. Z2022-016 - Consider a request by John and Rita Canavan for the approval of an ordinance for a
Zoning Change from a Single-Family Estate 4.0 (SFE-4.0) District to a Single-Family 1 (SF-1) District
for a five (5) acre tract of land iden-fied as Lot 5 of the Mustang Acres  Addi-on, City of Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family Estate 4.0 (SFE-4.0) District, addressed as 714 Clem
Road, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).

4. Z2022-017 - Consider a request by Kim Lemmond of Dallas Towboys for the approval of an
ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a Towing and Impound Yard on a 1.8040-acre tract of
land iden-fied as Tract 2-8 of the J. R. Johnson Survey, Abstract No. 128, City of Rockwall, Rockwall
County, Texas, zoned Heavy Commercial (HC) District, addressed as 227 Na-onal Drive, and take
any action necessary (2nd Reading).

5. Z2022-018 - Consider a request by Carlos and Crystal Solis for the approval of an ordinance for a
Specific Use Permit (SUP) for an Accessory Building on a 3.02-acre parcel of land iden-fied as Lot
7R of the Lofland Estates No. 2 Addi-on, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-
Family Estate 2.0 (SFE-2.0) District, addressed as 2914 FM-549, and take any ac-on necessary (2nd
Reading).

6. Z2022-019 - Consider a request by Fred Gans of CDC Equi-es, LLC for the approval of an ordinance
for a Zoning Change from an Agricultural (AG) District and Commercial (C) District to a Planned
Development District for limited Commercial (C) District land uses on a 13.55-acre tract of land
iden-fied as Lots 8R, 9R & 10 of the Rainbow Acres Subdivision, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County,
Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District and Commercial (C) District, addressed as 5879, 5917 &
5981 FM-3097 [Horizon Road], and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).

7. Z2022-020 - Consider a request by Hellen Byrd on behalf of Donald Valk for the approval of an
ordinance for a Zoning Change from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Light Industrial (LI) District
for a 14.78-acre tract of land iden-fied as Tracts 8 & 8-1 of the J. H. Bailey Survey, Abstract No. 34,
City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, situated within the SH-
276 Overlay (SH-276 OV) District, addressed as 4649 SH-276, and take any ac-on necessary (2nd
Reading).

8. Z2022-021 - Consider a request by Ruben Chapa for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use
Permit (SUP) for Residen$al Infill in an Established Subdivision for the purpose of construc-ng a
single-family home on a 0.1214-acre parcel of land iden-fied as Lot 22, Block B, Chandler’s
Landing, Phase 4 Addi-on, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development
District 8 (PD-8) for single-family residen-al land uses, addressed as 5405 Ranger Drive, and take
any action necessary (2nd Reading).

9. P2022-023 - Consider a request by Alison Winget of Links Construc-on on behalf of Phil Wagner of
the Rockwall Economic Development Corpora-on (REDC) for the approval of a Replat for Lots 5, 6
& 7, Block B, Rockwall Technology Park Addi-on being a 7.377-acre parcel of land iden-fied as Lot
4, Block B, Rockwall Technology Park Addi-on, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned
Light Industrial (LI) District, situated within the SH-276 Overlay (SH-276 OV) District, located at the
northwest corner of the intersec-on of SH-276 and Innova-on Drive, and take any ac-on
necessary.

10. P2022-024 - Consider a request by Bart Carroll of Carroll Consul-ng Group, Inc. on behalf of
Robbie Hale of Shepherd Place Homes, Inc. the approval of a Replat for Lot 2, Block L, Lake
Rockwall Estates East Addi-on being a 0.4215-acre tract of land iden-fied as Lots 1300 & 1301,
Block A, Rockwall Lake Proper-es Development No. 2 Addi-on, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County,
Texas, zoned Planned Development District 75 (PD-75) for Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District land uses,
addressed as 116 Nicole Drive, and take any action necessary.

2



11. P2022-026 - Consider a request by Trey Braswell of Kimley-Horn on behalf of Jarrod Yates of PS LPT
Proper-es Investors for the approval of a Replat for Lot 2, Block 1, Valk Rockwall Addi-on being a
4.264-acre parcel of land iden-fied as Lot 2, Block 1, Valk Rockwall Addi-on, City of Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, addressed as 4028 N. Goliad Street [SH-
205], and take any action necessary.

12. Consider a resolu-on suspending the June 17, 2022 effec-ve date of Oncor Electric Delivery
Company’s requested rate change, approving coopera-on with the Steering CommiMee of Ci-es
served by Oncor to evaluate the filing, to nego-ate with Oncor on the City’s behalf, and take any
action necessary.

13. Consider approval of a water reloca-on located at 105 South Hampton Drive in the amount of
$62,121.00 performed by Double R U-li-es, Inc., to be funded out of the Water and Sewer Fund,
Wastewater Operations Budget, and take any action necessary.

14. Consider approval of the construc-on contract for IH-30 Water Line Crossings Project and
authorize the City Manager to execute a construc-on contract with Wilson Contractor Services,
LLC, in the amount of $1,140,072.61, and take any action necessary.

15. Consider awarding a bid to C & M Steel for the construc-on of new Equipment Covers at the
Service Center for $224,422.92, approve addi-onal funds of $30,000 from General Fund Reserves
and authorize the City Manager to execute a contract for this job and take any action necessary.

16. Consider approval of an emergency repair of the sanitary sewer liP sta-on located at 905 Williams
Street (State Highway 66) in the amount of $83,750.00 performed by ConNanCo, LLC to be funded
out of the Water and Sewer Fund, Wastewater Operations Budget, and take any action necessary.

17. Consider approval of a recommenda-on from the Hotel Occupancy Tax (HOT) SubcommiMee
regarding funding for the Ski Nau-que’s Annual event ($12,715) and the Oasis Pickleball
Tournament ($20,500), and take any action necessary.

X. Appointment Items

1. Appointment with Municipal Court Judge, MaMhew ScoM to hear briefing on Rockwall Municipal
Court's Annual Report, and take any action necessary.

XI. Ac3on Items

If your comments are regarding an agenda item below, you are asked to wait un�l that par�cular agenda item is up
for discussion, and the Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem will call you forth to the podium to hear your comments (please limit
to 3 minutes or less). This allows for all public comments to be grouped with each specific agenda item for the Council
to consider, and they are then easily referenced in meeting recordings.

1. H2022-004 - Discuss and consider a request by Tim Herriage appealing a decision by the Historic
Preserva-on Advisory Board (HPAB) concerning the denial of a Cer-ficate of Appropriateness
(COA) for a High Contribu$ng Property being a 0.7096-acre parcel of land iden-fied as Lot 1-R,
Block 2, BuMgen Addi-on, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 7 (SF-7)
District, situated within the Old Town Rockwall (OTR) Historic District, addressed as 501 Kernodle
Street, and take any action necessary.

2. Discuss and consider authorizing the City Manager to execute agreements with Blackland Water
Supply Corpora-on, including (1) Second Amendment to exis-ng Water Supply Agreement; (2)
Transfer Agreement regarding services N. of IH-30; and (3) Transfer & Collec-on Agreement
regarding services S. of IH-30, and take any action necessary.

3. Discuss and consider filling a vacancy on the city's Park Board for a par-al term through August of
2023, and take any action necessary.

XII. City Manager's Report, Departmental Reports and related discussions pertaining to current city
ac3vi3es, upcoming mee3ngs, future legisla3ve ac3vi3es, and other related ma8ers.

1. Building Inspections Department Monthly Report - April 2022
2. Fire Department Monthly Report - April 2022
3. Parks & Rec. Department Monthly Report - April 2022
4. Police Department Monthly Report - April 2022

3



5. Sales Tax Historical Comparison
6. Water Consumption Historical Statistics

XIII. Execu3ve Session.
The City of Rockwall City Council will Recess into Execu3ve Session to discuss the following ma8er
as authorized by Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code:

1. Discussion regarding possible sale/purchase/lease of real property off of State Highway 276
pursuant to Section §551.072 (Real Property) and Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney).

2. Discussion regarding Economic Development prospects, projects, and/or incen-ves pursuant to
Section 551.087 (Economic Development).

3. Discussion regarding RCH Water & Blackland Water Supply contracts, pursuant to Sec-on
§551.071 (Consultation with Attorney).

4. Discussion regarding possible sale/purchase/lease of real property off of John King Blvd pursuant
to Section §551.072 (Real Property) and Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney).

XIV. Reconvene Public Mee3ng & Take Any Ac3on as Result of Execu3ve Session

XV. Adjournment

This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Request for accommoda-ons or interpre-ve services
must be made 48 hours prior to this mee-ng. Please contact the City Secretary's Office at (972) 771-7700 or FAX (972) 771-7727 for
further information.

The City of Rockwall City Council reserves the right to adjourn into execu-ve session at any -me to discuss any of the maMers listed on
the agenda above, as authorized by Texas Government Code ¶ 551.071 (Consulta-on with AMorney) ¶ 551.072 (Delibera-ons about
Real Property) ¶ 551.074 (Personnel Matters) and ¶ 551.087 (Economic Development)

I, Kristy Teague, City Secretary for the City of Rockwall, Texas, do hereby cer-fy that this Agenda was posted at City Hall, in a place
readily accessible to the general public at all -mes, on the 3rd day of June, 2022 at 4:00 p.m. and remained so posted for at least 72
continuous hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting.

Kristy Teague, City Secretary
or Margaret Delaney, Asst. to the City Sect.

Date Removed

4



                                       SYNOPSIS FOR LIFE-SAVING AWARDS 

                                 ROCKWALL POLICE DEPARTMENT 

On March 23, 2022, at approximately 7:29 p.m., Officer Kristopher 

Adair and Officer Zachary Stimson were conducting an extra patrol 

behind Best Buy when they were flagged down about an injured person 

behind Staples.  Officer Adair responded to the area and located a 47-

year old male laying on the concrete in a pile of glass shards.  He was 

bleeding heavily from a large laceration to his lower right leg.  Without 

hesitation, Officer Adair instructed Officer Stimson to administer first 

aid by applying a tourniquet on his leg.  Officer Adair assisted by lifting 

the leg of the injured person and held support for Officer Stimson to be 

able to quickly and efficiently apply the tourniquet.  Together, Officer 

Adair and Officer Stimson were successfully able to stop the bleeding.  

The Rockwall County EMS Supervisor on scene advised that had the 

decision not been made to apply the tourniquet so quickly and 

efficiently, it was likely the male would have bled to death in the 

parking lot behind Staples. 

Based on their swift actions, Officer Kristopher Adair and Officer 

Zachary Stimson are hereby awarded the Life-Saving Award and being 

directly responsible for saving a human life. 

 

5



6



7



8



MINUTES 
ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

Monday, May 16, 2022 - 5:00 PM 
City Hall Council Chambers - 385 Goliad St., Rockwall, TX 75087 

  
I. 

 
CALL PUBLIC MEETING TO ORDER  

Mayor Fowler called the meeting to order at 5:01 p.m. Present were Mayor Kevin Fowler and 
Councilmembers Clarence Jorif, Dana Macalik, Anna Campbell, Trace Johannesen, Bennie Daniels 
and Mark Moeller (newly elected and officially sworn in by City Secretary, Kristy Teague, prior to 
going into Ex. Session). Also present were Assistant City Manager, Joey Boyd and City Attorney, 
Frank Garza. City Manager, Mary Smith was absent from the meeting. 

II. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION.  
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL WILL RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING MATTER AS 
AUTHORIZED BY CHAPTER 551 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE:  

1. Discussion regarding appointments to city regulatory boards and commissions, including interviews
associated with the Planning & Zoning Commission and N. TX. Municipal Water District (NTMWD) Board,
pursuant to Section, §551.074 (Personnel Matters)

2. Discussion regarding designation of Mayor Pro Tem, pursuant to Section §551.074 (Personnel Matters).

III. 
 
ADJOURN EXECUTIVE SESSION  

Council adjourned from Ex. Session at 6:00 p.m. 

IV. 
 
RECONVENE PUBLIC MEETING (6:00 P.M.)  

Mayor Fowler reconvened the public meeting at 6:00 p.m. with all seven council members being 
present. 

V.   INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - COUNCILMEMBER CAMPBELL 

Councilmember Campbell delivered the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

VI.   PROCLAMATIONS / AWARDS / RECOGNITIONS / HONORS 

1. Swearing in of Newly Elected City Councilmembers - Judge David Rakow
- Mark Moeller, Place 2
- Trace Johannesen, Place 4
- Anna Campbell, Place 6

Judge David Rakow administered the Oath of Office to each of the above-named, newly elected 
city council members. 

2. State Farm, Happy 100th Day

Mayor Fowler read and presented this proclamation to three State Farm agents who were 
present at the council meeting this evening.

3. Public Works Week

9



Amy Williams, Director of Public Works, came forth along with several members of her city 
staff (from both water and wastewater departments).  Mayor Fowler then read and presented 
this proclamation. Ms. Williams provided several statements, generally and sincerely thanking 
these staff members for all they do to keep the city’s water and wastewater systems up and 
running. 
  

4.  Recognition of Rockwall Youth Advisory Council's Graduating Seniors 
 
Kristy Teague, City Secretary, along with Councilmembers Jorif and Campbell came forth to 
briefly recognize three graduating seniors – Mazie Johnson, Peyton Nielsen and Rylee Braaten. 
Each student briefly introduced themselves and stated their plans after high school graduation. 

VII.  
 
OPEN FORUM  
 
Mayor Fowler explained how Open Forum is conducted. He then, initially, called forth Jerry Welch 
of the city’s Planning & Zoning Commission, who came forth and gave a brief summary of P&Z 
related recommendations relative to planning-related items on tonight’s meeting agenda. 
 
Mayor Fowler then asked if anyone else would like to come forth and speak during Open Forum. 
 
Mike Oswalt 
2054 Pontchartrain 
Rockwall, TX 75087 
 
Mr. Oswalt came forth and shared that he lives in Lakeside Village, and many times, he and his 
neighbors experience lake-goers who make quite a bit of noise late at night and even into the night. 
He generally expressed that he will appreciate the city helping enforce noise-related ordinances 
that might help alleviate these types of concerns. He will also appreciate the police department 
increasing patrols late at night in his neighborhood, especially during boating season.  He went on 
to briefly express that he runs a volunteer, non-profit organization that provides therapeutic trikes 
to special needs kids. He urged anyone who may be in need in this regard to please contact him.    

VIII.  
 
TAKE ANY ACTION AS A RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION    
 
Mayor Fowler moved to appoint Trace Johannesen to serve as Mayor Pro Tem for the City of 
Rockwall. Councilmember Daniels seconded the motion. The motion passed by a vote of 6 in favor 
with 1 abstention (Jorif). 
 

IX.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA  

 
1.  Consider approval of the minutes from the May 2, 2022, regular City Council meeting, and take any action 

necessary.  
2.  Consider an ordinance amending the Code of Ordinances in Ch. 36, Article IV, Division 2. 'ART Review Team 

Commission' to increase the composition of the board from five to seven members, and take any action 
necessary. (2nd reading)   

3.  P2022-015 - Consider a request by Ryan Joyce on Michael Joyce Properties on behalf of Mike Peoples for 
the approval of a Preliminary Plat for the Vallis Greene Subdivision consisting of 182 single-family 
residential lots on a 93.97-acre tract of land identified as Tract 4 & 4-01 of the M. B. Jones Survey, Abstract 
No. 122 and a portion of Tract 25-1 & 26 and all of Tract 13 & 25 of the W. M. Dalton Survey, Abstract No. 
72, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 93 (PD-93) for Single-
Family 10 (SF-10) District land uses, situated within the SH-66 Overlay (SH-66 OV) District, addressed as 
1936 SH-66, and take any action necessary. 

10



 
4.  P2022-016 - Consider a request by Ryan Joyce on Michael Joyce Properties on behalf of Mike Peoples for 

the approval of a Master Plat for the Vallis Greene Subdivision consisting of 182 single-family residential 
lots on a 93.97-acre tract of land identified as Tract 4 & 4-01 of the M. B. Jones Survey, Abstract No. 122 
and a portion of Tract 25-1 & 26 and all of Tract 13 & 25 of the W. M. Dalton Survey, Abstract No. 72, City 
of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 93 (PD-93) for Single-Family 10 
(SF-10) District land uses, situated within the SH-66 Overlay (SH-66 OV) District, addressed as 1936 SH-66, 
and take any action necessary.  

5.  P2022-017 - Consider a request by Humberto Johnson, Jr. of the Skorburg Co. on behalf of John Arnold of 
Falcon Place SF, LTD for the approval of a Final Plat for the Winding Creek Subdivision consisting of 132 
single-family residential lots on a 78.831-acre tract of land identified as Tracts 17, 17-01, 22, 22-04 & 22-
05 of the W. M. Dalton Survey, Abstract No. 72, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned 
Development District 91 (PD-91) for Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District land uses, generally located at the 
southeast corner of the intersection of FM-1141 and Clem Road, and take any action necessary.  

6.  P2022-020 - Consider a request by Heather Cullins on behalf of Shirley Smith of Smith Family Acres, LLC for 
the approval of a Preliminary Plat for the Smith Family Acres Subdivision consisting of four (4) single-family 
residential lots on a 44.525-acre tract of land identified as Tract 7-1 of the J. Strickland Survey, Abstract 
No. 187, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 74 (PD-74) for 
Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District land uses, generally located on the west side of John King Boulevard north 
of the intersection of John King Boulevard and FM-552, and take any action necessary.  

7.  P2022-018 - Consider a request by Brian Jones for the approval of a Replat for Lots 1 & 2, Block A, North 
Alamo Addition being a 2.1325-acre tract of land identified as Block 15, 15B, 15C & 16 of the Amick 
Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District, addressed as 
401, 405, 501 & 503 N. Alamo Road, and take any action necessary. 
 
Councilmember Jorif moved to approve the entire Consent Agenda, as presented (#s 1, 2, 3, 4, 
5, 6, and 7). Councilmember Macalik seconded the motion. The ordinance caption was read as 
follows: 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO. 22-27 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS, AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES IN CH. 36. STREETS, 
SIDEWALKS AND PUBLIC PLACES; ARTICLE IV. ART IN PUBLIC PLACES 
MASTER PLAN; DIVISION 2. ART REVIEW TEAM (ART) COMMISSION; SEC. 
36-77. “ESTABLISHED,” SUBSECTION (a)(1)a. “COMPOSITION” TO 
CHANGE THE REQUIRED COMPOSITION FROM A FIVE (5) MEMBER 
COMMISSION TO A SEVEN (7) MEMBER COMMISSION; PROVIDING FOR 
REPEALING, SAVINGS AND SEVERABILITY CLAUSES; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
The motion passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 

X.  
 
APPOINTMENT ITEMS  

 
1.  Appointment with the Rockwall Youth Advisory Council (YAC) to hear year-end presentation, and take any 

action necessary. 
 
Three YAC members, including (YAC Chairman) Peyton Nielsen, Jaxson Stuart, and Morgan 
Crosby, came forth and briefed the Council on the monthly activities of the group over the 
course of this past school year. They also provided a brief budgetary/financial overview as well. 
Council took no action as a result of this appointment item.  

2.  Appointment with Jim Rosenberg to discuss and consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a 
concession agreement between the City of Rockwall and Harbor Bay Marina Corporation, and take any 
action necessary. 

11



 
Parks Director, Travis Sales, came forth and briefed Council on the high points of the updated 
concession agreement between the City and Harbor Bay Marina, which he indicated has been 
worked on by staff, the city attorney and Mr. Rosenberg for the last twelve to eighteen months. 
In addition, the City of Dallas and the Lakeside Village HOA have also been part of the document 
creation/review. Under this new agreement, as part of its five year plan, the Styrofoam that is 
currently breaking loose will be replaced and then be fully encapsulated so it cannot break 
loose anymore. Also, the tires will be replaced with a concrete, breakwater system. Within 6-
10 years, a fire standpipe system will be installed for fire protection purposes.  Mr. Sales 
pointed out that there are provisions within the agreement that do address noise-related 
concerns. 
 
Following Mr. Sales’ brief comments, Mr. Rosenberg came forth and briefly addressed Council, 
indicating he has owned Harbor Bay Marina for the last thirty-three years. He stated that the 
facility is over fifty years old, and there will be major renovations that will occur under this new 
concessions agreement. Mayor Fowler indicated he initially had concerns about the long term 
associated with the agreement (25 years); however, considering the amount of investment that 
will be put into improving the facilities, he is ok with the twenty-five years. Councilmember 
Daniels then spoke, generally echoing the gentleman’s comments who spoke this evening 
during Open Forum about “noise.” Daniels shared that he himself lives in the Lakeside Village 
neighborhood. Although he personally lives on the other side of the neighborhood and does 
not hear ‘lake related noise’ late at night like some other neighborhood residents do, he knows 
that noise truly is a legitimate problem and concern. He would like the City to establish a 
concrete means by which residents are able to submit noise-related complaints and for the city 
to then be responsive to said complaints.  He wants there to be a paper trail related to 
complaints so the city can determine over time if there is or is not a legitimate concern related 
to noise. He prefers that the public boat ramp be closed by a certain hour of the night; however, 
he acknowledged that Mr. Rosenberg opposes this idea. He did acknowledge that there are 
provisions within the contract that will allow for (noise) complaints to be addressed if / when 
those complaints become persistent and numerous enough. He trusts Mr. Rosenberg will get 
those sorts of complaints addressed if/when they arise. Councilman Daniels also pointed out 
that there is an area on the north side of the marina that is about 1/3 of an acre in size, and 
Mr. Rosenberg has agreed to allow the residents of Lakeside Village an opportunity to utilize 
that area for picnic and social type purposes. He also pointed out that there are objectives for 
every year within the “1-5 year plan” and for each year within the “6-10 year plan” under this 
agreement. There are provisions built into the language of the agreement that will essentially 
hold Mr. Rosenberg to those objectives throughout the first 10 years. 
 
Following his comments, Councilmember Daniels moved to approve the Concessions 
Agreement between the City of Rockwall and Harbor Bay Marina Corporation. Councilmember 
Campbell seconded the motion, which passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 
 

XI.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS  

 
1.  Z2022-016 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by John and Rita Canavan for the 

approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Change from a Single-Family Estate 4.0 (SFE-4.0) District to a Single-
Family 1 (SF-1) District for a five (5) acre tract of land identified as Lot 5 of the Mustang Acres Addition, 
City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family Estate 4.0 (SFE-4.0) District, addressed as 
714 Clem Road, and take any action necessary (1st Reading). 
 

12



Ryan Miller, Planning Director, provided background information pertaining to this agenda 
item, indicating this is not far from the intersection of Clem Road and Stodghill Road.  The 
applicant would like to request a zoning change to allow for the future subdivision of this 
property overall. The property is designated for low-density residential zoning currently, which 
encompasses everything that is 2 units per gross acre or less. Notices were sent out to nineteen 
adjacent property/land owners; however, no notices were received back. The P&Z Commission 
has recommended approval of this request by a vote of 6 to 0. 
 
Mayor Fowler opened the public hearing, asking if anyone would like to come forth and speak 
at this time. There being no one indicating such, he then closed the public hearing. 
Councilmember Moeller then moved to approve Z2022-016, with staff recommendations.  
Councilmember Jorif seconded the motion. The ordinance caption was read as follows: 
 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO. 22-29 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 
20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS 
TO APPROVE A CHANGE IN ZONING FROM A SINGLE-FAMILY ESTATE 4.0 
(SFE-4.0) DISTRICT TO A SINGLE-FAMILY 1 (SF-1) DISTRICT FOR A FIVE (5) 
ACRE TRACT OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS LOT 5 OF THE MUSTANG ACRES 
ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING 
MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ AND 
EXHIBIT ‘B’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; 
PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
The motion passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 
  

2.  Z2022-017 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Kim Lemmond of Dallas Towboys 
for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a Towing and Impound Yard on a 1.8040-
acre tract of land identified as Tract 2-8 of the J. R. Johnson Survey, Abstract No. 128, City of Rockwall, 
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Heavy Commercial (HC) District, addressed as 227 National Drive, and take 
any action necessary (1st Reading). 
 
Planning Director, Ryan Miller provided background information related to this agenda item. 
The applicant approached staff back in March, and it was discovered that the property has 
been being used for a towing and impound yard; however, the certificate of occupancy that 
was issued by the city back in 2016 showed that the property was being used for ‘office uses’ 
only.  The same company/owner utilizes the property directly south of this location for a 
towing/impound yard, and it does have an approved SUP that allows for that type of use on 
that southern property. When the applicant found out they were out of compliance with city 
regulations, they did remove all of the vehicles off of this particular property. Also, the 
applicant has submitted a concept plan that does reflect bringing things like the parking and 
landscaping up to compliance with the city’s Unified Development Code. They also plan to 
provide screening for the proposed vehicle storage area with an existing fence that is currently 
in place today. He shared that the UDC does require an SUP for this type of land use, the 
issuance of which is a discretionary decision on the part of the city council. Mr. Miller went on 
to share that the P&Z Commission did vote 6-0 to recommend approval of this request to the 

13



Council this evening.  Twenty-eight notices were sent out to adjacent property and land 
owners, and two HOAs were also notified.  Two notices were received back by the city “in 
favor” of this request. 
 
Mayor Fowler opened the public hearing, asking if anyone would like to come forth and speak. 
There being no one indicating such, he then closed the public hearing. 
 
Councilmember Campbell sought and received clarification from Mr. Miller concerning each of 
the properties mentioned associated with this request. She wonders how the city might be 
able to monitor and enforce the requirement that vehicles brought to the tow yard would not 
stay on-site for a period longer than seventy-five days. Mr. Miller acknowledged that enforcing 
this requirement would be challenging for the City. 
 
The applicant came forth and shared that the business itself will have a company procedure in 
place that will consist of holding an online auto action once every 45 days. So that will ensure 
that vehicles associated with people who failed to come pick them up with be auctioned off at 
that 45 day auction. 
 
Following additional comments, Councilmember Macalik moved to approve Z2022-017. 
Councilmember Jorif seconded the motion. The ordinance caption was read as follows: 
 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO. 22-30 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-278 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC) 
[ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL 
COUNTY, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A 
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) TO ALLOW A TOWING AND IMPOUND YARD 
ON A 1.804-ACRE TRACT OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS TRACT 2-8 OF THE J. R. 
JOHNSON SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 128, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL 
COUNTY, TEXAS; AND MORE SPECIFICALLY DEPICTED AND DESCRIBED 
IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ AND EXHIBIT ‘B’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO 
EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH 
OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
The motion passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 
  

3.  Z2022-018 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Carlos and Crystal Solis for the 
approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for an Accessory Building on a 3.02-acre parcel of 
land identified as Lot 7R of the Lofland Estates No. 2 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, 
zoned Single-Family Estate 2.0 (SFE-2.0) District, addressed as 2914 FM-549, and take any action necessary 
(1st Reading). 
 
Planning Director, Ryan Miller, provided background information pertaining to this agenda 
item. This property is located just north of the area of FM-549 and FM-1139. He went on to 
explain that the accessory building being proposed by this applicant will not be viewable by 
the public street(s). He explained that approval of an SUP to allow for an accessory building is 
a discretionary decision on the part of the Council. Notices were sent out to adjacent property 

14



owners and residents located within 500’ of the subject property. One notice was received back 
in favor, and one notice was received back in opposition.  
 
Mayor Fowler opened the public hearing, asking if anyone would like to come forth and speak 
at this time. The applicant was not present this evening, and no one indicated a desire to speak. 
So Mayor Fowler closed the public hearing. 
 
Councilmember Moeller moved to approve Z2022-018, indicating that this is a large piece of 
property, and he has no issue with the applicant building a structure that is slightly larger than 
what the city would otherwise allow. Councilmember Daniels seconded the motion. The 
ordinance was read as follows: 
 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO. 22-31 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-279 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 
CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 20-38] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A 
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) TO ALLOW FOR AN ACCESSORY 
BUILDING ON A 3.02-ACRE TRACT OF LAND ZONED SINGLE-
FAMILY ESTATE 2.0 (SFE-2.0) DISTRICT AND IDENTIFIED AS LOT 
7R, LOFLAND LAKE ESTATES NO. 2 ADDITION, CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS; PROVIDING FOR 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OR FINE 
NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
The motion passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 
  

4.  Z2022-019 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Fred Gans of CDC Equities, LLC for 
the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Change from an Agricultural (AG) District and Commercial (C) 
District to a Planned Development District for limited Commercial (C) District land uses on a 13.55-acre 
tract of land identified as Lots 8R, 9R & 10 of the Rainbow Acres Subdivision, City of Rockwall, Rockwall 
County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District and Commercial (C) District, addressed as 5879, 5917 & 
5981 FM-3097 [Horizon Road], and take any action necessary (1st Reading). 
 
Mr. Miller, Planning Director, provided background information concerning this agenda item. 
This property is located just south of the intersection of Ranch Trail and Horizon Road, which 
is directly across from the Buffalo Creek subdivision, which is located in Heath’s city limits. It is 
currently zoned both “Agricultural” and “Commercial” district. It currently has two homes on 
it, one of which appears to be utilized currently for commercial purposes, and it also has various  
accessory buildings on it. He explained that the applicant would like to rezone the property in 
order to allow for a mini warehouse facility along with numerous flex “office/warehouse” type 
buildings. He went on to explain that the proposed units – 12 buildings in total - will actually 
be individually deeded automobile storage/garage units that are considered to be ‘luxury’ in 
nature. Inside of the units, things like living rooms, media rooms and kitchens may be present 
– along with the ability to store automobiles – and they may also be utilized for office space 
uses. The units are a “for sale product” that are very unique in nature. 
 

15



After additional comments related to the proposed “planned development district,” 
associated, potential land uses, infrastructure requirements, etc., Mr. Miller indicated that 
staff sent out notices to 16 adjacent property owners and land owners located within 500’ of 
the subject property (within the City of Rockwall’s city limits). Staff has not received any notices 
in return. In addition, the P&Z Commission did recently recommend approval of this request 
to City Council by a unanimous vote (6-0). The draft ordinance ties down the applicant’s 
concept plan and conceptual building elevations to ensure that what is built will generally 
conform to these things. 
 
Mayor Fowler opened the public hearing, asking if anyone would like to come forth and speak 
at this time. There being no one indicating such, he then closed the public hearing. 
 
The applicant’s representative then came forth and briefly addressed the Council. 
 
Mr. Albert 
6017 Main Street 
Frisco, TX 
 
Mr. Albert came forth and shared that this is a unique product that is much different than 
traditional auto storage products. After a few, additional comments, Mr. Albert shared that he 
is happy to answer any questions the council may have concerning this proposed “PD.” 
 
Following brief questions and answers, Councilmember Johannesen moved to approve Z2022-
019. Councilmember Campbell seconded the motion. Councilmember Macalik clarified that the 
neighborhood just adjacent to this property is located just across from the Buffalo Creek 
subdivision, which is not located within our own city limits. That is why those residents who 
live there were not notified.  Councilmember Jorif received clarification that this request is in 
compliance with the city’s Master Plan.  Following brief, additional comments, the ordinance 
caption was read as follows: 
 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO. 22-32 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 
20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS 
TO CHANGE THE ZONING FROM AN AGRICULTURAL (AG) DISTRICT AND 
COMMERCIAL (C) DISTRICT TO A PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT XX 
(PD-XX) FOR LIMITED COMMERCIAL (C) DISTRICT LAND USES ON THE 
SUBJECT PROPERTY, BEING A 13.55-ACRE TRACT OF LAND IDENTIFIED 
AS LOTS 8R, 9R, & 10 OF THE RAINBOW ACRES SUBDIVSION, CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS AND MORE FULLY DESCRIBED 
HEREIN BY EXHIBIT ‘A’ AND DEPICTED HEREIN BY EXHIBIT ‘B’; 
PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF 
FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) 
FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
The motion passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 
 

16



 
5.  Z2022-020 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Hellen Byrd on behalf of Donald 

Valk for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Change from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Light 
Industrial (LI) District for a 14.78-acre tract of land identified as Tracts 8 & 8-1 of the J. H. Bailey Survey, 
Abstract No. 34, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, situated within 
the SH-276 Overlay (SH-276 OV) District, addressed as 4649 SH-276, and take any action necessary (1st 
Reading). 
 
Planning Director, Ryan Miller, provided background information concerning this agenda item.  
This is located within the SH-276 Overlay District. The applicant would like to develop mini 
warehouses as well as ‘flex office warehouse.” The development will have to meet all land use 
requirements associated with the city’s “light industrial” district. This proposal does conform 
to the city’s Comprehensive Plan. Twelve notices were sent out to adjacent property and land 
owners; however, staff did not receive any notices in return (neither “for” nor “against”). The 
P&Z Commission has recommended approval of this request to Council by a vote of 6 to 0. 
 
Mayor Fowler opened the public hearing, asking if anyone would like to come forth and speak 
at this time. There being no one indicating such, he then closed the public hearing. 
 
The applicant was asked if she’d like to come forth; however, she declined. 
 
Councilmember Jorif moved to approve Z2022-020. Councilmember Campbell seconded the 
motion. The ordinance caption was read as follows: 
 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO. 22-33 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 
20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS 
TO APPROVE A CHANGE IN ZONING FROM AN AGRICULTURAL (AG) 
DISTRICT TO A LIGHT INDUSTRIAL (LI) DISTRICT FOR A 14.78-ACRE TRACT 
OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS TRACTS 8 & 8-1 OF THE J. H. BAILEY SURVEY, 
ABSTRACT NO. 34, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, 
AND BEING MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ AND 
FURTHER DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘B’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO 
EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH 
OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
The motion passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 
  

6.  Z2022-021 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Ruben Chapa for the approval of an 
ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision for the purpose 
of constructing a single-family home on a 0.1214-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 22, Block B, Chandler’s 
Landing, Phase 4 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 
8 (PD-8) for single-family residential land uses, addressed as 5405 Ranger Drive, and take any action 
necessary (1st Reading). 
 
Planning Director, Ryan Miller, provided background information concerning this agenda item.  
This property is currently vacant and is located within Phase 4 of the Chandler’s Landing 
subdivision. He went on to explain that Council is being asked to consider the size, location and 
architectural design of the proposed home when compared to nearby, existing residential 

17



homes.  This proposed home meets all the requirements of PD-8 and the Unified Development 
Code with the exception of the (front facing) garage and associated orientation.  This is not an 
a-typical request for the Chandler’s Landing subdivision. 134 notices were sent out to adjacent 
property owners and residents located within 500’ of the subject property; and staff received 
one notice back in opposition.  In addition, he P&Z Commission did recommend approval of 
the request this evening by a unanimous vote (6-0, with Commissioner Womble absent). Many 
adjacent HOAs were also notified of this proposal. 
 
Mayor Fowler opened the public hearing, asking if anyone would like to come forth and speak 
at this time. There being no one indicating such, he then closed the public hearing. 
 
Councilmember Macalik moved to approve Z2022-021. Councilmember Campbell seconded the 
motion. The ordinance caption was read as follows: 
 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO. 22-34 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-280 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS, AMENDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 8 (PD-8) AND THE 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC) [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE 
CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY 
AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) FOR 
RESIDENTIAL INFILL IN AN ESTABLISHED SUBDIVISION TO ALLOW THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF A SINGLE-FAMILY HOME ON A 0.1214-ACRE 
PARCEL OF LAND, IDENTIFIED AS LOT 22, BLOCK B, CHANDLER’S 
LANDING, PHASE 4 ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, 
TEXAS; AND MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED IN 
EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL 
CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE 
SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
The motion passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 
 

XII.  
 
ACTION ITEMS  

 
1.  Discuss and consider an ordinance granting a franchise agreement to Atmos Energy Corporation, Mid-Tex 

Division to provide natural gas service in the City of Rockwall, and take any action necessary. (1st reading) 
 
Joey Boyd, Assistant City Manager provided brief comments concerning this agenda item. He 
generally shared that the previous gas franchise agreement with Atmos has expired. So it is 
now time to consider a new agreement. The term of the proposed agreement is 20 years, and 
it will provide the city with 5% of gross revenues. The city attorney has reviewed the 
agreement, and staff is happy to answer any questions Council may have. 
 
Councilmember Jorif moved to approve the ordinance granting the franchise agreement. 
Mayor Pro Tem Johannesen seconded the motion. The ordinance caption was read as follows: 

 
CITY OF ROCKWALL 

ORDINANCE NO. 22-28 
 

18



AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS GRANTING TO ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION, A TEXAS AND 
VIRGINIA CORPORATION, ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, A NON-
EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE FOR A PERIOD OF TWENTY (20) YEARS TO 
CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN, AND OPERATE PIPELINES AND EQUIPMENT IN 
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE 
TRANSPORTATION, DELIVERY, SALE, AND DISTRIBUTION OF GAS IN, OUT 
OF, AND THROUGH SAID CITY FOR ALL PURPOSES; PROVIDING FOR THE 
PAYMENT OF A FEE OR CHARGE FOR THE USE OF THE PUBLIC RIGHTS-
OF-WAYS; AND PROVIDING THAT SUCH FEE SHALL BE IN LIEU OF OTHER 
FEES AND CHARGES, EXCEPTING AD VALOREM TAXES; AND REPEALING 
ALL PREVIOUS GAS FRANCHISE ORDINANCES. 

 
The motion passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 
  

2.  Discuss and consider appointments to the city's ART Commission, and take any action necessary. 
 
Regarding the two new seats that have now been added to the ART Commission, 
Councilmember Macalik moved to appoint Kindsay Carter to the ART Commission for an initial 
term to run from June 1st thru August of 2023.  In addition, in her same motion, Councilmember 
Macalik also moved to appoint Christopher Kingsley to the ART Commission for a partial term 
from June 1 thru August of 2022 and thereafter continue serving a full, two-year term thru 
August of 2024. Mayor Fowler seconded the motion, which passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 
nays. 
 
Following the public agenda and associated discussions noted above, Mayor Fowler indicated 
that Council did not finish its Executive Session discussions prior to the start of the 6:00 p.m. 
public meeting. Therefore, he recessed the public meeting at 7:24 p.m. to go back into Ex. 
Session (to discuss the below-listed items, which he previously read into the record earlier at 
5:00 p.m.). 

XIII.  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION.    
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL WILL RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING MATTER AS 
AUTHORIZED BY CHAPTER 551 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE:  

  
1.  Discussion regarding appointments to city regulatory boards and commissions, including interviews 

associated with the Planning & Zoning Commission and N. TX. Municipal Water District (NTMWD) Board, 
pursuant to Section, §551.074 (Personnel Matters)   

2.  Discussion regarding designation of Mayor Pro Tem, pursuant to Section §551.074 (Personnel Matters). 

XIV.  
 
RECONVENE PUBLIC MEETING & TAKE ANY ACTION AS RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
Council came out of Executive Session at 8:00 p.m. After a brief break, Mayor Fowler then 
reconvened the public meeting at 8:02 p.m. (with all seven council members being present). Mayor 
Pro Tem Johannesen moved to appoint Brian Llewelyn to serve in the vacant seat on the city’s 
Planning & Zoning Commission (replacing former member, Mark Moeller). Mayor Fowler seconded 
the motion, which passed by a vote of 5 ayes with 2 against (Macalik and Campbell). 

XV.  
 
ADJOURNMENT     

    Mayor Fowler adjourned the meeting at 8:03 p.m. 
 

19



PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS ON THIS 6th 

DAY OF JUNE, 2022. 

 
 

KEVIN FOWLER, MAYOR 
ATTEST:  

 
 

KRISTY TEAGUE, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 

20



CITY OF ROCKWALL 

ORDINANCE NO. 22-28 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS GRANTING TO ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION, A TEXAS AND 
VIRGINIA CORPORATION, ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, A NON-
EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE FOR A PERIOD OF TWENTY (20) YEARS TO 
CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN, AND OPERATE PIPELINES AND EQUIPMENT 
IN THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE 
TRANSPORTATION, DELIVERY, SALE, AND DISTRIBUTION OF GAS IN, 
OUT OF, AND THROUGH SAID CITY FOR ALL PURPOSES; PROVIDING 
FOR THE PAYMENT OF A FEE OR CHARGE FOR THE USE OF THE 
PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAYS; AND PROVIDING THAT SUCH FEE SHALL BE 
IN LIEU OF OTHER FEES AND CHARGES, EXCEPTING AD VALOREM 
TAXES; AND REPEALING ALL PREVIOUS GAS FRANCHISE 
ORDINANCES. 

WHEREAS, currently there are property owners and residents within the geographical 
boundaries of the City of Rockwall and a potential for future economic and population growth, which 
requires or will require a supply of natural gas for their respective needs; and   

WHEREAS, the introduction of the availability of a natural gas supply will be an incentive for the 
City to maintain current businesses and attract new development, as well as to provide gas service to 
existing property owners and residents; and  

WHEREAS, the City, for the considerations provided by this Ordinance, and subject to the terms 
and conditions therein, has determined and finds that it is in the public interest of the City and its current 
property owners and residents to award a non-exclusive franchise to Atmos Energy Corporation, 
(“Atmos Energy”), for the transmission, distribution and sale of natural gas as provided in this 
Agreement;   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS THAT: 

SECTION 1. GRANT OF AUTHORITY:   The City of Rockwall, Texas, hereinafter called “City,” 
hereby grants to Atmos Energy Corporation, Mid-Tex Division, hereinafter called “Atmos Energy,” its 
successors and assigns, a non-exclusive consent to use and occupy the present and future streets, 
alleys, highways, public utility easements, public ways and other public places (“Public Rights-of-Way”), 
for the purpose of laying, maintaining, constructing, protecting, operating, and replacing therein and 
thereon pipelines and all other appurtenant equipment (the “System”) to deliver, transport, and distribute 
gas in, out of, and through City for persons, firms, and corporations, including all the general public, and 
to sell gas to persons, firms, and corporations, including all the general public, within the City corporate 
limits, as such limits may be amended from time to time during the term of this franchise, said consent 
being granted for a term ending June 6, 2042. 

SECTION 2. CONSTRUCTION, MAINTENANCE, OPERATION & RELOCATION OF ATMOS 
ENERGY FACILITIES:   

A. Atmos Energy’s facilities shall be constructed and maintained so as not to unreasonably
interfere with any existing water and wastewater lines, electric facilities, storm sewer lines, open
drainage areas, cable, fiber optic cable, roadways, sidewalks, alleys, traffic control devices,

21



public signs, or any other publicly owned or publicly franchised facility. Atmos Energy shall 
promptly clean-up, repair, and restore all thoroughfares and other surfaces which it may disturb. 

B. Atmos Energy shall submit a permit application to City Engineer for the placement of new 
facilities, for upgrade or augmentation of existing facilities, or for replacement of existing facilities 
in the Public Right-of-Way. In no case shall Atmos Energy or its agents be required to pay for 
such permit.  Such permit application shall include: complete plans and detailed drawings 
reflecting compliance with all applicable zoning, development, and building requirements of the 
City and all additional information requested by City Engineer reasonably related to the permit 
request. 

C. Atmos Energy shall lay, maintain, construct, operate, and replace its pipes, mains, laterals, and 
other equipment to minimize interference with traffic, place or cause to be placed appropriate 
barriers to mark excavations or obstructions, and restore to approximate original condition all 
Public Rights-of-Way that it may disturb.  In determining the location of the facilities of the City 
and other users of Public Right-of-Way within City, City shall minimize interference with then 
existing facilities of Atmos Energy and shall require other users of Public Rights-of-Way to 
minimize interference with existing facilities of Atmos Energy.  In the event of a conflict between 
the location of the proposed facilities of Atmos Energy and the location of the existing facilities 
of City or other users of Public Rights-of-Way within Public Rights-of-Way that cannot otherwise 
be resolved, City Engineer or an authorized agent of City shall resolve the conflict and determine 
the location of the respective facilities within the Public Rights-of-Way.   
 

Atmos Energy or contractors working on behalf of Atmos Energy shall not be required to pay for 
street cutting, street excavation or other special permits related to excavations in Public Rights-
of-Way in connection with Atmos Energy’s operations in Public Rights-of-Way. City shall provide 
Atmos Energy with its annual capital improvements plan as well as any updates or changes as 
soon as the plan, update, or change becomes available.  City shall notify Atmos Energy as soon 
as reasonably possible of any projects that will affect Atmos Energy’s facilities located in the 
Public Rights-of-Way.  When required by City to remove or relocate its mains, laterals, and/or 
other facilities lying within Public Rights-of-Way, Atmos Energy shall do so as soon as practically 
possible with respect to the scope of the project.  In no event shall Atmos Energy be required to 
remove or relocate its facilities in less than thirty (30) days from the time notice is given to Atmos 
Energy by City.  

D. Any and all excavations and obstructions in and upon the Public Right-of-Way caused by the 
Atmos Energy’s operations under this Ordinance shall be repaired and removed as quickly as 
is reasonably possible under the circumstances. All excavations shall be repaired in a good and 
workmanlike manner and restored to the approximate condition that existed prior to the 
excavation. The public shall be protected by barriers and lights placed, erected, marked, and 
maintained by the Company in accordance with the standards set forth in the current Texas 
Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices, as well as any other applicable local, state, and 
federal requirements. Atmos Energy warrants that any such restoration work performed in the 
Public Right-of-Way shall be in satisfactory condition for a period not to exceed one (1) year, to 
the extent that such restoration work has not been disturbed by other users of the Public Right-
of-Way or by acts of God. In the event that the Atmos Energy fails to repair or restore an 
excavation site within fourteen (14) days after receipt of written notice from the City of a 
deficiency, the City may, at its option, perform the needed repair or restoration and the Atmos 
Energy shall promptly reimburse the City for the reasonable cost of such repair or restoration. 
Except for repairs, day-to-day maintenance, or in cases of emergency conditions, work 
conducted within the Public Right-of-Way shall require an approved permit issued by the City 
Engineer prior to commencement of work as outlined by Section 2 C. In no instance shall Atmos 
Energy be required to pay fees or bonds related to its use of the Public Right-of-Way. 

22



E. If City, in constructing its sewers, drainage, water lines, streets, or utilities, should request that 
Atmos Energy remove or relocate its mains, laterals, and other facilities lying within Public 
Rights-of-Way, Atmos Energy shall do so at its own expense for facilities that are in conflict, 
unless such work is for the primary purpose of beautification or to accommodate a private 
developer. Facilities are deemed to be in conflict to the extent that the proposed City facilities 
are determined by Atmos Energy to be inconsistent with gas distribution industry standard safe 
operating practices for existing facilities.  Atmos Energy shall not be required to relocate facilities 
to a depth of greater than four (4) feet unless prior agreement is obtained from Atmos Energy. 

 
When Atmos Energy is required by City to remove or relocate its mains, laterals, and other 
facilities lying within Public Rights-of-Way to accommodate a request by City, and costs of utility 
removals or relocations are eligible under federal, state, county, local or other programs for 
reimbursement of costs and expenses incurred by Atmos Energy as a result of such removal or 
relocation, and such reimbursement is required to be handled through City, Atmos Energy costs 
and expenses shall be included in any application by City for reimbursement if Atmos Energy 
submits its cost and expense documentation to City prior to the filing of the  application. City 
shall provide reasonable written notice to Atmos Energy of the deadline for Atmos Energy to 
submit documentation of the costs and expenses of such relocation to City.  Upon receipt of 
reimbursement from such program, the City shall remit to Atmos Energy, within thirty (30) days 
of receipt, its portion related to the relocation or removal of its facilities.   
 
If Atmos Energy is required by City to remove or relocate its mains, laterals, or other facilities 
lying within Public Rights-of-Way for any reason other than the construction or reconstruction of 
sewers, drainage, water lines, streets, or utilities by City, Atmos Energy shall be entitled to 
reimbursement from City or others of the cost and expense of such removal or relocation.   

F. When Atmos Energy is required to remove or relocate its mains, laterals or other facilities to 
accommodate construction by City without reimbursement from City, Atmos Energy shall have 
the right to seek recovery of relocation costs as provided for in applicable state and/or federal 
law.  Nothing herein shall be construed to prohibit, alter, or modify in any way the right of Atmos 
Energy to seek or recover a surcharge from customers for the cost of relocation pursuant to 
applicable state and/or federal law. City shall not oppose recovery of relocation costs when 
Company is required by City to perform relocation.  City shall not require that Company 
document request for reimbursement as a pre-condition to recovery of such relocation costs. 

G. If City abandons any Public Rights-of-Way in which Atmos Energy has facilities, such 
abandonment shall be conditioned on Atmos Energy’s right to maintain its use of the former 
Public Right-of-Way and on the obligation of the party to whom the Public Right-of-Way is 
abandoned to reimburse Atmos Energy for all removal or relocation expenses if Atmos Energy 
agrees to the removal or relocation of its facilities following abandonment of the Public Right-of-
Way.  If the party to whom the Public Right-of-Way is abandoned requests Atmos Energy to 
remove or relocate its facilities and Atmos Energy agrees to such removal or relocation, such 
removal or relocation shall be done within a reasonable time at the expense of the party 
requesting the removal or relocation.  If relocation cannot practically be made to another Public 
Right-of-Way, the expense of any right-of-way acquisition shall be considered a relocation 
expense to be reimbursed by the party requesting the relocation. 

H. Upon request by City made no more often than once in any 12-month period, Atmos Energy 
shall provide maps showing the location of its primary system. Any maps provided by Atmos 
Energy to the City shall be deemed confidential and will be provided solely for the City’s use.  
The City agrees to maintain the confidentiality of any non-public information obtained from 
Atmos Energy to the extent allowed by law.  In addition, Atmos Energy shall cooperate in locating 
its system when necessary to avoid conflict and protect the health and safety of the public. 
 

23



 SECTION 3. INDEMNITY & INSURANCE: 
 
A. A T M O S  E N E R G Y  SHALL DEFEND, INDEMNIFY AND SAVE WHOLE AND 

HARMLESS THE  C I T Y  AND ALL OF ITS OFFICERS, AND EMPLOYEES AGAINST 
ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, LAWSUITS, JUDGMENTS, COSTS AND EXPENSES FOR 
PERSONAL INJURY (INCLUDING DEATH) , PROPERTY DAMAGE OR OTHER 
HARM FOR WHICH RECOVERY OF DAMAGES IS SOUGHT SUFFERED BY ANY 
PERSON OR PERSONS THAT MAY BE OCCASIONED BY, OR ARISE OUT OF 
A T M O S  E N E R G Y ’S BREACH OF ANY OF THE TERMS OR PROVISIONS OF 
THIS AGREEMENT, OR BY ANY NEGLIGENT OR STRICTLY LIABLE ACT, OR 
OMISSION BY A T M O S  E N E R G Y , ITS OFFICERS, AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, 
SUBCONTRACTORS, AFFILIATES AND SUBSIDIARIES, IN THE CONSTRUCTION, 
MAINTENANCE, OPERATION, OR REPAIR OF THE GAS DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM, OR 
BY THE CONDUCT OF A T M O S  E N E R G Y ’S BUSINESS IN THE  CITY 
PURSUANT TO THIS ORDINANCE/FRANCHISE AGREEMENT; THE INDEMNITY 
PROVIDED FOR IN THIS SECTION SHALL NOT APPLY TO THE EXTENT ANY 
LIABILITY RESULTING FROMIS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE NEGLIGENCE  OR FAULT 
OF THE CITY, ITS OFFICERS, AGENTS, EMPLOYEES OR SEPARATE CONTRACTORS, 
AND IN THE EVENT OF JOINT AND CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE OR FAULT OF BOTH 
A T M O S  E N E R G Y  AND THE CITY, RESPONSIBILITY AND INDEMNITY, IF ANY, 
SHALL BE APPORTIONED COMPARATIVELY IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF 
THE STATE OF TEXAS WITHOUT, HOWEVER, WAIVING ANY GOVERNMENTAL 
IMMUNITY AVAILABLE TO THE  C I T Y  UNDER TEXAS LAW AND WITHOUT WAIVING 
ANY OF THE DEFENSES OF THE PARTIES UNDER TEXAS LAW. IT IS UNDERSTOOD 
THAT IT IS NOT THE INTENTION OF THE PARTIES HERETO TO CREATE LIABILITY 
FOR THE BENEFIT OF THIRD PARTIES, BUT THAT THIS SECTION SHALL BE SOLELY 
FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE PARTIES HERETO AND SHALL NOT CREATE OR GRANT 
ANY RIGHTS, CONTRACTUAL OR OTHERWISE, TO ANY PERSON OR ENTITY. 
 
 

B. Company shall, at its sole cost and expense, obtain, maintain, or cause to be maintained, and 
provide, throughout the term of this Ordinance, insurance in the amounts, types and coverages 
in accordance with the following requirements. Such insurance may be in the form of self-
insurance to the extent permitted by applicable law or by obtaining insurance, as follows: 
 
(1) Commercial general or excess liability on an occurrence or claims made form with 

minimum limits of five million dollars ($5,000,000) per occurrence and ten million dollars 
($10,000,000) aggregate. 
 

(2) Automobile liability coverage with a minimum policy limit of one million dollars 
($1,000,000) combined single limit each accident. This coverage shall include all owned, 
hired, and non-owned automobiles. 

 
(3) Workers’ compensation and employer’s liability coverage. Statutory workers’ 

compensation benefits in accordance with the statutes and regulations of the State of 
Texas. Company must provide the City with a waiver of subrogation for workers’ 
compensation claims. 

 
(4) Upon request, the Company will provide proof of insurance in accordance with this 

Ordinance within thirty (30) days after such request. Company will not be required to 
furnish separate proof when applying for permits. 

24



 
C. Atmos Energy’s insurance obligations pursuant to this franchise may be in the form of self-

insurance to the extent permitted by applicable law, under an Atmos Energy plan of self-
insurance maintained in accordance with sound accounting and risk-management practices. 
Such self-insurance plan must be reviewed by the City.  

 
SECTION 4.  NON-EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE:   The rights, privileges, and franchises granted by 

this ordinance are not to be considered exclusive, and City hereby expressly reserves the right to grant, 
at any time, like privileges, rights, and franchises as it may see fit to any other person or corporation for 
the purpose of transporting, delivering, distributing, or selling gas to and for City and the inhabitants 
thereof.   
 

SECTION 5.  PAYMENTS TO CITY:    
A. Atmos Energy, its successors and assigns, agrees to pay and City agrees to accept, on or before 

the 15th day of February, 2023 and on or before the same day of each succeeding year during the 
term of this franchise the last payment being made on the 15th day of February, 2042, a sum of 
money which shall be equivalent to five percent (5%) of the Gross Revenues, as defined in 5.B. 
below, received by Atmos Energy during the preceding calendar year.  

 
B. "Gross Revenues" shall mean:  
 

(1)   all revenues received by Atmos Energy from the sale of gas to all classes of customers 
(excluding gas sold to another gas utility in the City for resale to its customers within City) 
within the City; 

(2)       all revenues received by Atmos Energy from the transportation of gas through the 
System of Atmos Energy within the City to customers located within the City (excluding 
any gas transported to another gas utility in City for resale to its customers within City);  

(3)  the value of gas transported by Atmos Energy for Transport Customers through the 
System of Atmos Energy within the City ("Third Party Sales")(excluding the value of any 
gas transported to another gas utility in City for resale to its customers within City), with 
the value of such gas to be established by utilizing Atmos Energy’s monthly Weighted 
Average Cost of Gas charged to industrial customers in the Mid-Tex division, as 
reasonably near the time as the transportation service is performed; and 

(4)  “Gross Revenues” shall also include the following “miscellaneous charges”: charges to 
connect, disconnect, or reconnect gas and charges to handle returned checks from 
consumers within the City.   

 (5) “Gross Revenues” shall not include: 
(a) revenues billed but not ultimately collected or received by Atmos Energy; 
(b) contributions in aid of construction; 
(c) the revenue of any affiliate or subsidiary of Atmos Energy; 
(d) sales tax and franchise fees paid to the City;  

   (e) interest or investment income earned by Atmos Energy; and 
(f) monies received from the lease or sale of real or personal property, 

provided, however, that this exclusion does not apply to the lease of 
facilities within the City's right of way. 

 
C. The initial payment for the rights and privileges herein provided shall be for the privilege period 

January 1 through December 31, 2023, and each succeeding payment shall be for the privilege 
period of the calendar year in which the payment is made. 

 
It is also expressly agreed that the aforesaid payments shall be in lieu of any and all other and 
additional occupation taxes, easement, franchise taxes or charges (whether levied as an ad 
valorem, special, or other character of tax or charge), municipal license, permit, and inspection fees, 

25



bonds, street taxes, and street or alley rentals or charges, and all other and additional municipal 
taxes, charges, levies, fees, and rentals of whatsoever kind and character that City may now impose 
or hereafter levy and collect from Atmos Energy or Atmos Energy’s agents, excepting only the usual 
general or special ad valorem taxes that City is authorized to levy and impose upon real and 
personal property.  If the City does not have the legal power to agree that the payment of the 
foregoing sums of money shall be in lieu of taxes, licenses, fees, street or alley rentals or charges, 
easement or franchise taxes or charges aforesaid, then City agrees that it will apply so much of said 
sums of money paid as may be necessary to satisfy Atmos Energy’s obligations, if any, to pay any 
such taxes, licenses, charges, fees, rentals, easement or franchise taxes or charges aforesaid. 

  
D. Effect of Other Municipal Franchise Ordinance Fees Accepted and Paid by Atmos Energy 

 
 If Atmos Energy should at any time after the effective date of this Ordinance agree to a new 

municipal franchise ordinance, or renew an existing municipal franchise ordinance, with another 
municipality in Atmos Energy’s Mid-Tex Division, which municipal franchise ordinance determines 
the franchise fee owed to that municipality for the use of its public rights-of-way in a manner that, if 
applied to the City, would result in a franchise fee greater than the amount otherwise due City under 
this Ordinance, then the franchise fee to be paid by Atmos Energy to City pursuant to this Ordinance 
may, at the election of the City, be increased so that the amount due and to be paid is equal to the 
amount that would be due and payable to City were the franchise fee provisions of that other 
franchise ordinance applied to City.  The City acknowledges that the exercise of this right is 
conditioned upon the City’s acceptance of all terms and conditions of the other municipal franchise 
in toto.  The City may request waiver of certain terms and Company may grant, in its sole reasonable 
discretion, such waiver. 

  
E. Atmos Energy Franchise Fee Recovery Tariff 
 
 (1) Atmos Energy may file with the City a tariff or tariff amendment(s) to provide for the  
   recovery of the franchise fees under this agreement. 
 

  (2) City agrees that (i) as regulatory authority, it will adopt and approve the ordinance, rates 
or tariff which provide for 100% recovery of such franchise fees as part of Atmos Energy’s 
rates; (ii) if the City intervenes in any regulatory proceeding before a federal or state 
agency in which the recovery of Atmos Energy’s franchise fees is an issue, the City will 
take an affirmative position supporting 100% recovery of such franchise fees by Atmos 
Energy and; (iii) in the event of an appeal of any such regulatory proceeding in which the 
City has intervened, the City will take an affirmative position in any such appeals in 
support of the 100% recovery of such franchise fees by Atmos Energy. 

 
 (3) City agrees that it will take no action, nor cause any other person or entity to take any 
   action, to prohibit the recovery of such franchise fees by Atmos Energy. 
 

F. Lease of Facilities Within City’s Rights-of-Way.  Atmos Energy shall have the right to lease, 
license or otherwise grant to a party other than Atmos Energy the use of its facilities within the 
City’s public rights-of-way provided: (i) Atmos Energy first notifies the City of the name of the 
lessee, licensee or user; the type of service(s) intended to be provided through the facilities; and 
the name and telephone number of a contact person associated with such lessee, licensee or 
user and (ii) Atmos Energy makes the franchise fee payment due on the revenues from such 
lease pursuant to Section 5 of this Ordinance.  This authority to Lease Facilities within City’s 
Rights-of-Way shall not affect any such lessee, licensee or user’s obligation, if any, to pay 
franchise fees. 
 

G. City shall within thirty (30) days of final approval, give Company notice of annexations and 

26



disannexations of territory by the City, which notice shall include a map and addresses, if known.  
Upon receipt of said notice, Company shall promptly initiate a process to reclassify affected 
customers into the city limits no later than sixty (60) days after receipt of notice from the City.  
The annexed areas added to the city limits will be included in future franchise fee payments in 
accordance with the sales tax effective date of the annexation if notice was timely received from 
City.  Upon request from City, Company will provide documentation to verify that affected 
customers were appropriately reclassified and included for purposes of calculating franchise fee 
payments.  In no event shall the Company be required to add premises for the purposes of 
calculating franchise payment prior to the earliest date that the same premises are added for 
purposes of collecting sales tax. 

 
 SECTION 6.  TERMINATION 

 
A. The City, in accordance with subsection (B) below, may terminate this Ordinance and all rights 

and privileges pertaining thereto, in the event that Atmos Energy violates any material provision 
of this Ordinance (an “Event of Default”).   
  

     B. Uncured Events of Default. 
 

(1) Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default which can be cured by the immediate 
payment of money to City or a third party, Atmos Energy shall have thirty (30) 
days (or such additional time as may be agreed to by the City) after receipt of 
written notice from City of an occurrence of such Event of Default to cure same 
before City may exercise any of its rights or remedies as outlined in Section 6 
(C). 

 
(2) Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default by Atmos Energy which cannot be 

cured by the immediate payment of money to City or a third party, Atmos Energy 
shall have sixty (60) days (or such additional time as may be agreed to by the 
City) after receipt of written notice from City of an occurrence of such Event of 
Default to cure same before City may exercise any of its rights or remedies as 
outlined in Section 6 (C). 

 
(3) If the Event of Default is not cured within the time period allowed for curing the 

Event of Default as provided for herein, such Event of Default shall, without 
additional notice, become an Uncured Event of Default, which shall entitle City to 
exercise the remedies as outlined in Section 6 (C). 

 
C. Remedies.  Upon receipt of a notice of an alleged Uncured Event of Default as described, which 

notice shall specify the alleged failure with reasonable particularity, Atmos Energy shall, within 
the time periods specified in Section 6 (B) or such longer period of time as may be agreed to 
by the City, either cure such alleged failure or, in a written response to the City, present facts 
and arguments in refuting or defending such alleged failure, or state that such alleged failure 
will be cured and set forth the method and time schedule for accomplishing such cure. In the 
event that such cure is not forthcoming or the City determines that an unexcused "Uncured 
Event of Default" has occurred, City shall be entitled to exercise any and all of the following 
cumulative remedies: 

(1) The commencement of an action against Atmos Energy at law for monetary 
damages. 

 
(2) The commencement of an action in equity seeking injunctive relief or the specific 

performance of any of the provisions, which as a matter of equity, are specifically 
enforceable. 

27



 
(3) The termination of the franchise granted herein. 

 
D. Remedies Not Exclusive.  The rights and remedies of City and Atmos Energy set forth in this 

Ordinance shall be in addition to, and not in limitation of, any other rights and remedies provided 
by law or in equity. City and Atmos Energy understand and intend that such remedies shall be 
cumulative to the maximum extent permitted by law and the exercise by a party of any one or 
more of such remedies shall not preclude the exercise by such party, at the same or different 
times, of any other such remedies for the same failure to cure. However, notwithstanding this 
Section or any other provision of this Ordinance, City shall not recover both liquidated damages 
and actual damages for the same violation, breach, or noncompliance, either under this Section 
or under any other provision of this Ordinance. 

 
E. Termination.  The franchise granted herein may be terminated only in accordance with the 

provisions of Section 6(C). City shall notify Atmos Energy in writing at least thirty (30) business 
days in advance of the City Council meeting at which the questions of termination shall be 
considered, and Atmos Energy shall have the right to appear before the City Council in person 
or by counsel and raise any objections or defenses Atmos Energy may have that are relevant 
to the proposed forfeiture or termination. The final decision of the City Council may be appealed 
to any court or regulatory authority having jurisdiction. Upon timely appeal by Atmos Energy of 
the City Council’s decision terminating the franchise granted herein, the effective date of such 
termination shall be either when such appeal is withdrawn or a court order upholding the 
termination becomes final and unappealable. If no appeal is filed, the effective date of such 
termination shall be the thirtieth (30th) day following the date of the final termination decision of 
the City Council. Until the termination becomes effective, the provisions of this Ordinance shall 
remain in effect for all purposes 

 
SECTION 7.  ASSIGNMENT: Atmos Energy’s rights under this Ordinance shall not be assigned or 

transferred without the written consent of the City, which consent shall not be unreasonably delayed or 
withheld; provided, however, that Atmos Energy may assign its rights under this Ordinance to a parent, 
subsidiary, affiliate or successor entity without such consent, so long as such parent, subsidiary, affiliate 
or successor (i) assumes all obligations of Atmos Energy hereunder, and (ii) is bound to the same extent 
as Atmos Energy hereunder. City shall grant approval of assignments unless the proposed assignee is 
materially weaker than Atmos.  For the purpose of this section, “materially weaker” means that the long 
term unsecured debt rating of the assignee is less than investment grade as rated by both S&P  and 
Moody’s.  If the proposed assignee is materially weaker, the City may request additional documents 
and information reasonably related to the transaction and the legal, financial, and technical 
qualifications of the proposed assignee.  Atmos Energy shall give the City thirty (30) days prior written 
notice of any assignment to a parent, subsidiary, affiliate or successor entity. Any required consent shall 
be expressed by an ordinance that fully recites the terms and conditions, if any, upon which such 
consent is given. Any such assignment or transfer shall require that assignee assume all obligations of 
Atmos Energy and be bound to the same extent as Atmos Energy hereunder.  If within the first year 
after assignment, City identifies a failure to comply with a material provision of this Ordinance, City shall 
have the right, after notice and opportunity for hearing before Council, to terminate this Ordinance 
pursuant to Section 6. Any assignment or transfer effected prior to the City’s approval thereof, if 
required, shall authorize the City to treat such assignment or transfer as an Uncured Event of Default 
and immediately implement the provisions of Section 6, including the right to terminate the franchise 
granted herein. 
 

SECTION 8. ACCEPTANCE OF FRANCHISE:  In order to accept this franchise, Atmos Energy 
must file with the City Secretary its written acceptance of this franchise ordinance within sixty (60) days 
after its final passage and approval by City.  If such written acceptance of this franchise ordinance is 
not filed by Atmos Energy, the franchise ordinance shall be rendered null and void. 

28



 
When this franchise ordinance becomes effective, all previous ordinances of City granting 

franchises for gas delivery purposes that were held by Atmos Energy shall be automatically canceled 
and annulled, and shall be of no further force and effect. 
  

SECTION 9.  PARAGRAPH HEADINGS. CONSTRUCTION:  The paragraph headings contained 
in this ordinance are for convenience only and shall in no way enlarge or limit the scope or meaning of 
the various and several paragraphs hereof.  Both parties have participated in the preparation of this 
ordinance and this ordinance shall not be construed either more or less strongly against or for either 
party. 
 

SECTION 10.  GOVERNING LAW: This Ordinance shall be governed and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Texas, without giving effect to any conflicts of law rule or principle that 
might result in the application of the laws of another jurisdiction. 
 

SECTION 11.  SEVERABILITY: It is the intention of the City Council that this Ordinance, and every 
provision thereof, shall be considered severable, and the invalidity or unconstitutionality of any section, 
clause, provision or portion of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other 
portion of this Ordinance. Both Atmos Energy and the City expressly recognize that this Ordinance 
creates a binding and enforceable contract between them, which contract may not be amended without 
written consent of both Atmos Energy and the City. Should any inconsistency or conflict exist now or in 
the future between the provisions of this Ordinance and the City’s charter or another ordinance or 
ordinances, then the provisions of this Ordinance shall control to the extent of such inconsistency or 
conflict to the extent not prohibited by law. 

 
SECTION 12. REPEALER: Each and every other ordinance or part thereof which is directly in 

conflict with any provision herein as to the grant of a franchise for natural gas services and the regulation 
thereof is hereby repealed. 
 

SECTION 13. EFFECTIVE DATE:  If Atmos Energy accepts this ordinance, it becomes effective as 
of June 6, 2022. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas on this the 6th 
day of June, 2022. 
      CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 
 
      ___________________________________  
      Kevin Fowler, Mayor 
      City of Rockwall, Texas 
ATTEST:  
 
 
________________________________   05/16/2022______ 
Kristy Teague, City Secretary    1st reading: 
 
        06/06/2022______ 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:     2nd reading:  
 
 
________________________________ 
Frank Garza, City Attorney 

29



 
 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 
COUNTY OF ROCKWALL  § 
CITY OF ROCKWALL  § 
 
 I, Kristy Teague, City Secretary of the City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, do 
hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of an ordinance passed 
by the City Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas, at a regular session, held on the 6th day of 
June, 2022, as it appears of record in the official minutes of said meeting. 
 WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL OF SAID CITY, this the 6th day of May, 2022. 
 
 

___________________________ 
       Kristy Teague, City Secretary 
       City of Rockwall, Texas 

30



 CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 22-29 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY 
OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO 
APPROVE A CHANGE IN ZONING FROM A SINGLE-FAMILY 
ESTATE 4.0 (SFE-4.0) DISTRICT TO A SINGLE-FAMILY 1 (SF-
1) DISTRICT FOR A FIVE (5) ACRE TRACT OF LAND 
IDENTIFIED AS LOT 5 OF THE MUSTANG ACRES ADDITION, 
CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND 
BEING MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED IN 
EXHIBIT ‘A’ AND EXHIBIT ‘B’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; 
PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A 
PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR 
A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City has received a request from John and Rita Canavan for the approval of a 
Zoning Change from an Single-Family Estate 4.0 (SFE-4.0) District to a Single-Family 1 (SF-1) 
District for a five (5) acre tract of land identified as Lot 5 of the Mustang Acres Addition, City of 
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family Estate 4.0 (SFE-4.0) District, addressed 
as 714 Clem Road, and more fully described and depicted in Exhibit ‘A’ and Exhibit ‘B’ of this 
ordinance, which hereinafter shall be referred to as the Subject Property and incorporated by 
reference herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body 
of the City of Rockwall in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of 
the City of Rockwall have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held 
public hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally and to all 
persons interested in and situated in the affected area, and in the vicinity thereof, and the 
governing body in the exercise of its legislative discretion, has concluded that the Unified 
Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] should be amended as follows: 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1. That the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of 
Rockwall, Texas, as heretofore amended, be and the same are hereby amended by amending 
the zoning map of the City of Rockwall so as to change the zoning of the Subject Property from 
an Single-Family Estate 4.0 (SFE-4.0) District to a Single-Family 1 (SF-1) District;  
 
SECTION 2. That the Subject Property shall be used only in the manner and for the purposes 
provided for a Single-Family 1 (SF-1) District as stipulated in Subsection 01.01, Use of Land and 
Buildings, of Article 04, Permissible Uses, and Subsection 03.05, Single-Family 1 (SF-1) District, 
of Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 
20-02] of the City of Rockwall as heretofore amended, as amended herein by granting of this 
zoning change, and as maybe amended in the future; 
 

31



SECTION 3. That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in the 
zoning described herein; 
 
SECTION 4. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance 
shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of 
fine not to exceed the sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offence and each and 
every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense; 

 
SECTION 5. If any section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance or the application of that 
section, paragraph, or provision to any person, firm, corporation or situation is for any reason 
judged invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of this 
ordinance or the application of any other section, paragraph or provision to any other person, firm, 
corporation or situation, nor shall adjudication affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of 
the Unified Development Code (UDC) of the City of Rockwall, Texas, and the City Council 
declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and applications of the ordinance without 
the invalid parts and to this end the provisions for this ordinance are declared to be severable; 
and 
 
SECTION 6. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance be and the same are hereby repealed, and all other ordinances of the City of Rockwall 
not in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect;  
 
SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 6TH DAY OF JUNE, 2022. 

 
      

 Kevin Fowler, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 
    
Kristy Teague, City Secretary 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 

 
 

1st Reading:  May 16, 2022 
 
2nd Reading: June 6, 2022 
 

32



Legal Description: A Five (5) Acre Tract of Land Identified as Lot 5 of the Mustang Acres Addition 
Addressed As: 714 Clem Road 
 

 
 
 

33



 

34



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 22-30 
 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-278 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC) [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE 
CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AS 
PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE 
PERMIT (SUP) TO ALLOW A TOWING AND IMPOUND YARD 
ON A 1.804-ACRE TRACT OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS TRACT 2-
8 OF THE J. R. JOHNSON SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 128, CITY 
OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS; AND MORE 
SPECIFICALLY DEPICTED AND DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ 
AND EXHIBIT ‘B’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE 
NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City has received a request from Kim Lemmond of Dallas Towboys for the 
approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) to allow for a Towing and Impound Yard on a 1.804-acre 
tract of land identified as Tract 2-8 of the J. R. Johnson Survey, Abstract No. 128, City of Rockwall, 
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Heavy Commercial (HC) District, addressed as 227 National 
Drive, and being more specifically depicted and described in Exhibit ‘A’ and Exhibit ‘B’ of this 
ordinance, which herein after shall be referred to as the Subject Property and incorporated by 
reference herein; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body 
of the City of Rockwall, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of 
the City of Rockwall, have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held 
public hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally, and to all 
persons interested in and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity thereof, the governing 
body in the exercise of its legislative discretion has concluded that the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall should be amended as follows: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas; 
 
SECTION 1.  That the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of 
Rockwall, as heretofore amended, be and the same is hereby amended so as to grant a Specific 
Use Permit (SUP) allowing a Towing and Impound Yard as stipulated by Subsection 01.02, Land 
Use Schedule, of Article 04, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) 
[Ordinance No. 20-02] on the Subject Property; and, 
 
SECTION 2.  That the Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall be subject to the requirements set forth in 
Subsection 02.03, Conditional Land Use Standards, of Article 04, Permissible Uses, and 
Subsection 04.01, General Commercial District Standards, and Subsection 04.06, Heavy 
Commercial (HC) District, of Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified 
Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] and Article VI, Wrecker and Towing Services, 

35



of Chapter 12, Businesses and Sales, of the Municipal Code of Ordinances -- as heretofore 
amended and as may be amended in the future --, and with the following conditions: 
 
2.1. OPERATIONAL CONDITIONS 
 

The following conditions pertain to the operation of a Towing and Impound Yard on the 
Subject Property and conformance to these conditions are required for continued operations: 

 
(1) The development of the Subject Property shall generally conform to the Concept Plan as 

depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance. 
 

(2) All impounded vehicles shall be limited to a maximum of seventy-five (75) days of on-site 
storage. 

 
(3) All impounded vehicles shall be stored behind a solid screening fence (including the 

gates) that conforms to the requirements of Article 08, Landscape and Fence Standards, 
of the Unified Development Code (UDC) on the Subject Property.  In addition, all 
impounded vehicles shall be stored behind the front façade of the building. 

 
(4) The storage of boats, trailers, and tires shall be prohibited. Only towed vehicles may be 

stored on the subject property. 
 

(5) The landscaping on the subject property shall be updated to meet the City’s minimum 
standards.  Specifically, one (1) canopy and one (1) accent tree per 50-linear feet of 
frontage shall be installed and maintained in accordance with the requirements of Article 
08, Landscape and Fence Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC). 

 
(6) The storage or impoundment of in-operable vehicles on the subject property shall be 

prohibited. 
 

(7) A concrete parking lot with a capacity for seven (7) vehicles and conforming to the City’s 
standards shall be provided.  

 
2.2. COMPLIANCE 
 

Approval of this ordinance in accordance with Subsection 02.02, Specific Use Permits (SUP), 
of Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development 
Code (UDC) will require compliance to the following: 
 
(1) Upon obtaining a Certificate of Occupancy (CO), should the business owner operating 

under the guidelines of this ordinance fail to meet the minimum operational requirements 
set forth herein and outlined in the Unified Development Code (UDC), the City may (after 
proper notice) initiate proceedings to revoke the Specific Use Permit (SUP) in accordance 
with Subsection 02.02(F), Revocation, of Article 11, Development Applications and 
Revision Procedures, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02]. 

 
SECTION 4.  That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in zoning 
described herein. 
 
SECTION 5. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance be, and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of that conflict. 
 

36



SECTION 6.  Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance 
shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of 
fine not to exceed the sum of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) for each offence and 
each and every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 
 
SECTION 7.  If any section or provision of this ordinance or the application of that section or 
provision to any person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance is for any reason judged 
invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance or the 
application of any other section or provision to any other person, firm, corporation, situation or 
circumstance, and the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and 
applications of the ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions of this 
ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

SECTION 8. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 6TH DAY OF JUNE, 2022. 
 
 
     

 Kevin Fowler, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Kristy Teague, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 
 

 
1st Reading:  May 16, 2022 
 
2nd Reading: June 6, 2022 
 
 

37



Address: 227 National Drive 
Legal Description: Tract 2-8 of the J. R. Johnson Survey, Abstract No. 128 

 

 
  

38



 

39



  CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 22-31 
 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-279 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 
CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 20-38] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC 
USE PERMIT (SUP) TO ALLOW FOR AN ACCESSORY BUILDING ON 
A 3.02-ACRE TRACT OF LAND ZONED SINGLE-FAMILY ESTATE 2.0 
(SFE-2.0) DISTRICT AND IDENTIFIED AS LOT 7R, LOFLAND LAKE 
ESTATES NO. 2 ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL 
COUNTY, TEXAS; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; 
PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OR FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM 
OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, a request has been made by Carlos and Crystal Solis for the approval of a Specific 
Use Permit (SUP) for an accessory building that exceeds the maximum overall square footage 
permitted per lot as stipulated by the Unified Development Code (UDC), situated on a 3.02-acre 
tract of land, zoned Single-Family Estate 2.0 (SFE-2.0) District, and being identified as Lot 7R, 
Lofland Lake Estates No. 2 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, addressed as 
2914 S. FM-549, and being more specifically depicted in Exhibit ‘A’ of this ordinance, which herein 
after shall be referred to as the Subject Property and incorporated by reference herein; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body 
of the City of Rockwall, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of 
the City of Rockwall, have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held 
public hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally, and to all 
persons interested in and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity thereof, the governing 
body in the exercise of its legislative discretion has concluded that the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-38] of the City of Rockwall should be amended as follows: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1. That the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-38] of the City of 
Rockwall, as heretofore amended, be and the same is hereby amended so as to grant a Specific 
Use Permit (SUP) allowing for the construction of a accessory building that does not conform to 
the minimum requirements for accessory buildings in a Single-Family Estate 2.0 (SFE-2.0) District 
as stipulated by Article 04, Permissible Uses, and Article 05, District Development Standards, of 
the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-38] on the Subject Property; and 
 
SECTION 2.  That the Subject Property shall be used only in the manner and for the purposes 
described in this Specific Use Permit (SUP) ordinance and as specifically set forth in Section 3.3, 
Single Family Estate 2.0 (SFE-2.0) District, of Article 05, District Development Standards, of the 
Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-38] of the City of Rockwall as heretofore 
amended, as amended herein by the granting of this zoning change, and as my be amended in 
the future, and shall be subject to the additional following conditions:    
 
2.1 OPERATIONAL CONDITIONS 
 

40



The following conditions pertain to the operation of an accessory building on the Subject Property 
and conformance to these requirements is necessary for continued operations: 
 

1) The Accessory Building shall generally conform to the concept plan and the conceptual 
building elevations depicted in Exhibits ‘B’ & ‘C’ of this ordinance. 
 

2) The accessory building shall not exceed a maximum size of 390 SF; 
 

3) The subject property shall not have more than one (2) accessory buildings; 
 

4) The accessory building shall not exceed a maximum overall SF of 1,275 SF;  
 

5) The accessory building shall not be operated as a commercial use; and,    
 

6) The accessory building is subject to administrative review in the event that the Subject 
Property is sold, conveyed or altered in any manner. 

 
2.2 COMPLIANCE 
 

Approval of this ordinance in accordance with Subsection 02.02, Specific Use Permits (SUP), of 
Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) will require compliance to the following: 
 

1) Upon obtaining a Building Permit, should the business owner operating under the 
guidelines of this ordinance fail to meet the minimum operational requirements set forth 
herein and outlined in the Unified Development Code (UDC), the City may (after proper 
notice) initiate proceedings to revoke the Specific Use Permit (SUP) in accordance with 
Subsection 02.02(F), Revocation, of Article 11, Development Applications and Revision 
Procedures, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02]. 

 
SECTION 3. That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in zoning 
described herein. 

 
SECTION 4. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance be, and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of that conflict. 

 
SECTION 5. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance 
shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of 
fine not to exceed the sum of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) for each offence and 
each and every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 

 
SECTION 6. If any section or provision of this ordinance or the application of that section or 
provision to any person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance is for any reason judged 
invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance or the 
application of any other section or provision to any other person, firm, corporation, situation or 
circumstance, and the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and 
applications of the ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions of this 
ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 

 
 
 
 

41



PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 6th DAY OF JUNE, 2022. 

 
 
 
      
 Kevin Fowler, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
    
Kristy Teague, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 
 

 
1st Reading:  May 16, 2022 
 
2nd Reading: June 6, 2022 
 
 

42



Address: 2914 S. FM-549 
Legal Description: Lot 7R of the Lofland Lake Estates No. 2 Addition

43



 

44



 

45



 CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 22-32 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 
CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS 
HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO CHANGE THE ZONING FROM 
AN AGRICULTURAL (AG) DISTRICT AND COMMERCIAL (C) 
DISTRICT TO A PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 96 (PD-96) 
FOR LIMITED COMMERCIAL (C) DISTRICT LAND USES ON THE 
SUBJECT PROPERTY, BEING A 13.55-ACRE TRACT OF LAND 
IDENTIFIED AS LOTS 8R, 9R, & 10 OF THE RAINBOW ACRES 
SUBDIVSION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS 
AND MORE FULLY DESCRIBED HEREIN BY EXHIBIT ‘A’ AND 
DEPICTED HEREIN BY EXHIBIT ‘B’; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL 
CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO 
EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR 
EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City has received a request from Fred Gans of CDC Equities, LLC for a change 
in zoning from an Agricultural (AG) District and Commercial (C) District to a Planned Development 
District for limited Commercial (C) District land uses for a 13.55-acre tract of land identified as 
Lots 8R, 9R, & 10 of the Rainbow Acres Subdivision, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, 
zoned Agricultural (AG) District and Commercial (C) District, and more fully described in Exhibit 
‘A’ and depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance, which hereinafter shall be referred to as the 
Subject Property and incorporated by reference herein; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body 
of the City of Rockwall in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of 
the City of Rockwall have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held 
public hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally and to all 
persons interested in and situated in the affected area, and in the vicinity thereof, and the 
governing body in the exercise of its legislative discretion, has concluded that the Unified 
Development Code [Ordinance No. 20-02] should be amended as follows: 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1. That the Subject Property shall be used only in the manner and for the purposes 
authorized by this Planned Development District Ordinance and the Unified Development Code 
[Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall as heretofore amended, as amended herein by 
granting this zoning change, and as may be amended in the future; 
 
SECTION 2. That development of the Subject Property shall generally be in accordance with 
the Concept Plan, depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance, attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by reference as Exhibit ‘C’, which is deemed hereby to be a condition of approval of the 
amended zoning classification for the Subject Property; 
 

46



SECTION 3. That development of any buildings on the Subject Property shall generally be in 
accordance with the Concept Building Elevations, depicted in Exhibit ‘D’ of this ordinance, 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit ‘D’, which is deemed hereby to 
be a condition of approval of the amended zoning classification for the Subject Property; 
 
SECTION 4. That development of the Subject Property shall generally be in accordance with 
the Development Standards, outlined in Exhibit ‘E’ of this ordinance, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit ‘E’, which is deemed hereby to be a condition of 
approval of the amended zoning classification for the Subject Property; 
 
SECTION 5. That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in the 
zoning described herein; 

 
SECTION 6.   That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this 
ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a 
penalty of fine not to exceed the sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense and 
each and every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense; 
 
SECTION 7.   That if any section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance or the application of 
that section, paragraph, or provision to any person, firm, corporation or situation is for any reason 
judged invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of this 
ordinance or the application of any other section, paragraph or provision to any other person, firm, 
corporation or situation, nor shall adjudication affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of 
the Unified Development Code, and the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid 
portions and applications of the ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions 
for this ordinance are declared to be severable; 
 
SECTION 8.  The standards in this ordinance shall control in the event of a conflict between this 
ordinance and any provision of the Unified Development Code or any provision of the City Code, 
ordinance, resolution, rule, regulation, or procedure that provides a specific standard that is 
different from and inconsistent with this ordinance. References to zoning district regulations or 
other standards in the Unified Development Code (including references to the Unified 
Development Code), and references to overlay districts, in this ordinance or any of the Exhibits 
hereto are those in effect on the date this ordinance was passed and approved by the City Council 
of the City of Rockwall, Texas; 
 
SECTION 9.  That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage; 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 6TH DAY OF JUNE, 2022. 

 
 

      
 Kevin Fowler, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 

 
    
Kristy Teague, City Secretary 

 
 
 

47



APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 

    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 
 

 
 

1st Reading:  May 16, 2022 
 
2nd Reading:  June 6, 2022 

48



BEING a 13.541-acre tract of land situate in the W.W. Ford Survey, Abstract No. 80, City of 
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, and a portion of a 70.06-acre tract of land described by deed 
conveyed to J. A. Wilkerson, Jr. dated March 29, 1941, from J. H. Weddington, recorded in Vol. 
36, Page 522, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas (D.R.R.C.T.), said 13.541-acre tract of land 
being more particularly described as follows: 
 
Lots 8R & 9R, Replat of Rainbo Acres Addition, Lots 8 and 9, an Addition to the City of Rockwall, 
Rockwall County, Texas, according to the plat thereof recorded in Cabinet F, Slides 377 and 378, 
Plat Records, Rockwall County, Texas (P.R.R.C.T.); 
 
Together with, Lots 10 and 11 of Rainbo Acres Subdivision as shown by Plat recorded in Cabinet 
A, Slide 20, Plat Records of Rockwall County, Texas (P.R.R.C.T.), and being further described 
by metes and bound as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a ½” iron rod found being common to the westerly corner of said Lot 8R Rainbo 
Acres Addition and the southerly corner of Lot 7 shown in said Cabinet A, Slide 20, said iron rod 
also being on the northeasterly right-of-way line of F.M. 3097 Horizon Road (a 100 foot width 
public right-of-way); 
 
THENCE departing said right-of-way line, North 44°39’29” East, along the line common with the 
northwesterly line of said Lot 8R and the southeasterly line of Lots 7 & 12 of said Rainbo Acres 
Subdivision, Cabinet A, Slide 20, 812.02 feet to a ½” iron rod found for the easterly corner of 
said Lot 12 and the southerly corner of Lot 25, in accordance with the Replat of Rainbo Acres, 
Inst.#20210000007850, Plat Records, Rockwall County, Texas (P.R.R.C.T.); 
 
THENCE North 44°10’42” East, along the line common with the northwesterly line of said Lot 8R 
and the southeasterly line of said Lot 25, 266.49 feet to a ½” iron rod found for the northerly corner 
of said Lot 8R and the easterly corner of said Lot 25, said point being on the westerly line of a tract 
of land described by deed to Wallace Land Partners, recorded in Vol. 2017, Page 76, Deed 
Records, Rockwall County, Texas (D.R.R.C.T.); 
 
THENCE South 00°36’51” East, along the line common with the westerly line of said Wallace Land 
Partners and the easterly line of said Lots 8R & 9R, 682.52 feet to a ½” iron rod found for the 
easterly corner of said Lot 9R and the northerly corner of said Lot 10, Rainbo Acres Subdivision, 
said point being on the westerly line of said Wallace Land Partners tract; 
 
THENCE South 00°58’38” East, along the line common with the westerly line of said Wallace Land 
Partners, the westerly line of a tract of land described by deed to Patricia Lou Wallace Luecke, 
recorded in Vol. 186, Page 11, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas (D.R.R.C.T.) and the 
easterly line of said Lots 10 & 11, Rainbo Acres Subdivision, 862.18 feet to a ½” iron rod found 
for the southerly corner of said Lot 11 and the westerly corner of said Patricia Lou Wallace Luecke 
tract, said point being on the northeasterly right-of-way line of F.M. 3097 Horizon Road (a 100 foot 
width public right-of-way); 
 
THENCE North 45°05’54” West, along the line common with said northeasterly right-of-way line 
and the southwesterly line of said Lots 11 & 10, Rainbo Acres Subdivision and said Lots 9R & 
8R, Rainbo Acres Addition, 1099.06 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 13.541 
acres of land, more or less. 
 
Reference bearing basis being grid north, Texas state plane coordinates, north central zone, 
NAD83 (adjustment 2011, epoch date 2010), determined by GPS observations.

49



  

50



51



52



 
 
 

53



All development occurring within the boundaries of the Subject Property shall conform to the 
development and land use standards contained in this Planned Development District ordinance.  
Development and land use standards not explicitly mentioned in this ordinance shall be governed by 
Ordinance No. 20-02 and be subject to all pertinent development and land use standards for a 
Commercial (C) District as specified by the Unified Development Code (UDC).  All sections of the 
Unified Development Code (UDC) referenced in this section of the Planned Development District 
Ordinance shall be as is and as amended in the future. 
 
E.1 PURPOSE. 
 

The purpose of this Planned Development District is to provide provisions that control the 
development of a Mini-Warehouse Facility and Office/Warehouse Buildings on the subject 
property.  
 

E.2 LAND USE AND DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS. 
 

(1) Permitted Uses. Unless specifically provided for by this Planned Development District 
Ordinance, only those uses permitted within the Commercial (C) District, as stipulated 
by Article 04, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code (UDC), as 
heretofore amended, as amended herein by granting this zoning change, and as may 
be amended in the future; however, the following conditions shall apply: 

 
(a) The following land uses shall be permitted By-Right: 

 

• Mini-Warehouse1 
• Warehouse2 

 
Notes: 
 
(1):  The following Conditional Land Use Standards are required with the establishment of this 

land use: 
 

(1) A caretakers quarters shall prohibited in conjunction with the Mini-Warehouse land 
use. 

(2) The front, side and rear building setback areas shall be landscaped.  Landscaping 
should be clustered, creating interesting relief from the large industrial nature of the 
buildings.  This will be reviewed at the time of site plan for conformance. 

(3) The commercial operation of rental trucks and trailers shall be prohibited. 
(4) Businesses shall be permitted to operate in the individual units; however, the business 

shall conform to the permitted uses as specified in this Planned Development District 
Ordinance. 

(5) No outside storage of any kind shall be allowed. 
(6) Lighting standards shall be limited to 20-feet. 

 
(2):  As an accessory use to an office. 

 
(b) The following land uses shall be expressly Prohibited: 

 

• Agricultural Uses on Unplatted Land 
• Animal Boarding/Kennel without Outside Pens 
• Animal Clinic for Small Animals without Outdoor Pens 
• Animal Hospital or Clinic 
• Community Garden 
• Urban Farm 
• Covenant, Monastery, or Temple 
• Limited Service Hotel 

54



• Full-Service Hotel 
• Residence Hotel 
• Motel 
• Assisted Living Facility 
• Blood Plasma Donor Center 
• Cemetery/Mausoleum 
• Church/House of Worship 
• College, University, or Seminary 
• Convalescent Care Facility/Nursing Home 
• Congregate Care Facility/Elderly Housing 
• Daycare Facility 
• Emergency Ground Ambulance Services 
• Government Facility 
• Hospice 
• Hospital 
• Public Library 
• Mortuary or Funeral Chapel 
• Local Post Office 
• Regional Post Office 
• Public or Private School 
• Financial Institution with a Drive-Through 
• Temporary Carnival, Circus, or Amusement Ride 
• Indoor Commercial Amusement/Recreation 
• Outdoor Commercial Amusement/Recreation 
• Public or Private Community or Recreation Club as an Accessory Use 
• Private Country Club 
• Golf Driving Range 
• Temporary Fundraising Events by Non-Profit 
• Indoor Gun Club with Skeet or Target Range 
• Health Club or Gym 
• Private Club, Lodge or Fraternal Organization 
• Private Sports Arena, Stadium, and/or Track 
• Tennis Courts (i.e. Not Accessory to a Public or Private Country Club) 
• Theater 
• Antique/Collectible Store 
• Astrologer, Hypnotist, or Psychic 
• Banquet Facility/Event Hall 
• Portable Beverage Service Facility 
• Brew Pub 
• Business School 
• Catering Service 
• Temporary Christmas Tree Sales Lot and/or Similar 
• Copy Center 
• Craft/Micro Brewery, Distillery and/or Winery 
• Incidental Display 
• Food Trucks/Trailers 
• Garden Supply/Plant Nursery 
• General Personal Service 
• Hair Salon and/or Manicurist 
• Laundromat with Dropoff/Pickup Services 
• Self Service Laundromat 
• Massage Therapist 
• Private Museum or Art Gallery 

55



• Night Club, Discotheque, or Dance Hall 
• Pawn Shop 
• Permanent Cosmetics 
• Pet Shop 
• Temporary Real Estate Sales Office 
• Rental Store without Outside Storage and/or Display 
• Restaurant with less than 2,000 SF with Drive-Through or Drive-In 
• Restaurant with less than 2,000 SF without Drive-Through or Drive-In 
• Restaurant with 2,000 SF or more with Drive-Through or Drive-In 
• Restaurant with 2,000 SF or more without Drive-Through or Drive-In 
• Retail Store with Gasoline Sales that has Two (2) or less Dispensers (i.e. a Maximum 

of Four [4] Vehicles) 
• Retail Store with Gasoline Sales that has more than Two (2) Dispensers 
• Secondhand Dealer 
• Tailor, Clothing, and/or Apparel Shop 
• Bail Bond Service 
• Building and Landscape Material with Outside Storage 
• Electrical, Watch, Clock, Jewelry and/or Similar Repair 
• Furniture Upholstery/Refinishing and Resale 
• Rental, Sales and Service of Heavy Machinery and Equipment 
• Locksmith 
• Shoe and Boot Repair and Sales 
• Trade School 
• Minor Automotive Repair Garage 
• Automobile Rental 
• New or Used Boat and Trailer Dealership 
• Full Service Car Wash and Auto Detail 
• Self Service Car Wash 
• New Motor Vehicle Dealership for Cars and Light Trucks 
• Used Motor Vehicle Dealership for Cars and Light Trucks 
• Commercial Parking 
• Recreational Vehicle (RV) Sales and Service 
• Service Station 
• Temporary Asphalt or Concrete Batch Plant 
• Mining and Extraction of Sand, Gravel, Oil and/or Other Materials 
• Commercial Antenna 
• Antenna for an Amateur Radio 
• Radio Broadcasting 

 
(2) Density and Dimensional Requirements. Unless specifically provided by this Planned 

Development District ordinance, the density and dimensional standards stipulated by 
the Commercial (C) District, as specified by Article 05, District Development 
Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) are applicable to all development 
of the Subject Property.  All development shall also conform to the following additional 
standards: 
 
(a) Building Height. The building height for all buildings shall be limited to a maximum 

height of 36-feet.  
 
(3) Architectural and Building Standards. Unless specifically provided by this Planned 

Development District ordinance, the development standards stipulated by the 
Commercial (C) District, as specified by Article 05, District Development Standards, 
of the Unified Development Code (UDC) are applicable to all development of the 

56



Subject Property; however, the buildings shall generally adhere to the Concept 
Building Elevations contained in Exhibit ‘D’.  In addition, buildings fronting onto or that 
have visibility from Horizon Road (FM-3097) shall meet the General Overlay District 
Standards stipulated by Section 06, Overlay Districts, of Article 05, District 
Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC).  These standards 
shall only apply to the building façades front onto or that have visibility from Horizon 
Road (FM-3097).  
 

(4) Landscaping and Hardscape Standards.  Unless specifically provided by this Planned 
Development District ordinance, the landscape and hardscape standards stipulated 
by Article 05, District Development Standards, and Article 08, Landscape and Fence 
Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) are applicable to all development 
of the Subject Property.  In addition, the landscape buffer requirements for the 
development of the Subject Property shall be as follows: 

 
(a) Landscape Buffer and Sidewalk (Horizon Road). A minimum of a 20-foot 

landscape buffer shall be provided along Horizon Road (FM-3097) (outside of and 
beyond any required right-of-way dedication), and shall incorporate ground cover, 
a built-up undulating berm and shrubbery along the entire length of the frontage.  
Berms and shrubbery shall have a minimum height of 30-inches. In addition, three 
(3) canopy trees and four (4) accent trees shall be planted per 100-feet of linear 
frontage.  A meandering/curvilinear six (6) foot trail shall be constructed within the 
20-foot landscape buffer.   

 
(b) Landscape Areas Adjacent to the Eastern Property Line. A minimum of a ten (10) 

foot landscape buffer shall be provided adjacent to the eastern boundary (i.e. 
adjacent to Tracts 44-01 & 45-5 of the W. W. Ford Survey, Abstract No. 80), and 
shall incorporate ground cover and a shrubbery along the entire length of the 
frontage.  Within this buffer the applicant shall provide canopy trees on 20-foot 
centers along the entire adjacency.  

 
(5) Variances. The variance procedures and standards for approval that are set forth in 

the Unified Development Code (UDC) shall apply to any application for variances to 
this ordinance. 

57



 CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 22-33 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY 
OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO 
APPROVE A CHANGE IN ZONING FROM AN AGRICULTURAL 
(AG) DISTRICT TO A LIGHT INDUSTRIAL (LI) DISTRICT FOR A 
14.78-ACRE TRACT OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS TRACTS 8 & 8-1 
OF THE J. H. BAILEY SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 34, CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING 
MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ AND 
FURTHER DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘B’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; 
PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A 
PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR 
A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City has received a request from Hellen Byrd on behalf of Donald Valk for the 
approval of a Zoning Change from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Light Industrial (LI) District for 
a 14.78-acre tract of land identified as Tracts 8 & 8-1 of the J. H. Bailey Survey, Abstract No. 34, 
City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, situated within the SH-
276 Overlay (SH-276 OV) District, addressed as 4649 SH-276, and more fully described in Exhibit 
‘A’ and depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance, which hereinafter shall be referred to as the 
Subject Property and incorporated by reference herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body 
of the City of Rockwall in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of 
the City of Rockwall have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held 
public hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally and to all 
persons interested in and situated in the affected area, and in the vicinity thereof, and the 
governing body in the exercise of its legislative discretion, has concluded that the Unified 
Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] should be amended as follows: 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1. That the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of 
Rockwall, Texas, as heretofore amended, be and the same are hereby amended by amending 
the zoning map of the City of Rockwall so as to change the zoning of the Subject Property from 
Agricultural (AG) District to a Light Industrial (LI) District;  
 
SECTION 2. That the Subject Property shall be used only in the manner and for the purposes 
provided for a Light Industrial (LI) District as stipulated in Section 01.01, Use of Land and 
Buildings, of Article 04, Permissible Uses and Section 05.01, General Industrial District 
Standards; Section 05.02, Light Industrial (LI) District; Section 06.02, General Overlay District 
Standards, of Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall as heretofore amended, as amended herein 
by granting of this zoning change, and as maybe amended in the future; 

58



 
SECTION 3. That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in the 
zoning described herein; 
 
SECTION 4. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance 
shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of 
fine not to exceed the sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offence and each and 
every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense; 

 
SECTION 5. If any section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance or the application of that 
section, paragraph, or provision to any person, firm, corporation or situation is for any reason 
judged invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of this 
ordinance or the application of any other section, paragraph or provision to any other person, firm, 
corporation or situation, nor shall adjudication affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of 
the Unified Development Code (UDC) of the City of Rockwall, Texas, and the City Council 
declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and applications of the ordinance without 
the invalid parts and to this end the provisions for this ordinance are declared to be severable; 
and 
 
SECTION 6. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance be and the same are hereby repealed, and all other ordinances of the City of Rockwall 
not in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect;  
 
SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 6TH DAY OF JUNE, 2022. 

 
      

 Kevin Fowler, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 
    
Kristy Teague, City Secretary 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 

 
 

1st Reading:  May 16, 2022 
 
2nd Reading: June 6, 2022 
 

59



BEING ALL THAT CERTAIN LOT, TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND SITUATED IN THE J.H. BAILEY 
SURVEY, ABSTRACT NOS. 34 & 44, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS AND BEING A PART OF A 15.00-
ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS DESCRIBED IN DEED TO GEORGE R. HEARD AND MITZI HEARD, AS 
RECORDED IN VOLUME 1202, PAGE 50 OF THE DEED RECORDS OF ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, 
AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS; 
 
BEGINNING AT A 5/8” IRON ROD WITH RED CAP FOUND IN THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 
STATE HIGHWAY NO. 276, SAID POINT BEING IN THE WEST LINE OF SAID 15.00-ACRE GEORGE R. 
HEARD TRACT AND THE EAST LINE OF A 15.00-ACRE TRACT OF LAND AS DESCRIBED IN DEED 
TO COMMERCIAL CONSTRUCTION SPECIALTIES, LP, A TEXAS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, AND 
RECORDED IN INSTRUMENT NUMBER 20190000023410 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF 
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, SAID POINT BEING SOUTH AT A DISTANCE OF 18.28-FEET FROM 
THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 15.00-ACRE COMMERCIAL CONSTRUCTION SPECIALTIES, LP 
TRACT; 
 
THENCE SOUTH 72° 55' 54” EAST AND FOLLOWING ALONG THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 
STATE HIGHWAY NO. 276 FOR A DISTANCE OF 86.96-FEET TO A 5/8” IRON ROD SET FOR CORNER; 
 
THENCE SOUTH 89° 20' 24” EAST AND FOLLOWING ALONG THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 
STATE HIGHWAY NO. 276 FOR A DISTANCE OF 159.20-FEET TO A TXDOT MONUMENT FOUND FOR 
CORNER IN THE EAST LINE OF AFORESAID 15.00-ACRE GEORGE R. HEARD TRACT AND THE 
WEST LINE OF A 10.04-ACRE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO MICHAEL G. SARAGUSA AS 
RECORDED IN VOLUME 4131, PAGE 153 OF THE DEED RECORDS OF ROCKWALL COUNTY, 
TEXAS; 
 
THENCE SOUTH 00° 00' 00” EAST AND DEPARTING THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID 
STATE HIGHWAY NO. 276 AND FOLLOWING THE EAST LINE OF SAID 15.00-ACRE GEORGE R. 
HEARD TRACT, COMMON WITH THE WEST LINE OF SAID 10.04-ACRE MICHAEL G. SARAGUSA 
TRACT FOR A DISTANCE OF 2650.60-FEET TO A 1/2” IRON ROD FOUND FOR THE SOUTHEAST 
CORNER OF SAID 15.00-ACRE GEORGE R. HEARD TRACT AND THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF 
SAID 10.04-ACRE MICHAEL G. SARAGUSA TRACT; 
 
THENCE SOUTH 89° 54' 43” WEST AND FOLLOWING ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 15.00-ACRE 
GEORGE R. HEARD TRACT FOR A DISTANCE OF 242.32-FEET TO A POINT FOR CORNER, FROM 
WHICH 1/2” IRON ROD FOUND BEARS NORTH 62° 32' 19” WEST AT A DISTANCE OF 0.76-FEET, 
SAID POINT BEING THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 15.00-ACRE GEORGE R. HEARD TRACT 
AND THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF AFORESAID 15.00-ACRE COMMERCIAL CONSTRUCTION 
SPECIALTIES, LP TRACT; 
 
THENCE NORTH 00° 00' 00” WEST AND FOLLOWING ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID 15.00-ACRE 
GEORGE R. HEARD TRACT AND THE EAST LINE OF SAID 15.00-ACRE COMMERCIAL 
CONSTRUCTION SPECIALTIES, LP TRACT, FOR A DISTANCE OF 2678.33-FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 14.7772-ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS. 
       
 
  

60



  

61



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 22-34 
 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-280 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 8 (PD-8) AND THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE 
(UDC) [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, 
SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) FOR 
RESIDENTIAL INFILL IN AN ESTABLISHED SUBDIVISION TO 
ALLOW THE CONSTRUCTION OF A SINGLE-FAMILY HOME 
ON A 0.1214-ACRE PARCEL OF LAND, IDENTIFIED AS LOT 
22, BLOCK B, CHANDLER’S LANDING, PHASE 4 ADDITION, 
CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS; AND 
MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED IN 
EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL 
CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO 
EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) 
FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City has received a request from Ruben Chapa for the approval of a Specific Use 
Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision to allow the construction of a 
single-family home on a 0.1214-acre parcel of land being described as Lot 22, Block B, Chandler’s 
Landing, Phase 4 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned 
Development District 8 (PD-8) for single-family residential land uses, addressed as 5405 Ranger  
Drive, and being more specifically described and depicted in Exhibit ‘A’ of  this ordinance, which 
herein after shall be referred to as the Subject Property and incorporated by reference herein; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body of 
the City of Rockwall, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of the 
City of Rockwall, have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held public 
hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally, and to all persons 
interested in and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity thereof, the governing body in the 
exercise of its legislative discretion has concluded that the Unified Development Code (UDC) 
[Ordinance No. 20-02] and Planned Development District 8 (PD-8) of the City of Rockwall should 
be amended as follows: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas; 
 
SECTION 1. That the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] and Planned 
Development District 8 (PD-8) of the City of Rockwall, as heretofore amended, be and the same 
is hereby amended so as to grant a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an 
Established Subdivision to allow for the construction of a single-family home in an established 
subdivision in accordance with Article 04, Permissible Uses, the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] on the Subject Property; and, 
 

62



SECTION 2. That the Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall be subject to the requirements set forth in 
Subsection 03.01, General Residential District Standards, and Subsection 03.07, Single-Family 
7 (SF-7) District, of Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] and to the requirements set forth in Planned Development District 
8 (PD-8) -- as heretofore amended and may be amended in the future -- and with the following 
conditions: 
 
2.1 OPERATIONAL CONDITIONS 
 
The following conditions pertain to the construction of a single-family home on the Subject 
Property and conformance to these operational conditions are required: 
 
1) The development of the Subject Property shall generally conform to the Residential Plot Plan 

as depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance. 
 

2) The construction of a single-family home on the Subject Property shall generally conform to 
the Building Elevations depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance. 

 
3) Once construction of the single-family home has been completed, inspected, and accepted 

by the City of Rockwall, this Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall expire, and no further action by 
the property owner shall be required. 

  
2.2 COMPLIANCE 
 
Approval of this ordinance in accordance with Subsection 02.02, Specific Use Permits (SUP) of 
Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) will require the Subject Property to comply with the following: 
 
1) Upon obtaining a Building Permit, should the contractor operating under the guidelines of this 

ordinance fail to meet the minimum operational requirements set forth herein and outlined in 
the Unified Development Code (UDC), the City may (after proper notice) initiate proceedings 
to revoke the Specific Use Permit (SUP) in accordance with Subsection 02.02(F), Revocation, 
of Article 11, Development Applications and Revision Procedures, of the Unified Development 
Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02]. 

 
SECTION 3.  That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in zoning 
described herein. 
 
SECTION 4. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance be, and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of that conflict. 
 
SECTION 5. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall 
be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of fine not 
to exceed the sum of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) for each offence and each and 
every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 
 
SECTION 6. If any section or provision of this ordinance or the application of that section or 
provision to any person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance is for any reason judged invalid, 
the adjudication shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance or the application of 
any other section or provision to any other person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance, and 
the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and applications of the 
ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full 

63



force and effect. 
 

SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 6TH DAY OF JUNE, 2022. 
 
 
 
     

 Kevin Fowler, Mayor 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Kristy Teague, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 
 

 
1st Reading:  May 16, 2022 
 
2nd Reading: June 6, 2022 
 
 

64



Address: 5405 Ranger Drive 
Legal Description: Lot 22, Block B, Chandler’s Landing, Phase 4 

 

65



 
 
 
  

66



  

67



 

 

68



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: June 6, 2022

SUBJECT: P2022-023; REPLAT FOR LOTS 5-7, BLOCK B, ROCKWALL
TECHNOLOGY PARK ADDITION

Attachments
Case Memo
Development Application
Location Map
Replat

Summary/Background Information
Consider a request by Alison Winget of Links Construction on behalf of Phil Wagner of the
Rockwall Economic Development Corporation (REDC) for the approval of a Replat for Lots 5, 6
& 7, Block B, Rockwall Technology Park Addition being a 7.377-acre parcel of land identified as
Lot 4, Block B, Rockwall Technology Park Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas,
zoned Light Industrial (LI) District, situated within the SH-276 Overlay (SH-276 OV) District,
located at the northwest corner of the intersection of SH-276 and Innovation Drive, and take
any action necessary.

Action Needed
The City Council is being asked to approve, approve with conditions, or deny the
proposed Replat.

69



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL CASE MEMO  
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 

385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

DATE: June 6, 2022 
 

APPLICANT: Alison Winget; Links Construction 
 

CASE NUMBER: P2022-023; Replat for Lots 5-7, Block B, Rockwall Technology Park Addition 
 

 

SUMMARY 
 
Consider a request by Alison Winget of Links Construction on behalf of Phil Wagner of the Rockwall Economic Development 
Corporation (REDC) for the approval of a Replat for Lots 5, 6 & 7, Block B, Rockwall Technology Park Addition being a 7.377-
acre parcel of land identified as Lot 4, Block B, Rockwall Technology Park Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, 
zoned Light Industrial (LI) District, situated within the SH-276 Overlay (SH-276 OV) District, located at the northwest corner of 
the intersection of SH-276 and Innovation Drive, and take any action necessary. 
 
PLAT INFORMATION 
 
 The applicant is requesting the approval of a Replat of a 7.377-acre tract of land (i.e. Lots 5-7, Block B, Rockwall Technology 

Park Addition) for the purpose of establishing lot lines and easements to facilitate the development of a 20,929 SF 
Office/Warehouse/Manufacturing Facility and to establish a regional detention lot for the Rockwall Economic Development 
Corporation (REDC).  
 

 The subject property was annexed by the City Council on December 3, 1985 by Ordinance No. 85-69 [Case No. A1985-
002]. According to the City’s December 7, 1993 historic zoning map, at some point between the time of annexation and 
December 7, 1993, the subject property was rezoned from Agricultural (AG) District to a Light Industrial (LI) District. On 
August 16, 1999, the City Council approved a final plat [Case No. PZ1999-059-01] that established the subject property as 
a portion of Block B, Rockwall Technology Park Addition. On August 21, 2000, the City Council approved a replat [Case 
No. PZ2000-068-01] platting the subject property as Lot 2, Block B, Rockwall Technology Park Addition. On April 24, 2012, 
the City Council approved a replat [Case No. P2012-005] that platted the subject property as Lot 4, Block B, Rockwall 
Technology Park Addition. On March 15, 2022, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a site plan [Case No. 
SP2022-005] to allow the construction of a 20,929 SF Office/Warehouse/Manufacturing Facility on the subject property. 

 
 The surveyor has completed the majority of the technical revisions requested by staff, and this Replat -- conforming to the 

requirements for plats as stipulated by the Subdivision Ordinance in the Municipal Code of Ordinances -- is recommended 
for conditional approval pending the completion of final technical modifications and submittal requirements. 
 

 Conditional approval of this Replat by the City Council shall constitute approval subject to the conditions stipulated in the 
Conditions of Approval section below. 

 
 With the exception of the items listed in the Conditions of Approval section of this case memo, this plat is in substantial 

compliance with the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance in the Municipal Code of Ordinances. 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
If City Council chooses to approve the Replat for the Lots 5-7, Block B, Rockwall Technology Park Addition, staff would propose 
the following conditions of approval: 
 
(1) All technical comments from City Staff (i.e. Engineering, Planning and Fire Department) shall be addressed prior to submittal 

of civil engineering plans;  

70



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 2 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

 
(2) Any construction resulting from the approval of this Replat shall conform to the requirements set forth by the Unified 

Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted 
engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state 
and federal government. 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 
On May 31, 2022, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend approval of the replat by a vote of 
7-0. 

71



72



AG

LI
PD-10

PD-45

PD-83

INNOVATION
DR

RESEARCH CIR

SC
IE

N
C

E 
PL

DERBY
D

R
H AYMAKER DR

TR
AIL

G
LEN

DR

FIELDCREST DR

AVERY DR

OLIVER TRL

DEUTZ CT

DISCOVERY BLVD

N
EW

 H
O

LL
AN

D
 D

R

G
AT

EW
AY

 D
R

TEAGLE DR

WAGONWHEEL DR

G
LE

AN
ER

D
R

ST
AB

LE
GL

EN
DR

G
AR

RI
SO

N 
DR

MASSEY LNPA
IN

T
C

RE
EK

C
T

HA
RV

ES
TE

R
DR

DAYBREAK DR

McCORMICK CT

CHALMERS CT

S
JO

H
N

KIN
G

BLVD

DA
NB

UR
Y

DRS 
JO

H
N

 K
IN

G
 B

LV
D

")276

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

City of Rockwall The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user. I

0 360 720 1,080 1,440180
Feet

Case Location Map =

P2022-023: Lots 5-7, Block B, Rockwall Technology Park

73



LOT 3, BLOCK B
ROCKWALL TECHNOLOGY PARK
VOL. H, PGS. 221-222, P.R.R.C.T.

LOT 1, BLOCK B
ROCKWALL TECHNOLOGY PARK
VOL. B, PGS. 220-223, P.R.R.C.T.

LO
T 

1,
 B

LO
CK

 A
PE

AK
 P

ED
I M

ED
IC

AL
 O

FF
IC

E
VO

L.
 I,

 P
GS

. 1
83

-1
84

, P
.R

.R
.C

.T
.

10' RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION
VOL. I, PGS. 183-184, P.R.R.C.T.

"T
RA

CT
 2

" I
N

 D
EE

D 
TO

 B
SK

J D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
CO

RP
.

DO
C.

# 
20

16
00

00
00

93
58

, O
.P

.R
.R

.C
.T

.

S89°11'18"W  874.82'

N
01

°3
5'

06
"W

  3
32

.0
6'

N88°24'49"E  445.00'

N01°35'11"W
46.30'

N89°10'45"E  427.39'

L=236.85', R=870.00'
D=15°35'53"

S08°37'12"E~236.12'

S00°49'15"E
36.07'

RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION
DOC.# 20160000013807, O.P.R.R.C.T.

STATE HIGHWAY 276
(R.O.W. VARIES, AS SHOWN ON VOL. H, PGS. 221-222, P.R.R.C.T.)

INNO
VATIO

N DRIVE

(60 R.O
.W

., AS SHO
W

N O
N

VO
L. H, PGS. 221-222, P.R.R.C.T.)

S0
6°

18
'1

5"
W

  1
05

.0
7'

S47°45'14"W
15.34'

LOT 5, BLOCK B
1.306 ACRES

56,900 SQ. FT.
LOT 6, BLOCK B

2.508 ACRES
109,259 SQ. FT.

LOT 7, BLOCK B
3.563 ACRES

155,204 SQ. FT.

168.52' (LOT)

173.02' (LOT)

S0
0°

48
'4

2"
E

33
4.

36
' (

LO
T)

271.98' (LOT)

46.97' (LOT)

S0
0°

48
'4

2"
E

38
4.

35
' (

LO
T)

318.30' (LOT)

380.42' (LOT)

387.99' (LOT)

VICINITY MAP - NOT TO SCALE

SITE

FINAL PLAT
LOTS 5, 6, & 7,

BLOCK B
ROCKWALL

TECHNOLOGY
PARK

BEING A REPLAT OF LOT
4, BLOCK B, ROCKWALL

TECHNOLOGY PARK
3 LOTS - 7.377 ACRES
CITY OF ROCKWALL,
ROCKWALL COUNTY,

TEXAS

POINT OF
BEGINNING

LEGEND OF ABBREVIATIONS
· D.R.R.C.T. DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS
· P.R.R.C.T. PLAT RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS
· O.P.R.R.C.T. OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS
· DOC.# DOCUMENT NUMBER
· C.M. CONTROLLING MONUMENT
· SQ. FT. SQUARE FEET
· ROW RIGHT OF WAY
· CRS CAPPED REBAR SET

SHEET:

BARTON CHAPA SURVEYING, LLC
JOHN H. BARTON, III RPLS# 6737

5200 STATE HIGHWAY 121
COLLEYVILLE, TX 76034

(817) 864-1957
JACK@BCSDFW.COM

DRAWN: BCS

CHECKED: JHB

TABLE OF REVISIONS

DATE SUMMARY

JOB NO. 2021.024.011

SURVEYOR

OWNER
ROCKWALL ECONOMIC

DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
697 E. I.H. 30
P.O. BOX 968

ROCKWALL, TX 75087
PH. 972.772.0025

ENGINEER

CITY CASE# XXXXX-XX

1 OF 2

SCALE:  1" = 60'

60' 0 30' 60' 120'

KIRKMAN ENGINEERING
5200 State Highway 121

Colleyville, TX 76034
Phone: 817-488-4960

74



SURVEYOR'S NOTES:

1. Bearings are based on the State Plane Coordinate System, Texas North Central
Zone (4202) North American Datum of 1983 (NAD '83), distances are surface with
a combined scale factor of 1.000146135.

2. This property lies within Zone "X" of the Flood Insurance Rate Map for Rockwall
County, Texas and Incorporated Areas, map no. 48397C0045L, with an effective
date of September 26, 2008, via scaled map location and graphic plotting.

3. Monuments are found unless specifically designated as set.

4. Elevations (if shown) are North American Vertical Datum of 1988 (NAVD '88).

STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF ROCKWALL §

WHEREAS ROCKWALL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION is the owner of a portion of Lot 4
in Block B of Rockwall Technology Park, an addition in the City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas,
according to the plat recorded under Cabinet H, Slide 221, Plat Records, Rockwall County, Texas,
(P.R.R.C.T.), the subject tract being more particularly described by metes and bounds as follows
(bearings are based on State Plane Coordinate System, Texas North Central Zone (4202) North
American Datum of 1983 (NAD '83)):

BEGINNING at a 1/2 inch rebar with cap stamped, “WEIR” found for the northwest corner of said Lot
4, same being the northwest corner of the herein described tract;

THENCE with the perimeter and to the corners of said Lot 4, the following calls:

1. North 88 degrees 24 minutes 49 seconds East, a distance of 445.00 feet to a point from which
a 1/2 inch rebar found bears North 38 degrees West, a distance of 0.37 feet;

2. North 01 degrees 35 minutes 11 seconds West, a distance of 46.30 feet to a 1/2 inch rebar
found;

3. North 89 degrees 10 minutes 45 seconds East, a distance of 427.39 feet to a 1/2 inch rebar
with an illegible cap found at the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the right, having a radius of
870.00 feet, with a delta angle of 15 degrees 35 minutes 53 seconds, whose chord bears South 08
degrees 37 minutes 12 seconds East, a distance of 236.12 feet;

4. Along said non-tangent curve to the right, an arc length of 236.85 feet to a 1/2 inch rebar with
cap stamped, “WEIR” found;

5. South 00 degrees 49 minutes 15 seconds East, a distance of 36.07 feet to a 1/2 inch rebar with
cap stamped,  “WEIR “ found;

6. South 06 degrees 18 minutes 15 seconds West, a distance of 105.07 feet to a point for the
northeast corner of a tract of land described by deed to the State of Texas as recorded under
Document Number 20160000013807, Official Public Records, Rockwall County, Texas, (O.P.R.R.C.T.),
from which an “X” cut found bears North 45 degrees East, a distance of 5.79 feet;

THENCE South 47 degrees 45 minutes 14 seconds West, with the northwest line of said State of
Texas tract, a distance of 15.34 feet to a 1/2 inch rebar with pink cap stamped, “BARTON CHAPA”
found at a re-entrant corner thereof;

THENCE South 89 degrees 11 minutes 18 seconds West, with the north line of said State of Texas
tract, a distance of 874.82 feet to a 1/2 inch rebar with cap stamped, “TXDOT” found for the
northwest corner thereof, same being in the west line of said Lot 4;

THENCE North 01 degrees 35 minutes 06 seconds West, with the west line of said Lot 4, a distance of
332.06 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and enclosing 7.377 acres (321,342 square feet) of land,
more or less.

NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

ROCKWALL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, the undersigned owner(s) of the land
shown on this plat, and designated herein as the LOTS 5, 6, & 7, BLOCK B, ROCKWALL TECHNOLOGY
PARK, subdivision to the City of Rockwall, Texas, and whose name is subscribed hereto, hereby
dedicate to the use of the public forever all streets, alleys, parks, water courses, drains, easements
and public places thereon shown on the purpose and consideration therein expressed. I (we) further
certify that all other parties who have a mortgage or lien interest in the LOTS 5, 6, & 7, BLOCK B,
ROCKWALL TECHNOLOGY PARK subdivision have been notified and signed this plat. I (we)
understand and do hereby reserve the easement strips shown on this plat for the purposes stated
and for the mutual use and accommodation of all utilities desiring to use or using same. I (we) also
understand the following;

1. No buildings shall be constructed or placed upon, over, or across the utility easements as
described herein.

2. Any public utility shall have the right to remove and keep removed all or part of any buildings,
fences, trees, shrubs, or other growths or improvements which in any way endanger or interfere
with construction, maintenance or efficiency of their respective system on any of

these easement strips; and any public utility shall at all times have the right of ingress or egress to,
from and upon the said easement strips for purpose of construction, reconstruction, inspecting,
patrolling, maintaining, and either adding to or removing all or part of their respective system
without the necessity of, at any time, procuring the permission of anyone.

3. The City of Rockwall will not be responsible for any claims of any nature resulting from or
occasioned by the establishment of grade of streets in the subdivision.

4. The developer and subdivision engineer shall bear total responsibility for storm drain
improvements.

5. The developer shall be responsible for the necessary facilities to provide drainage patterns and
drainage controls such that properties within the drainage area are not adversely affected by storm
drainage from the development.

6. No house dwelling unit, or other structure shall be constructed on any lot in this addition by
the owner or any other person until the developer and/or owner has complied with all requirements
of the Subdivision Regulations of the City of Rockwall regarding improvements with respect to the
entire block on the street or streets on which property abuts, including the actual installation of
streets with the required base and paving, curb and gutter, water and sewer, drainage structures,
storm structures, storm sewers, and alleys, all according to the specifications of the City of Rockwall;
or Until an escrow deposit, sufficient to pay for the cost of such improvements, as determined by
the city's engineer and/or city administrator, computed on a private commercial rate basis, has been
made with the city secretary, accompanied by an agreement signed by the developer and/or owner,
authorizing the city to make such improvements at prevailing private commercial rates, or have the
same made by a contractor and pay for the same out of the escrow deposit, should the developer
and/or owner fail or refuse to install the required improvements within the time stated in such
written agreement, but in no case shall the City be obligated to make such improvements itself. Such
deposit may be used by the owner and/or developer as progress payments as the work progresses in
making such improvements by making certified requisitions to the city secretary, supported by
evidence of work done; or Until the developer and/or owner files a corporate surety bond with the
city secretary in a sum equal to the cost of such improvements for the designated area, guaranteeing
the installation thereof within the time stated in the bond, which time shall be fixed by the city
council of the City of Rockwall. I (we) further acknowledge that the dedications and/or exaction’s
made herein are proportional to the impact of the Subdivision upon the public services required in
order that the development will comport with the present and future growth needs of the City; I
(we), my (our) successors and assigns hereby waive any claim, damage, or cause of action that I (we)
may have as a result of the dedication of exactions made herein.

___________________________________________

Rockwall Economic Development Corporation (authorized agent)

STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF _______________§

BEFORE ME, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Texas, on this day personally
appeared_________________, known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the
foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same as for the purpose and
consideration therein expressed, and in the capacity therein stated.

_____________________

Notary Public in and for

the State of Texas

PLAT NOTES:

1. It shall be the policy of the City of Rockwall to withhold issuing building permits
until all streets, water, sewer and storm drainage systems have been accepted
by the City. The approval of a plat by the City does not constitute any
representation, assurance or guarantee that any building within such plat shall
be approved, authorized or permit therefore issued, nor shall such approval
constitute any representation, assurance or guarantee by the City of the
adequacy and availability for water for personal use and fire protection within
such plat, as required under Ordinance 83-54.

2. Property owner shall be responsible for maintaining, repairing, and replacing all
systems within the drainage and detention easements.

_________________________________ ____________________
Planning & Zoning Commission, Chairman Date

APPROVED:
I hereby certify that the above and foregoing plat of an addition to the City of
Rockwall, Texas, was approved by the City Planning Director of the City of Rockwall on
the _______ day of________________, 20______________. This approval shall be
invalid unless the approved plat for such addition is recorded in the office of the
County Clerk of Rockwall, County, Texas, within one hundred eighty (180) days from
said date of final approval.

WITNESS OUR HANDS, this_____ day of_______________, 20_______.

_______________________
Mayor, City of Rockwall

_______________________
City Secretary

_______________________
City Engineer

NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

I, John H. Barton III, a Registered Professional Land Surveyor of the State of Texas, do
hereby certify that I prepared this plat from an actual and accurate survey of the land,
and that the corner monuments shown thereon were properly placed under my
personal supervision.

Date of Plat/Map: April 11, 2022

______________________________

John H. Barton III, RPLS# 6737

SHEET:

BARTON CHAPA SURVEYING, LLC
JOHN H. BARTON, III RPLS# 6737

5200 STATE HIGHWAY 121
COLLEYVILLE, TX 76034

(817) 864-1957
JACK@BCSDFW.COM

DRAWN: BCS

CHECKED: JHB

TABLE OF REVISIONS

DATE SUMMARY

SURVEYOR

2 OF 2

JOB NO. 2021.024.011

OWNER
ROCKWALL ECONOMIC

DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
697 E. I.H. 30
P.O. BOX 968

ROCKWALL, TX 75087
PH. 972.772.0025

ENGINEER

CITY CASE# XXXXX-XX

5200 State Highway 121
Colleyville, TX 76034
Phone: 817-488-4960

FINAL PLAT
LOTS 5, 6, & 7,

BLOCK B
ROCKWALL

TECHNOLOGY
PARK

BEING A REPLAT OF LOT
4, BLOCK B, ROCKWALL

TECHNOLOGY PARK
3 LOTS - 7.377 ACRES
CITY OF ROCKWALL,
ROCKWALL COUNTY,

TEXAS

75



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: June 6, 2022

SUBJECT: P2022-024; REPLAT FOR LOT 2, BLOCK L, LAKE ROCKWALL ESTATES
EAST ADDITION

Attachments
Case Memo
Development Application
Location Map
Replat
Closure Report

Summary/Background Information
Consider a request by Bart Carroll of Carroll Consulting Group, Inc. on behalf of Robbie Hale of
Shepherd Place Homes, Inc. the approval of a Replat for Lot 2, Block L, Lake Rockwall Estates
East Addition being a 0.4215-acre tract of land identified as Lots 1300 & 1301, Block A,
Rockwall Lake Properties Development No. 2 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County,
Texas, zoned Planned Development District 75 (PD-75) for Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District land
uses, addressed as 116 Nicole Drive, and take any action necessary.

Action Needed
The City Council is being asked to approve, approve with conditions, or deny the
proposed Replat.

76



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL CASE MEMO  
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 

385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

DATE: June 6, 2022 
 

APPLICANT: Bart Carroll, Carroll Consulting Group, Inc. 
 

CASE NUMBER: P2022-024; Replat for Lot 2, Block L, Lake Rockwall Estates East Addition 
 

 

SUMMARY 
 
Consider a request by Bart Carroll of Carroll Consulting Group, Inc. on behalf of Robbie Hale of Shepherd Place Homes, Inc. 
the approval of a Replat for Lot 2, Block L, Lake Rockwall Estates East Addition being a 0.4215-acre tract of land identified as 
Lots 1300 & 1301, Block A, Rockwall Lake Properties Development No. 2 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, 
zoned Planned Development District 75 (PD-75) for Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District land uses, addressed as 116 Nicole Drive, 
and take any action necessary. 
 
PLAT INFORMATION 
 
 The applicant is requesting the approval of a Replat for a 0.4215-acre tract of land (i.e. Lots 1300 & 1301, Block A, Rockwall 

Lake Properties Development No. 2 Addition) for the purpose of combining lots two (2) lots into one (1) lot (i.e. Lot 2, Block 
L, Lake Rockwall Estates East Addition). 
 

 The subject property was platted as Lots 1300 & 1301, Block A, Rockwall Lake Properties Development No. 2 Addition on 
March 29, 1968.  The subject property was annexed on February 17, 2009 by Ordinance No. 09-07 [Case No. A2009-001].  
At the time of annexation, the subject property was zoned Agricultural (AG) District.  On September 21, 2009, the City 
Council approved a zoning change by Ordinance No. 09-37 [Case No. Z2009-008] from an Agricultural (AG) District to a 
Planned Development 75 (PD-75) District for the subject property.   On January 4, 2016, Planned Development 75 (PD-75) 
District was amended by Ordinance No. 16-01 [Case No. Z2015-030]. According to Rockwall County Appraisal District, 
currently the subject property has a 360 SF storage building situated on it, which was built in 2007 before the City annexed 
the subject property in 2009. 

 
 The surveyor has completed the majority of the technical revisions requested by staff, and this Replat -- conforming to the 

requirements for plats as stipulated by the Subdivision Ordinance in the Municipal Code of Ordinances -- is recommended 
for conditional approval pending the completion of final technical modifications and submittal requirements. 
 

 Conditional approval of this Replat by the City Council shall constitute approval subject to the conditions stipulated in the 
Conditions of Approval section below. 

 
 With the exception of the items listed in the Conditions of Approval section of this case memo, this plat is in substantial 

compliance with the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance in the Municipal Code of Ordinances. 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
If the City Council chooses to approve the Replat for the Lot 2, Block L, Lake Rockwall Estates East Addition, staff would propose 
the following conditions of approval: 
 
(1) All technical comments from City Staff (i.e. Engineering, Planning and Fire Department) shall be addressed prior to submittal 

of civil engineering plans;  
 

77



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 2 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

(2) Any construction resulting from the approval of this Replat shall conform to the requirements set forth by the Unified 
Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted 
engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state 
and federal government. 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 
On May 31, 2022, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend approval of the replat by a vote of 
7-0. 

78



79



80



” “ ”

”
”

“ ”

”

”

”
”

“ ”

”

81



82



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: June 6, 2022

SUBJECT: P2022-026; REPLAT FOR LOT 2, BLOCK 1, VALK ROCKWALL ADDITION

Attachments
Case Memo
Development Application
Location Map
Replat
Closure Report

Summary/Background Information
Consider a request by Trey Braswell of Kimley-Horn on behalf of Jarrod Yates of PS LPT
Properties Investors for the approval of a Replat for Lot 2, Block 1, Valk Rockwall Addition
being a 4.264-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 2, Block 1, Valk Rockwall Addition, City of
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, addressed as 4028 N.
Goliad Street [SH-205], and take any action necessary.

Action Needed
The City Council is being asked to approve, approve with conditions, or deny the
proposed Replat.

83



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL CASE MEMO  
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 

385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

DATE: June 6, 2022 
 

APPLICANT: Trey Braswell, Kimley-Horn. 
 

CASE NUMBER: P2022-026; Replat for Lot 2, Block 1, Valk Rockwall Addition 
 

 

SUMMARY 
 
Consider a request by Trey Braswell of Kimley-Horn on behalf of Jarrod Yates of PS LPT Properties Investors for the approval 
of a Replat for Lot 2, Block 1, Valk Rockwall Addition being a 4.264-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 2, Block 1, Valk Rockwall 
Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, addressed as 4028 N. Goliad Street [SH-
205], and take any action necessary. 
 
PLAT INFORMATION 
 
 The applicant is requesting the approval of a Replat of a 4.264-acre parcel of land (i.e. Lot 2, Block 1, Valk Rockwall 

Addition) for the purpose of establishing easements necessary to facilitate the development of the property south of the 
subject property.  
 

 The Mini-Warehouse Facility on the subject property was established through a 212 Development Agreement allowing the 
property to remain in the City’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) until December 9, 2017.  The subject property was annexed 
into the City of Rockwall on March 19, 2018 by Ordinance No. 18-17 [Case No. A2018-001]. At the time of annexation, the 
property was zoned Agricultural (AG) District and has remained zoned Agricultural (AG) District since its annexation.   

 
 The surveyor has completed the majority of the technical revisions requested by staff, and this Replat -- conforming to the 

requirements for plats as stipulated by the Subdivision Ordinance in the Municipal Code of Ordinances -- is recommended 
for conditional approval pending the completion of final technical modifications and submittal requirements. 
 

 Conditional approval of this Replat by the City Council shall constitute approval subject to the conditions stipulated in the 
Conditions of Approval section below. 

 
 With the exception of the items listed in the Conditions of Approval section of this case memo, this plat is in substantial 

compliance with the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance in the Municipal Code of Ordinances. 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
If the City Council chooses to approve the Replat for the Lot 2, Block 1, Valk Rockwall Addition, staff would propose the following 
conditions of approval: 
 
(1) All technical comments from City Staff (i.e. Engineering, Planning and Fire Department) shall be addressed prior to submittal 

of civil engineering plans;  
 
(2) Any construction resulting from the approval of this Replat shall conform to the requirements set forth by the Unified 

Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted 
engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state 
and federal government. 

 
 

84



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 2 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 
On May 31, 2022, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend approval of the replat by a vote of 
7-0. 

85



86



87



CURVE TABLE

NO.

C1

C2

C3

C4

DELTA

22°12'18"

89°57'50"

89°57'55"

60°51'25"

RADIUS

20.00'

54.00'

30.00'

44.00'

LENGTH

7.75'

84.79'

47.11'

46.73'

CHORD BEARING

N10°01'41"W

S45°54'27"E

N45°54'29"W

S51°33'32"E

CHORD

7.70'

76.34'

42.41'

44.57'

LOT 1, BLOCK 1
VALK ROCKWALL ADDITION

CAB. I, PG. 11, P.R.R.C.T.
INST. NO. 20140000003303

O.P.R.R.C.T.

CALLED 2.081 ACRES
PS LPT PROPERTIES INVESTORS

INST. NO. 20210000031763
O.P.R.R.C.T.

CALLED 2.672 ACRES
DANIEL W. STRONG AND WIFE,

ELIZABETH KAY STRONG
VOL. 1823, PG. 224

O.P.R.R.C.T.

CALLED 2.38 ACRES
GEORGE R. WEATHERFORD

VOL. 4280, PG. 255
O.P.R.R.C.T.

CALLED 69.22 ACRES
SHENNENDOAH REAL

ESTATE PARTNERS, L.P.
VOL. 3351, PG. 114

O.P.R.R.C.T.

N.  G
O

LIAD  STREET (STATE   HIG
HW

AY   205)

AL
L 

  A
N

G
EL

S 
  H

IL
L 

  R
O

AD

24' FIRELANE EASEMENT
INST. NO. 20140000003303
O.P.R.R.C.T.

15' WATER LINE EASEMENT
INST. NO. 20140000003303
O.P.R.R.C.T.

CITY OF ROCKWALL CITY LIMITS

UNINCORPORATED ROCKWALL COUNTY

U
N

IN
C

O
R

PO
R

AT
ED

R
O

C
KW

AL
L 

C
O

U
N

TY

UNINCO
RPO

RATED

RO
CKW

ALL CO
UNTY

CITY O
F RO

CKW
ALL

CITY LIM
ITS

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
R

O
C

KW
AL

L
C

IT
Y 

LI
M

IT
S

UNINCORPORATED ROCKWALL COUNTY

CITY OF ROCKWALL CITY LIMITS

15' EASEM
ENT TO

 M
T.

ZIO
N W

ATER SUPPLY

VO
L 131, PG

. 761

(A
 P

R
IV

AT
E 

AC
C

ES
S 

D
R

IV
E)

 (N
O

 P
U

BL
IS

H
ED

 W
ID

TH
)

(100' W
IDE PUBLIC RIG

HT O
F W

AY)

24' FIRELANE EASEMENT
BY THIS PLAT

R.C.A.D. #12320

R.C.A.D. #12322

R.C.A.D. #86669
R.C.A.D. #12305

R.C.A.D. #12996

D
ET

EN
TI

O
N

 D
R

AI
N

AG
E 

EA
SE

M
EN

T
IN

ST
. N

O
. 2

01
40

00
00

03
30

3
O

.P
.R

.R
.C

.T
.

24' FIRELANE EASEM
ENT

INST. NO
. 20140000003303

O
.P.R.R.C.T.

15' WATER LINE EASEMENT
INST. NO. 20140000003303
O.P.R.R.C.T.

15' EASEM
ENT TO

 M
T.

ZIO
N W

ATER SUPPLY

VO
L 131, PG

. 761

24' FIRELANE EASEMENT
BY THI PLAT

15' WATER LINE EASEMENT
INST. NO. 20140000003303

O.P.R.R.C.T.

5/8" IPF

1/2" IPF

1/2" IRF

1/2" IRF
N:7043517.64
E:2592655.55

IRSCP.O.B.

4.2670 ACRES
185,871 SQ. FT.

N21°15'05"W
179.94'

∆=1°58'18"
R=2781.68'

L=95.73'
CB=N20°16'17"W

C=95.72'

N89°06'33"E 764.32'

S1
°0

3'
12

"E
25

8.
59

'

S89°04'28"W 670.68'

R.C.A.D. #12324

CALLED 5.55 ACRES
BRIAN HUGEBACK

INST. NO. 20190000011336
O.P.R.R.C.T.

100' R.O.W.
3/8" IRF
N:7043775.14
E:2592557.16

JO
SEPH STRIC

KLA
ND SURVEY

ABSTRACT N
O. 1

87

D
R

A
IN

A
G

E 
EA

SE
M

EN
T

B
Y 

TH
IS

 P
LA

T

L1
C

1

L2

L3

L4

C2

L5
L6

C3

L7

20.00'24.00'

101.86' 24.01'

C4

L8

11.61'

L9

L10

23
7.

38
'

LINE TABLE

NO.

L1

L2

L3

L4

L5

L6

L7

L8

L9

L10

BEARING

N01°04'28"E

N21°07'50"W

S01°04'28"W

N89°06'33"E

S00°55'32"E

N00°55'32"W

S89°06'33"W

N00°53'27"W

N01°03'12"W

N61°02'02"E

LENGTH

29.19'

26.30'

33.21'

6.58'

2.38'

2.38'

6.58'

24.00'

226.93'

22.23'

Copyright © 2021
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

All rights reserved

D
W

G
 N

AM
E:

 K
:\F

R
I_

SU
R

VE
Y\

06
93

19
64

3-
40

00
 N

 S
H

 2
05

 - 
R

O
C

KW
AL

L\
D

W
G

\0
69

31
96

43
-S

H
 2

05
 R

P.
D

W
G

  P
LO

TT
ED

 B
Y

C
R

AB
LE

, J
EF

F 
5/

18
/2

02
2 

4:
53

 P
M

 L
AS

T 
SA

VE
D

5/
18

/2
02

2 
3:

22
 P

M

Scale Drawn by

MBM1" = 50'
Checked by Date Project No. Sheet No.

Frisco, Texas  75034
6160 Warren Parkway, Suite 210 Tel. No. (972) 335-3580

Fax No. (972) 335-3779FIRM # 10193822

KHA 4/6/2022 069319643 1 OF 2

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET
050 25 50 100

1" = 50' @ 18X24

NORTH

FLOOD STATEMENT:

According to Federal Emergency Management Agency's Flood Insurance Rate Map No. 48397C0030L, for
Rockwall County, Texas and incorporated areas, dated September 26, 2008, this property is located within Zone
X (unshaded) defined as "Areas determined to be outside the 0.2% annual chance floodplain"

If this site is not within an identified special flood hazard area, this flood statement does not imply that the
property and/or the structures thereon will be free from flooding or flood damage.  On rare occasions, greater
floods can and will occur and flood heights may be increased by man-made or natural causes.  This flood
statement shall not create liability on the part of the surveyor.

N.T.S.VICINITY MAP

NORTH
F. M. 552

N
. G

O
LI

AD
 S

T.

S.
 H

. 2
05

N. JOHN KING BLVD.

LAKE RAY
HUBBARD

LEGEND:

R.C.A.D.   = ROCKWALL COUNTY APPRAISAL DISTRICT
P.O.B. = POINT OF BEGINNING
IRSC = 5/8" IRON ROD W/ "KHA" CAP SET
IRFC = IRON ROD W/CAP FOUND
IRF = IRON ROD FOUND
IPF = IRON PIPE FOUND
O.P.R.R.C.T.  = OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

NOTES:

1. It shall be the policy of the City of Rockwall to withhold issuing building permits
until all streets, water, sewer and storm drainage systems have been accepted
by the City. The approval of a plat by the City does not constitute any
representation, assurance or guarantee that any building within such plat shall
be approved, authorized or permit therefore issued, nor shall such approval
constitute any representation, assurance or guarantee by the City of the
adequacy and availability for water for personal use and fire protection within
such plat, as required under Ordinance 83-54.

2. All Property Corners are 5/8-inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "KHA"
found unless otherwise noted here.

3. The Bearings and Coordinates shown hereon are grid values of the Texas
Coordinate System of 1983, North Central Zone (4202), North American
Datum of 1983 (2011).

REFERENCE DATUM: City of Rockwall Geodetic Control Monument 4

4. Property owner(s) shall be responsible for maintaining, repairing, and
replacing all systems within the drainage and detention easements, if any.

OWNER:
PS LPT Properties Investors
701 Western Ave.
Glendale, California 91201
Phone: 972-546-0375
Contact: Jarrod Yates

APPLICANT:
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.
100 W. Oak St., Suite 203
Denton, Texas 76201
Phone: 940-387-3620
Contact: Trey Braswell, P.E.

 REPLAT
VALK ROCKWALL ADDITION

LOT 1R, BLOCK 1

BEING A REPLAT OF LOT 1, BLOCK 1,
VALK ROCKWALL ADDITION

AND BEING 4.264 ACRES SITUATED IN THE
JOSEPH STRICKLAND SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 187
CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

88



D
W

G
 N

AM
E:

 K
:\F

R
I_

SU
R

VE
Y\

06
93

19
64

3-
40

00
 N

 S
H

 2
05

 - 
R

O
C

KW
AL

L\
D

W
G

\0
69

31
96

43
-S

H
 2

05
 R

P.
D

W
G

  P
LO

TT
ED

 B
Y

C
R

AB
LE

, J
EF

F 
5/

18
/2

02
2 

4:
53

 P
M

 L
AS

T 
SA

VE
D

5/
18

/2
02

2 
3:

22
 P

M

Scale Drawn by

MBMN/A
Checked by Date Project No. Sheet No.

Frisco, Texas  75034
6160 Warren Parkway, Suite 210 Tel. No. (972) 335-3580

Fax No. (972) 335-3779FIRM # 10193822

KHA 4/6/2022 069319643 2 OF 2

REPLAT
VALK ROCKWALL ADDITION

LOT 1R, BLOCK 1

BEING A REPLAT OF LOT 1, BLOCK 1,
VALK ROCKWALL ADDITION

AND BEING 4.264 ACRES SITUATED IN THE
JOSEPH STRICKLAND SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 187
CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

OWNER'S CERTIFICATE
STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF ROCKWALL §

BEING a tract of land situated in the Joseph Strickland Survey, Abstract No. 187, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and being all of Lot 1, Block 1 of Valk
Rockwall Addition, an addition to the Cirty of Rockwall, Texas, as recorded in Cabinet I, Page 11 of the Plat Records of Rockwall County, Texas and in Instrument No.
20140000003303 of the Official Public Records of Rockwall County, Texas, same being a called 4.2640-acre tract of land described in a deed to PS LPT Properties
Investors, as recorded in Instrument No. 20170000023365 of the Official Public Records of Rockwall County, Texas, and being more particularly described by metes and
bounds as follows:

BEGINNING at a 1/2-inch iron rod found for the southwest corner of said 4.264-acre tract, said point being in the easterly right-of-way line of North Goliad Street (also
known as State Highway 205)(a 100-foot wide public right-of-way), same being the northwest corner of a called 2.081-acre tract of land described in a deed to PS LPT
Properties Investors, as recorded in Instrument No. 20210000031763, of said Official Public Records;

THENCE North 21°15'05" West, along the easterly line of North Goliad Street, and along the westerly line of said 4.264-acre tract, a distance of 179.94 feet to a point at
the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the right with a radius of 2,781.68 feet, having a central angle of 01°58'18", and a chord bearing and distance of North 20°16'17"
West, 95.72 feet;

THENCE in a northwesterly direction, along said curve to the right, and along the easterly line of North Goliad Street, an arc distance of 95.73 feet, to a 3/8-inch iron rod
found for the northwest corner of said 4.264-acre tract, common to said easterly 100-foot-wide right-of-way line, same being for the southwest corner of a called
5.55-acre tract of land described in a deed to Brian Hugeback, as recorded in Instrument No. 20190000011336, of said Official Public Records;

THENCE North 89°06'33" East, departing the easterly line of North Goliad Street and the westerly line of said 4.264-acre tract of land, a distance of 764.32 feet, along the
northerly line of said 4.264-acre tract, and along the southerly line of said 5.55-acre tract, to a 1/2-inch iron rod found for the northeast corner of said 4.264-acre tract,
same being for the southeast corner of said 5.55-acre tract, common to the westerly line of a called 69.22-acre tract of land described in a deed to Shennendoah Real
Estate Partners, L.P., as recorded in Volume 3351, Page 114, of said Official Public Records;

THENCE South 01°03'12" East, departing the northerly line of said 4.264-acre tract and the southerly line of said 5.55-acre tract, a distance of 258.59 feet along the
westerly line of said 69.22-acre tract, and the easterly line of said 4.264-acre tract, to a 5/8"-inch iron rod with red cap stamped "KHA" set for the southwest corner of said
4.264 acre tract;

THENCE South 89°04'28" West, departing the westerly line of said 69.22-acre tract, and the westerly line of said 4.264-acre tract, along the northerly line of said
2.081-acre tract and the southerly line of said 4.264-acre tract, a distance of 670.68 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 4.264 acres (185,738 sq. ft.) of
land, more or less.
NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:
STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF ROCKWALL

We, PS LPT PROPERTIES INVESTORS, the undersigned owner of the land shown on this plat, and designated herein as the VALK ROCKWALL
ADDITION, LOT 1R, BLOCK 1 to the City of Rockwall, Texas, and whose name is subscribed hereto, hereby dedicate to the use of the public forever all
streets, alleys, parks, watercourses, drains, easements and public places thereon shown on the purpose and consideration therein expressed, except
those created by separate instrument, which are governed by the terms of such separate instruments. We further certify that all other parties who have a
mortgage or lien interest in the VALK ROCKWALL ADDITION, LOT 1R, BLOCK 1 have been notified and signed this plat. We understand and do
hereby reserve the easement strips shown on this plat for the purposes stated and for the mutual use and accommodation of all utilities desiring to use or
using same, except those created by separate instrument, which are governed by the terms of such separate instruments. We also understand the
following;

1. No buildings shall be constructed or placed upon, over, or across the utility easements created hereby.

2. Any public utility shall have the right to remove and keep removed all or part of any buildings, fences, trees, shrubs, or other growths or
improvements which in any way endanger or interfere with construction, maintenance or efficiency of their respective system on any of the
easement strips created hereby; and any public utility shall at all times have the right of ingress or egress to, from and upon the said easement
strips for purpose of construction, reconstruction, inspecting, patrolling, maintaining, and either adding to or removing all or part of their respective
system without the necessity of, at any time, procuring the permission of anyone.

3. The City of Rockwall will not be responsible for any claims of any nature resulting from or occasioned by the establishment of grade of streets in
the subdivision.

4. The developer and subdivision engineer shall bear total responsibility for storm drain improvements.

5. The developer shall be responsible for the necessary facilities to provide drainage patterns and drainage controls such that properties within the
drainage area are not adversely affected by storm drainage from the development.

6. The owners of the land dedicated by this plat reserve the right to use and enjoy the surface of all easement areas for all purposes that do not
interfere with the use of said easement areas for utilities; including but not limited to the right to place surfacing materials over and across the
easement areas and to use the same for parking areas, driveways, walkways, sidewalks, landscaping and/or lighting.

7. The location of easements shown hereon that are granted by separate instrument are approximate and such easements and their location are
governed by the terms, provisions and conditions of the separate instrument.

8. No house dwelling unit, or other structure shall be constructed on any lot in this addition by the owner or any other person until the developer
and/or owner has complied with all requirements of the Subdivision Regulations of the City of Rockwall regarding improvements with respect to the
entire block on the street or streets on which property abuts, including the actual installation of streets with the required base and paving, curb and
gutter, water and sewer, drainage structures, storm structures, storm sewers, and alleys, all according to the specifications of the City of Rockwall;
or

Until an escrow deposit, sufficient to pay for the cost of such improvements, as determined by the city's engineer and/or city administrator, computed on a
private commercial rate basis, has been made with the city secretary, accompanied by an agreement signed by the developer and/or owner, authorizing
the city to make such improvements at prevailing private commercial rates, or have the same made by a contractor and pay for the same out of the
escrow deposit, should the developer and/or owner fail or refuse to install the required improvements within the time stated in such written agreement, but
in no case shall the City be obligated to make such improvements itself.

Such deposit may be used by the owner and/or developer as progress payments as the work progresses in making such improvements by making
certified requisitions to the city secretary, supported by evidence of work done; or

We further acknowledge that the dedications and/or exaction's made herein are proportional to the impact of the Subdivision upon the public services
required in order that the development will comport with the present and future growth needs of the City; We, our successors and assigns hereby
waive any claim, damage, or cause of action that we may have as a result of the dedication of exactions made herein.By: PS LPT PROPERTIES INVESTORS,  a Maryland real estate investment trust

By: _________________________________

STATE OF TEXAS                     §

COUNTY OF ROCKWALL        §

BEFORE ME, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the said County and State, on this day personally appeared ________________, known to me
to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purpose therein
expressed and under oath stated that the statements in the foregoing certificate are true.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE this ____________ day of __________________ 2022.

__________ ____________________________ _____________________________________
Notary Public in and for the State of Texas My Commission Expires

RECOMMENDED FOR FINAL APPROVAL

_____________________________________________________                  ___________________________________

Planning & Zoning Commission, Chairman Date

APPROVED:

I hereby certify that the above and foregoing plat of an addition to the City of Rockwall, Texas, was approved by the City Council of the City of
Rockwall on the _____ day of ______, 2022.

This approval shall be invalid unless the approved plat for such addition is recorded in the office of the County Clerk of Rockwall, County,
Texas, within one hundred eighty (180) days from said date of final approval.

WITNESS OUR HANDS, this ______ day of _________________, 2022.

__________________________________                  ___________________________________                ____________________________________

Mayor, City of Rockwall City Secretary                                       City Engineer

SURVEYOR’S STATEMENT

I, Michael B. Marx, a Registered Professional Land Surveyor, licensed by the State of Texas, affirm that this plat was prepared under my direct
supervision, from recorded documentation, evidence collected on the ground during field operations and other reliable documentation; and that this
plat substantially complies with the Rules and Regulations of the Texas Board of Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors.

Dated this the ___day of _________________, 2022.

_______________________________________
MICHAEL B. MARX
REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL
LAND SURVEYOR NO. 5181
6160 WARREN PKWY., SUITE 210
FRISCO, TEXAS  75034
PH. (972) 335-3580
michael.marx@kimley-horn.com

OWNER:
PS LPT Properties Investors
701 Western Ave.
Glendale, California 91201
Phone: 972-546-0375
Contact: Jarrod Yates

APPLICANT:
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.
100 W. Oak St., Suite 203
Denton, Texas 76201
Phone: 940-387-3620
Contact: Trey Braswell, P.E.

89



90



91



92



93



94



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Amy Williams, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer

DATE: June 6, 2022

SUBJECT: EIGHT INCH WATER LINE RELOCATION

Attachments

Summary/Background Information
During the construction of a swimming pool at 105 South Hampton Drive, an eight (8) inch
public water line was uncovered. The resident contacted the Water Department to seek
assistance. During the investigation, it was discovered that the water line was installed in 1983.
This water line was constructed as an off-site improvement for The Meadows Subdivision, and
the easement for this utility was found to be incorrect when it was filed in 1983. The water line is
in conflict with the resident’s swimming pool and needs to be relocated into the City right-of-way
so construction can continue.

Staff has contacted Double R Utilities, Inc. to relocate the eight (8) inch water line.  The cost of
the above water line is $62,121.00, which exceeds the City's competitive sealed bid threshold.
According to Local Government Code Chapter 252, Section 252.022, General Exceptions to the
Competitive Bid Process; Item (2), “… a procurement necessary to preserve or protect the
public health or safety of the municipality's residents …” may be used to justify the relocation
made to the water line.

Based on this, staff is requesting the City Council consider approving the water line relocation
project  in the amount of $62,121.00 to be funded out of the Water and Sewer Fund.

Action Needed
 

95



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Amy Williams, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer

DATE: June 6, 2022

SUBJECT: 780 ZONE IH-30 WATER LINE CROSSINGS Â€“ CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACT

Attachments
Map
Engineer's Letter
Bid Tabulation

Summary/Background Information
The City of Rockwall’s water distribution system is currently broken up in to two (2) pressure
zones, the 700 Zone to the west and the 780 Zone to the east.  The current dividing line
between these two (2) pressure zones is John King Boulevard, which divides east and west and
then Interstate 30 (IH-30) that divides north and south pressure zone.  The City’s current Water
Master Plan, which was last updated in October 2019, recommends extending the 780 Zone
north of IH-30 by providing two (2), 16-inch water line crossings.  As shown in the attached
map, these two (2) waterline crossings will be located along IH-30 at John King Blvd and at FM-
3549/Corporate Crossing.  This extension of the 780 Zone north of IH-30 will allow for the
properties that are located at a higher elevation to be served with more reliable pressures, and
allow for the future water demand to support development north along the IH-30 corridor. 

The City currently has a contract with Birkhoff, Hendricks and Carter, LLP to provide the
engineering design and specifications for the project. Staff received seven (7) bids for this
construction project through the bidding process, which opened up on May 17, 2022.  The low
bidder was Wilson Contractor Services, LLC with a bid of $1,140,072.61.  The engineering
consultants have verified the references for FM Utilities, LLC and provided a letter of
recommendation.

Staff requests the City Council consider approving the construction contract for the 780 Zone
IH-30 Water Line Crossings Project, and authorize the City Manager to execute a contract with
Wilson Contractor Services, LLC, in an amount of $1,140,072.61 to be paid for out of the
Water/Sewer Funds, and take any action necessary.

Action Needed

96



 

97



"35
49

"1141

")66

§̈¦30

S GOLIAD
ST

FM
 11

41

PARKCEN TR A L
L N

OR
CH

AR
D L

N

NO
RTH

CR
ES

T
CI

R

SADDLEB

R OOK LN

CORNELIUS RD

STTHOMASCT
E WASHINGTON

ST

HIL
LSI

DE
DR

ROLLING MEADOWS DR

VAUGHN DR

IVEYLN

INNO VATION DR

SCIENC EPL

RESEARCH
CIR

CO
RP

OR
AT

E C
RO

SS
IN

G

AL P
HA

DR

N
JO HN

KI NG
BLVD

ZIO
N

HI
LLS

CIR

E Y
ELL

OW
JACKET L

N

S JOHN
KING

BLVD

DERBY DR

AIRPORT RD

E QUAIL RUN RD

RANDASWAY

PHELP
S LAKE DR

CRESCENT COVE DR

CANYO N RIDGE DR

DISCOVERY BLVDPREAK NE SS
DR

JUSTIN RD

CLEM RD

E STATE HIGHWAY 66

S T L TOWNSEND DR

ST
OD

GH
ILL

RD
WILLIAMS ST

PARK P L AC
E B

LV
D

CARUTH LN

HARKER CIR

CO
RDOBALN

CA
RR

IN
GTO

NDR
TANNERSON DR

RE
NF

R O
ST

WHITE WATER LN

CASCADE
VALLEY DR

BEL LA DR

AP
PA

LO
OS

A 
DR

N T L TOWNSEND DR

EQ
UE

S T
RIA

N
TR

L

FO
XH

OL
LO

W
DR

BAY LINE DR

PR
AI

RIE
VIE

W 
RD

RIDING CLUB RD

DHAKA
DR

JA
NE

T
DR

HID
DE

N
LA

KE
S W

AY

HIL
L L

N

TRAIL DR

TABER RD
BOYETT LN

COBBLEST ONE DR

IVY LN

STATE HIGHWAY 66

SHAD YL ANE DR

SENDERA
LN

CL
EM

RO
AD

 EX
T

E INTERSTATE 30

GREAT

LAKESCT

KIRKWOOD
RD

HEATH ST

CO
MM

ER
CE

ST

BOW ST

BR
OK

EN
SP

OK
EL

N

A B
BE

YL
N

SA
ND

ER
SO

N
LN

N COUNTRY LN

TAUBERCT

WH ITMORE

DR

GIDEON WAY

EN
TER

PR
ISE

 D
R

CAPITAL BLVD

MA
RIL

YN
JA

YN
E L

N

KRISTY

L N

DA
VI

S D
R

CRESTVIEW CIR

DA
TA

 D
R

AM
ITY

 LN
IN

DIA
N 

TR
L

IN DUS TRIAL BLV D
SPARKS L N

HARKER TRL

SPRINGER RD

W HOLIDAY DR

EOLDQUAI LR UN
RD

WI
ND

Y L
N

CO
NV

EY
O R

S T

The d ata represented  on this map was obtained  with the
best method s available. Data is s u pplied  from variou s sou rces
and  accu racy may be ou t of the City of Rockwall’s control.
The verification of accu racy and  / or content lies entirely with
the end  u ser. The City of Rockwall d oes not gu arantee the
accu racy of contained  information. All Information is provid ed
‘As Is ’ with no warranty being mad e, either expressed  or implied .I 010050 Feet

Date: 3/24/2021
City of
Rockwall IH-30 Water Line Crossing Project

FM 3549 Crossing
(16-inch Water Line)

John King Crossing
(16-inch Water Line)

IH-30 Water Line Cros sings
NEW 780 ZONE
700 ZONE
780 ZONE

700 ZONE700 ZONE

780 ZONE780 ZONE

NEWNEW
780 ZONE780 ZONE

98



TBPE Firm 526  TBPLS Firm 100318-00 
j:\clerical\rockwall\2021-115 780 zone ih 30 water line crossings\letters\k\bid recommendation.docx 

 

BIRKHOFF, HENDRICKS & CARTER, L.L.P. 
PROFESSIONAL  ENGINEERS 

 

11910 Greenville Ave., Suite 600 Dallas, Texas   75243 Phone (214) 361-7900 www.bhcllp.com 
JOHN W. BIRKHOFF, P.E. 

GARY C. HENDRICKS, P.E., R.P.L.S. 

JOE R. CARTER, P.E. 

MATT HICKEY, P.E. 

ANDREW MATA, JR., P.E. 

DEREK B. CHANEY, P.E., R.P.L.S. 

CRAIG M. KERKHOFF, P.E. 

JUSTIN R. IVY, P.E. 

 
 
 
 
May 24, 2022 
 
 

 
Mr. Jeremy White, P.E., C.F.M. 
Assistant City Engineer 
City of Rockwall 
385 S. Goliad Street  
Rockwall, Texas 75087 
 
Re: 780 Zone I.H. 30 Water Crossings 
 CIP No. 2021-001 
 
Dear Mr. White: 
 
Sealed bids were received at 2:00 p.m., Tuesday, May 17, 2022, for the 780 Zone I.H. 30 Water Crossings 
project.  Seven contractors submitted bids.  We are enclosing one copy of the bid tabulation for your use.  The 
apparent low bidder was Wilson Contractor Services, LLC in the amount of $1,140,072.61.  Wilson had one 
irregularity in their bid on pay item 14 where the unit price was not presented correctly.  Once the correction 
was agreed to by the contractor in writing and completed, Wilson’s revised bid was in the amount of 
$1,140,070.99.  Correction of the irregularity reduced Wilson’s bid by $1.62. 

We have reviewed Wilson’s statement of qualifications and references provided and find that Wilson 
Contractor Services has a record of satisfactorily completing projects similar to this project for the Cities of 
Aubrey, Lewisville, Waxahachie and Wylie including projects designed by our firm. 

Based on the contractor’s information provided to us, it is recommended City Council accept the bid from 
Wilson Contractor Services, LLC, and award them a construction contract in the amount of $1,140,070.99 for 
the 780 Zone I.H. 30 Water Crossings project. 

We are available to discuss our recommendation further at your convenience. 

 

           Sincerely, 

 

 

           Matt Hickey, P.E. 

Enclosures 

99



Date: May 18, 2022

Project:

Item

No.

Approximate

Quantities Unit

Unit Bid

Price Extension

Unit Bid

Price Extension

Unit Bid

Price Extension

Unit Bid

Price Extension

1 1 L.S. $50,447.00 50,447.00$            $55,000.00 55,000.00$            $75,000.00 75,000.00$                $74,000.00 74,000.00$             

2 685 L.F. $808.87 554,075.95$          $900.00 616,500.00$          $845.00 578,825.00$              $810.00 554,850.00$           

3 142 L.F. $393.07 55,815.94$            $400.00 56,800.00$            $1,000.00 142,000.00$              $500.00 71,000.00$             

4 12 Ea. $24,630.00 295,560.00$          $16,000.00 192,000.00$          $34,300.00 411,600.00$              $56,000.00 672,000.00$           

5 4 Ea. $6,670.00 26,680.00$            $12,000.00 48,000.00$            $6,050.00 24,200.00$                $7,000.00 28,000.00$             

6 4 Ea. $2,200.00 8,800.00$              $5,500.00 22,000.00$            $3,495.00 13,980.00$                $4,000.00 16,000.00$             

7 1 Ea. $3,750.00 3,750.00$              $2,500.00 2,500.00$              $3,475.00 3,475.00$                  $8,000.00 8,000.00$               

8 1 Ea. $5,250.00 5,250.00$              $2,250.00 2,250.00$              $2,445.00 2,445.00$                  $4,000.00 4,000.00$               

9 175 SY $138.10 24,167.50$            $180.00 31,500.00$            $130.00 22,750.00$                $95.00 16,625.00$             

10 2 Ea. $3,127.00 6,254.00$              $3,700.00 7,400.00$              $6,400.00 12,800.00$                $6,000.00 12,000.00$             

11 1 L.S. $12,372.22 12,372.22$            $10,000.00 10,000.00$            $20,750.00 20,750.00$                $6,000.00 6,000.00$               

12 1 L.S. $2,600.00 2,600.00$              $4,500.00 4,500.00$              $7,500.00 7,500.00$                  $3,000.00 3,000.00$               

13 1 LS $800.00 800.00$                 $1,250.00 1,250.00$              $11,165.00 11,165.00$                $1,000.00 1,000.00$               

14 442 L.F. $3.39 1,498.38$              $70.00 30,940.00$            $5.00 2,210.00$                  $3.00 1,326.00$               

15 1 LS $10,600.00 10,600.00$            $750.00 750.00$                 $12,500.00 12,500.00$                $2,000.00 2,000.00$               

16 1 LS $3,200.00 3,200.00$              $4,500.00 4,500.00$              $8,735.00 8,735.00$                  $15,000.00 15,000.00$             

1,061,870.99$       1,085,890.00$       1,349,935.00$           1,484,801.00$        

100 0 0 $78,200.00 78,200.00$            $78,200.00 78,200.00$            $78,200.00 78,200.00$                78,200.00$             

1,140,070.99$       1,164,090.00$       1,428,135.00$           1,563,001.00$        

This contractor filled out their own proposal form and entered Item 14 as one (1) lump sum instead of the proposed 442 L.F. 

 CITY ALLOWED GC TO CORRECT ERROR. UPDATED 5-24-22

BIRKHOFF, HENDRICKS & CARTER, L.L.P.

PROFESSIONAL  ENGINEERS

Dallas, Texas

City of Rockwall

780 Zone I.H. 30 Water Line Crossings

Cut and Plug Existing 16" Water Line

Cut and Plug Existing 12" Water Line

For Mobilization, Bonds, Insurance and Shop Drawings  (max 5% of contract)

Furnish and Install 16" Water Line with 28" Steel Encasement (1/4" Thick) by Dry Bore

Furnish and Install 16" Water Line by Open Cut, Including Embedment and All Fittings

TOTAL (Base Bid and Construction Contingency)

Implement Traffic Control Plan

Remove & Replace Existing 5-ft Wide Sidewalk

Blackrock Construction

1475 Heritage Parkway #113

donny@blackrockconstructiontx.com

A & B Construction, LLC

3001 Sale Street, Suite 117

estimating@aandbconstruction.us

Furnish, Install, Maintain and Remove Erosion Control Devices 

SUBTOTAL BASE BID

Construction Contingency (See Note 1 on Bid Summary Sheet)

Furnish Traffic Control Plan

Implement Trench Safety Plan, Including shoring at Bore Pits

Furnish Trench Safety Plan

Description

Furnish & Install 16" Butterfly Valve (See Note 3 on Bid Schedule Summary)

Furnish & Install Type I 2" Blow Off in Meter Box

Furnish, Place, Water and Fertilize Solid Sod on 6-inches of Top Soil

817-592-3953 469-422-5429

BID  OF

Murphy, Texas 75094

Lara Jackson

BID  OF

Mansfield, Texas 76063

Donny Gamblin

BID  OF

Dallas, Texas 75219

Ann Carpenter

lara@hayesconstruction.org

409 Waters Edge Way 

Hayes Construction, LLC

This contractor did not fill out the unit prices in words on the proposal form

BID  OF

Wilson Contractor Services, LLC

3985 Mingo Road 

Denton, Texas 76208

A.A. Martinez

940-243-1174

tony@wilsoncontractorservices.com

Cut in 16" X 16" Tee

Connect to Existing 16" PVC Water Line

TABULATION  OF  BIDS

972-658-2605

J:\CLERICAL\Rockwall\2021-115 780 Zone IH 30 Water Line Crossings\Specs\Tech-Spec\P&BS-2.xlsx Page 1 of  2
100



Date: May 18, 2022

Project:

Item

No.

Approximate

Quantities Unit

1 1 L.S.

2 685 L.F.

3 142 L.F.

4 12 Ea.

5 4 Ea.

6 4 Ea.

7 1 Ea.

8 1 Ea.

9 175 SY

10 2 Ea.

11 1 L.S.

12 1 L.S.

13 1 LS

14 442 L.F.

15 1 LS

16 1 LS

100 0 0

This contractor filled out their own proposal form and entered Item 14 as one (1) lump sum instead of the proposed 442 L.F. 

 CITY ALLOWED GC TO CORRECT ERROR. UPDATED 5-24-22

BIRKHOFF, HENDRICKS & CARTER, L.L.P.

PROFESSIONAL  ENGINEERS

Dallas, Texas

City of Rockwall

780 Zone I.H. 30 Water Line Crossings

Cut and Plug Existing 16" Water Line

Cut and Plug Existing 12" Water Line

For Mobilization, Bonds, Insurance and Shop Drawings  (max 5% of contract)

Furnish and Install 16" Water Line with 28" Steel Encasement (1/4" Thick) by Dry Bore

Furnish and Install 16" Water Line by Open Cut, Including Embedment and All Fittings

TOTAL (Base Bid and Construction Contingency)

Implement Traffic Control Plan

Remove & Replace Existing 5-ft Wide Sidewalk

Furnish, Install, Maintain and Remove Erosion Control Devices 

SUBTOTAL BASE BID

Construction Contingency (See Note 1 on Bid Summary Sheet)

Furnish Traffic Control Plan

Implement Trench Safety Plan, Including shoring at Bore Pits

Furnish Trench Safety Plan

Description

Furnish & Install 16" Butterfly Valve (See Note 3 on Bid Schedule Summary)

Furnish & Install Type I 2" Blow Off in Meter Box

Furnish, Place, Water and Fertilize Solid Sod on 6-inches of Top Soil

This contractor did not fill out the unit prices in words on the proposal form

Cut in 16" X 16" Tee

Connect to Existing 16" PVC Water Line

TABULATION  OF  BIDS

Unit Bid

Price Extension

Unit Bid

Price Extension

Unit Bid

Price Extension

$10,000.00 10,000.00$            $75,000.00 75,000.00$            $92,020.75 92,020.75$            

$1,300.00 890,500.00$          $1,500.00 1,027,500.00$       $1,200.00 822,000.00$          

$400.00 56,800.00$            $550.00 78,100.00$            $845.00 119,990.00$          

$31,000.00 372,000.00$          $35,000.00 420,000.00$          $51,100.00 613,200.00$          

$10,000.00 40,000.00$            $8,000.00 32,000.00$            $14,500.00 58,000.00$            

$15,000.00 60,000.00$            $21,000.00 84,000.00$            $20,000.00 80,000.00$            

$8,000.00 8,000.00$              $3,000.00 3,000.00$              $7,500.00 7,500.00$              

$7,000.00 7,000.00$              $2,000.00 2,000.00$              $4,500.00 4,500.00$              

$200.00 35,000.00$            $150.00 26,250.00$            $135.00 23,625.00$            

$15,000.00 30,000.00$            $6,800.00 13,600.00$            $5,000.00 10,000.00$            

$14,000.00 14,000.00$            $10,000.00 10,000.00$            $20,000.00 20,000.00$            

$10,000.00 10,000.00$            $2,900.00 2,900.00$              $40,000.00 40,000.00$            

$2,000.00 2,000.00$              $950.00 950.00$                 $2,500.00 2,500.00$              

$20.00 8,840.00$              $55.00 24,310.00$            $50.00 22,100.00$            

$2,000.00 2,000.00$              $850.00 850.00$                 $14,500.00 14,500.00$            

$15,000.00 15,000.00$            $5,000.00 5,000.00$              $2,500.00 2,500.00$              

1,561,140.00$       1,805,460.00$       1,932,435.75$       

$78,200.00 78,200.00$            $78,200.00 78,200.00$            $78,200.00 78,200.00$            

                                                1,639,340.00$       1,883,660.00$       2,010,635.75$       

francisco@fm-utilities.comwayne@canaryconstruction.comsatkins@ectisp.net

BID  OF

Midlothian, Texas 76065

Francisco Mata

469-716-3697

BID  OF

Lewisville, Texas 75057

Wayne Borstad

469-464-3823

FM Utilities, LLC

4911 Redbird Trail

Canary Construction, Inc.

820 North Kealy Ave., Ste. 101

972-775-7955

Atkins Bros. Equipment Co., Inc.

P.O. Box 990

BID  OF

Midlothian, Texas 76065

Mike Atkins 

J:\CLERICAL\Rockwall\2021-115 780 Zone IH 30 Water Line Crossings\Specs\Tech-Spec\P&BS-2.xlsx Page 2 of  2
101



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Lea Ann Ewing, Purchasing Agent

DATE: June 6, 2022

SUBJECT: BID AWARD FOR NEW EQUIPMENT COVERS

Attachments

Summary/Background Information
Approved in the General Fund, Streets and Drainage operating budget is $195,400 to design
and build three new heavy equipment covers at the Service Center.  Sealed competitive design-
build proposals were solicited to nine companies in the Metroplex that specialize in steel
structure construction.  The bid opening was held on May 13, 2022 and one bid was received. 
C&M Steel Services, located in Royse City, provided a proposal that meets specifications at a
total project cost of $224,422.92.  Staff anticipated that this project cost would exceed budget
due to rapid inflation in the price of goods and services over the past year.

 

Action Needed
For Council consideration is the bid award to C&M Steel Services and an additional $30,000 out
of General Fund reserves, authorize the City Manager to execute a contract for the new covers.

 

102



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Amy Williams, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer

DATE: June 6, 2022

SUBJECT: CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR WILLIAMS STREET LIFT STATION
EMERGENCY REPAIR

Attachments

Summary/Background Information
The lift station located at 950 Williams Street was constructed in 1976. This lift station is in
immediate need of repair to prevent overflow of the sanitary sewer. Currently, the Production
Department is monitoring this lift station multiple times a day to ensure that the sewer will not
overflow.

Staff has contacted ConNanCo, LLC. to make emergency repairs on this lift station.  The cost
of the above emergency repairs is $83,750.00, which exceeds the City's competitive sealed bid
threshold. According to Local Government Code Chapter 252, Section 252.022, General
Exceptions to the Competitive Bid Process; Item (2), “… a procurement necessary to preserve
or protect the public health or safety of the municipality's residents …” may be used to justify
the emergency repairs made to connect the sanitary sewer.

Based on this, staff is requesting the City Council consider approving an emergency repair of
the Williams Street Lift Station in the amount of $83,750.00 to be funded out of the Water and
Sewer Fund.

Action Needed
 

103



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  
 
TO:  Mayor and Council Members 
 
FROM: Hotel Occupancy Tax Sub-committee Members  

Mary Smith, city Manager 
 
DATE:  June 3, 2022 
 
SUBJECT: Supplemental Requests for HOT Funding  
  
The Subcommittee met to discuss supplemental requests for HOT funding for events in 
2022.  Members Dana Macalik, Anna Campbell, and Bennie Daniels have prepared the 
following recommendations for funding pending Council’s approval. 
 
The Chamber has requested funds on behalf of the Ski Nautique owner’s group who will 
be holding their annual event in Rockwall in early July.  They were in Rockwall last year 
and wanted to come back here again rather than rotate to another location.  The committee 
is recommending $12,715 for this request. 
 
Oasis Pickleball will again be hosting a large tournament in late September.  Funds were 
requested for operational and promotional expenses for the tournament.  The 
subcommittee is recommending $20,500 for those expenses.  Funds were also requested 
for capital expenses to convert their remaining tennis courts to pickleball courts.  The 
subcommittee does not recommend assisting with capital expenses of the business.  
 

 
Prior to Council action on the above, the Hotel Occupancy Tax budget is as follows: 

 
   Fund Balance carried forward  $1,188,249 
       Budgeted Revenues         975,000 
       Previously Allocated Funding    ( 812,400) 
     Projected Fund Balance  $1,350,899 
 

The subcommittee can answer any questions regarding their recommendations. Council is 
asked to consider approval of the funding amounts and authorize the City Manager to execute 
contracts with the organizations. 

104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



 
145



 
146



 
147



 
148



 
149



 
150



 
151



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: June 6, 2022

SUBJECT: H2022-004; APPEAL FOR A CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS
(COA) FOR 501 KERNODLE STREET

Attachments
Memorandum
Applicant's Appeal Letter
HPAB Packet from 05.19.2022

Summary/Background Information
Discuss and consider a request by Tim Herriage appealing a decision by the Historic
Preservation Advisory Board (HPAB) concerning the denial of a Certificate of Appropriateness
(COA) for a High Contributing Property being a 0.7096-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 1-R,
Block 2, Buttgen Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 7
(SF-7) District, situated within the Old Town Rockwall (OTR) Historic District, addressed as 501
Kernodle Street, and take any action necessary.

Action Needed
The City Council is being asked to determine if the Historic Preservation Advisory Board
(HPAB) erred in it decision to deny a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for the subject
property at 501 Kernodle Street.

152



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

CC: Mary Smith, City Manager 
 Joey Boyd, Assistant City Manager 
 

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning 
 

DATE: June 6, 2022 
 

SUBJECT: H2022-004; Appeal for a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for 501 Kernodle Street   
 

 

On May 19, 2022, the Historic Preservation Advisory Board (HPAB) approved a motion to deny a Certificate of 
Appropriateness (COA) for 501 Kernodle Street by a vote of 4-0 with Board Members Odom, Adams, and McClintock absent.  
Specifically, this case dealt with a proposal to add a driveway on the side yard of the subject property accessing Williams 
Street [SH-66].  The subject property is classified as a High Contributing Property according to the 2017 Historic Resource 
Survey.  The proposed driveway does not meet the City’s Historic Preservation Guidelines contained in Appendix D, Historic 
Preservation Guidelines, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) or the driveway spacing requirements contained in the 
Engineering Standards of Design and Construction Manual.  Additionally -- and a major reason the driveway cannot be 
approved -- the driveway does not meet the minimum driveway spacing requirements for the Texas Department of 
Transportation (TXDOT).  In making their decision the Historic Preservation Advisory Board (HPAB) cited safety and the lack 
of conformance to the Historic Preservation Guidelines as being the reason for the denial. 
 
In accordance with the requirements of the Unified Development Code (UDC), the applicant submitted a request for an appeal 
to the City Council (see Exhibit A).  According to Subsection 06.03(H)(1), Appeal Process, of Article 05, District Development 
Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC), “(i)f the Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) is denied, the applicant 
may appeal to the City Council by filing a written notice with the Historic Preservation Office (HPO) within ten (10) business 
days after the decision of the board.  In considering an appeal, the sole issue before the City Council shall be whether the 
board erred in its decision.  The City Council shall consider the same standards and evidence that was considered in making 
the decision.  Appeal to the City Council constitutes the final administrative remedy.”  Based on this, staff has included -- in the 
attached packet -- all of the materials provided to the Historic Preservation Advisory Board (HPAB) for their May 19, 2022 
meeting.  Staff should note that the City Attorney has reviewed this case and agrees with the Historic Preservation Advisory 
Board’s (HPAB’s) determination for denial.  
 

153



 

154



 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION ADVISORY BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 

 

TO: Historic Preservation Advisory Board 
 

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning 
 

DATE: May 19, 2022 
 

SUBJECT: H2022-004; Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for 501 Kernodle Street  
 

 

On April 21, 2022, the Historic Preservation Advisory Board (HPAB) reviewed a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) request 
for the property at 501 Kernodle Street.  Specifically, the applicant -- Tim Herriage -- was requesting the Certificate of 
Appropriateness (COA) for the purpose of [1] demolishing an existing 176 SF covered porch and [2] constructing a driveway 
approach off of Williams Street.  Ultimately, the board approved a motion to grant the Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for 
the demolition of the covered porch, but deny the Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) and recommend denial of the variance 
request to the Planning and Zoning Commission for the driveway approach off of Williams Street.  This motion was approved 
by a vote of 4-0, with Board Members Miller, Bowlin and Adams absent.  At the time of the meeting, staff was under the 
impression that the variance request to the driveway spacing requirements could continue forward to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission with a recommendation for denial regardless of the Board’s action on the Certificate of Appropriateness (COA); 
however, after reviewing the requirements of the Unified Development Code (UDC) with the City Attorney, it was determined 
that the request could not move forward to the Planning and Zoning Commission without an approved Certificate of 
Appropriateness (COA) from the Historic Preservation Advisory Board (HPAB).  Since staff had advised the Board to word 
their motion as a recommendation to the Planning and Zoning Commission, the City Attorney has advised staff to bring the 
case back to the Historic Preservation Advisory Board (HPAB) to allow them to rehear the case, and make a corrected motion.  
In response to this, the applicant has submitted a Historic Preservation Advisory Board (HPAB) application (see the 
application in the attached packet) requesting a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for the driveway, and claiming -- that 
regardless of the Development Application that was filed requesting a variance to the driveway spacing requirements -- this is 
his first request for a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for the driveway.  Staff should point out that regardless of if this 
case is a reconsideration of the previous motion or a new case entirely, the Historic Preservation Advisory Board (HPAB) 
retains the discretion to: [1] approve the Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) [which would send a recommendation of 
approval for the variance request to the Planning and Zoning Commission] or [2] deny the Certificate of Appropriateness 
(COA) application.  Staff should note that if the Board chooses to deny the request, the applicant has the right to appeal the 
Board’s decision to the City Council.  When considering an appeal “…the sole issue before the City Council shall be whether 
the board erred in its decision.  The City Council shall consider the same standards and evidence that was considered in 
making the decision.  Appeal to the City Council constitutes the final administrative remedy.” 
 
Staff should note that the applicant has provided additional information since the original submittal, and that this information 
has been provided in the attached packet.  Based on this new information, staff has updated the case memo from the April 21, 
2022 meeting to: [1] remove the information relating to the Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for the covered porch, and [2] 
to address the new information provided by the applicant.  With this being said, the new information provided by the applicant 
has not changed staff’s position with regard to this request, and staff is still of the opinion that allowing this driveway approach 
off of SH-66 could create the potential for an unsafe condition; however, all requests for a Certificate of Appropriateness 
(COA) are discretionary decisions for the Historic Preservation Advisory Board (HPAB).  Should the Board have any questions 
concerning this case, staff and the applicant will be present at the meeting to discuss. 

155



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION ADVISORY BOARD CASE MEMO 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 

 

TO: Historic Preservation Advisory Board 
 

DATE: May 19, 2022 
 

APPLICANT: Tim Herriage 
 

CASE NUMBER: H2022-004; Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for 501 Kernodle Street 
 

 

SUMMARY 
 
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Tim 
Herriage for the approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for 
a High Contributing Property being a 0.7096-acre parcel of land 
identified as Lot 1-R, Block 2, Buttgen Addition, City of Rockwall, 
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District, 
situated within the Old Town Rockwall (OTR) Historic District, 
addressed as 501 Kernodle Street, and take any action necessary. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The structure at 501 Kernodle Street was constructed in 1885 by M. H. 
McCoy.  Mr. McCoy was a local businessman who also owned 
Rockwall’s first hardware store and later became a prominent banker.  
The home was purchased by Jim and Pat Buttgen in 1977.  During their 
tenure in the house the Buttgen’s completed several remodels of the 
home including: [1] finishing the attic into a large bedroom and 
bathroom, [2] added a den to the lower level, [3] restoration of the pine 
floors throughout the home, and [4] added kitchen cabinets.  During the 
remodel of the home, the Buttgens discovered the remains of a unique 
underground watering system invented by Mr. McCoy.  According to 
the 2017 Historic Resource Survey, the house was constructed in a 
Modified L-Plan with Folk Victorian style influences and is classified as 
a High Contributing Property.  According to the Rockwall Central 
Appraisal District (RCAD), situated on the subject property is the 2,152 
SF single-family home that was constructed in 1885, two (2) covered 
porches -- being 176 SF and 476 SF -- constructed in 1885, a 100 SF 
gazebo constructed in 1980, and a 480 SF detached garage 
constructed in 1986. 
 
The subject property was originally platted as Block 2, F&M Addition on 
September 14, 1896 (see Figure 2).  At the time of platting the property 
included the two (2) lots to the west of the subject property (i.e. 
identified by RCAD as NW/4 C and SW/4 C of Block 2, F&M Addition).  
This indicates that at the time the F&M Addition was established Block 
2 was a single property.  This property was later subdivided and 
established as Lot 1-R, Block 2 Buttgen Addition on July 3, 2005.  
Based on the City’s Historic Plat/Ownership Books staff has been able 
to verify the configuration and ownership of the property since 1968 
(see Figures 3 & 4).  
 

FIGURE 1: AUGUST 10, 2012 

FIGURE 2: F&M ADDITION SUBDIVISION PLAT (1896) 

156



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 2 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

   

PURPOSE 
 
The applicant is requesting approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for the purpose of constructing a new driveway 
off of Williams Street that does not meet the minimum standards stipulated by the Texas Department of Transportation (TXDOT) 
or the City of Rockwall.  
 
ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS 
 
The subject property is located at 501 Kernodle Street.  The land uses adjacent to the subject property are as follows: 

 
North: Directly north of the subject property is Margaret Street, which is identified as a R2U (residential, two [2] lane, 

undivided roadway) on the Master Thoroughfare Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive 
Plan. Beyond this is a vacant 0.43-acre parcel of land (i.e. 601 Kenodle Street) zoned Single-Family 7 (SF-7) 
District, and identified as a Non-Contributing Property. Beyond this are the boundaries of the Old Town Rockwall 
(OTR) Historic District followed by several parcels of land developed with single-family homes that are zoned Single-
Family 7 (SF-7) District. 

 
South: Directly south of the subject is Williams Street, which is identified as a Minor Collector on the City’s Master 

Thoroughfare Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan. Beyond this are three (3) 
parcels of land (i.e. 306, 308, and 310 Williams Street) developed with single-family homes that are zoned Single-
Family 7 (SF-7) District. 306 & 310 Williams Street are classified as Low Contributing Properties and 308 Williams 
Street is classified as Low Contributing Property. Beyond this is Lofland Park, which is a 1.377-acre public park.  

 
East: Directly east of the subject property Kernodle Street, which is identified as a R2U (residential, two [2] lane, undivided 

roadway) on the Master Thoroughfare Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan. 
Beyond this are three (3) parcels of land (i.e. 502 and 506 Kernodle Street and 501 Austin Street) developed with 
single-family homes. All of these properties are zoned Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District, are located within the Old 
Town Rockwall Historic District, and are designated as Non-Contributing Properties. Beyond this is Austin Street, 
which is identified as a R2U (residential, two [2] lane, undivided roadway) on the Master Thoroughfare Plan 
contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan. Beyond this is 501 Williams Street, which is 
zoned Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District and is classified as a Non-Contributing Property.  

 
West: Directly west of the subject property are two (2) parcels of land (i.e. 302 and 303 N. Fannin Street) developed with 

single-family homes zoned Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District. 303 N. Fannin Street is classified as a Medium 
Contributing Property and 302 N. Fannin Street is classified as a High Contributing Property.  Beyond this is N. 
Fannin Street, which is identified as a Minor Collector on the Master Thoroughfare Plan contained in the 
OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan. Beyond this are three (3) parcels of land (i.e. 405, 503 & 601 N. 
Fannin Street) developed with single-family homes and zoned Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District.  405 & 503 N. Fannin 
Street are classified as Non-Contributing Properties and 601 N. Fannin Street is classified as a High Contributing 
Property.  Beyond this is the boundary of the Old Town Rockwall (OTR) Historic District. 

 

FIGURES 3 & 4: EXCERPTS FROM THE CITY’S HISTORIC PLAT/OWNERSHIP BOOKS 

157



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 3 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

 
FIGURE 5: LOCATION MAP 

 
CHARACTERISTICS OF THE PROJECT 
 
The applicant -- Tim Herriage -- recently purchased the 
subject property from Jim and Pat Buttgen, and is in the 
process of remodeling the single-family home on the subject 
property.  As part of the remodel the applicant is proposing 
to construct a driveway approach off of Williams Street and 
remove the existing driveway.  The site plan provided by the 
applicant shows that the driveway will be approximately 
140-feet from the intersection of Williams Street and 
Kernodle Street.  The applicant’s letter states that the 
driveway will be constructed with concrete and is being 
proposed to facilitate better drainage on the property.  Staff 
should note, that this driveway relocation would be 
necessary if the applicant is proposing to subdivide the lot in 
the future.  Currently, the property is served by a gravel driveway that extends from the subject property to Margert Street. 
 
CONFORMANCE TO THE HISTORIC DISTRICT GUIDELINES & CITY’S CODES 
 
According to Subsection 06.03(F), Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for Alteration or New Construction, of Article 05, District 
Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC), “(t)he provisions of this ordinance [Historic Overlay (HOV) 
District] shall apply only to those properties … which meet the following criteria: [1] either be a designed historical landmark or 
be wholly or partially located within a designated historic district, and [2] either be a contributing property as defined by 
Subsection B or be located within 200-feet of a contributing property.”  In this case, the subject property meets all of the criteria 
for a property that would require a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA).  Specifically, it is situated wholly within the Old Town 
Rockwall (OTR) Historic District, is designated as a High Contributing Property, and is directly adjacent to two (2) contributing 
properties (i.e. 302 Margaret Street which is a High Contributing Property and 303 N. Fannin Street which is a Medium 

FIGURE 6: PROPOSED DRIVEWAY LOCATION 

158



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 4 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

Contributing Property).  In addition, Section 06, Certificate of Appropriateness (COA), of Article 11, Development Applications 
and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) states that “(a)ny person carrying out any work that requires 
a building permit for exterior alteration, restoration, reconstruction, new construction, moving or demolition of a property within 
a historic district that is visible must first obtain a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) from the Historic Preservation Advisory 
Board (HPAB) …”  Based on this, the applicant’s scope of work requires a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) from the Historic 
Preservation Advisory Board (HPAB). 
 
In reviewing and acting upon a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) “(t)he Historic Preservation Advisory Board (HPAB) shall 
follow the design guidelines as adopted by the City Council in its consideration of all applications for a Certificate of 
Appropriateness (COA).”  In this case, the Building Standards relating to driveways contained in Appendix D, Historic 
Preservation Guidelines, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) that are applicable to the applicant’s request are as follows: 
“[1] The purpose of the driveway shall be to create a paved surface for the movement of vehicles to parking areas. The driveway 
is defined as the paved area within the property line extending from the back of the sidewalk or lot line to the garage, out building 
or porte-cochere. [2] The driveway should not exceed a width of ten (10) feet. [3] The driveway may extend along the side of 
the residence or structure, through the porte-cochere (if applicable) to the to the rear yard … [5] On a corner lot, the driveway 
may extend from the side street to the garage if the garage is facing the side street. All other width and approach regulations 
will apply to driveways on corner lots … [8] Parking should be on “improved” surfaces only, thereby maintaining the integrity of 
the front, side and rear yards of the property.”  In addition, Subsection (F) of these guidelines also states that “(u)nless previously 
used for a driveway, the side yard is to be used for landscaping with the purpose of enhancing the structure with plant materials.”   
 
In this case, the applicant is proposing to relocate the driveway from Margaret Street to Williams Street.  As stated above, “… 
(o)n a corner lot, the driveway may extend from the side street to the garage if the garage is facing the side street.”  The garage 
at 501 Kernodle Street was constructed in 1986, faces towards the rear property line, and takes access from Margaret Street.  
In addition, the current driveway on Margaret Street does meet the City’s driveway spacing requirements.  The applicant’s 
request of setting the driveway 140-feet from the intersection of Kernodle Street and Margaret Street does not meet the minimum 
standards established by the City of Rockwall and the Texas Department of Transportation (TXDOT).  Specifically, the City’s 
Engineering Standards of Design and Construction Manual stipulates a minimum driveway spacing of 200-feet from the 
intersection of a Collector (i.e. SH-66 or Williams Street) and Local (i.e. 
Kernodle Street), and the Texas Department of Transportation’s 
(TXDOT’s) Access Management Manual requires a minimum spacing for 
driveways of 200-feet for State Highways with a posted speed of 30 MPH.  
The applicant has stated in his letter that there are currently seven (7) 
driveways within 200-feet of the subject property that take access onto SH-
66.  It should be noted that there are actually only six (6) residential 
driveways within 200-feet of the subject property, and that all but one (1) 
driveway is located on the southside of SH-66 (see the driveway exhibit in 
the attached packet).  The subject property is currently on the northside of 
SH-66.  Staff should also point out that these homes were constructed in 
1905, 1918, 1939, 1975, 1985, and 1991, well before the current traffic 
volumes carried by this roadway were established, and that many of the 
properties on the southside of SH-66 only have the ability to access SH-
66.  The subject property has the ability to access both Kernodle Street 
and Margaret Street, which are smaller roadways intended to carry 
residential traffic.  It is also worth mentioning that no new driveways have 
been permitted onto SH-66 in this area since 1991.  Staff did request that 
the Police Department provide a list of vehicular accidents in the area 
between N. Fannin Street and Kernodle Street from 2020 to present, and 
was provided with a report of five (5) separate vehicular accident reports 
in this block (i.e. one [1] from 2020, two [2] from 2021, and two [2] from 
2022) [this has been provided in the attached packet].   
 
With this case, the applicant has submitted a revised letter and additional 
information from the information that was originally presented at the April 
21, 2022 meeting.  The applicant’s new letter states that the Sanborn Maps 
from 1911 and 1934 show that “…carriages/vehicles most likely would have 

FIGURE 7: 1911 SANBORN MAPS 

FIGURE 8: 1934 SANBORN MAPS 

159



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 5 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

entered the home from Williams.  Specifically given the clear ‘dividing line’ present on both maps and location of barn/stable.”  
Staff has reviewed the Sanborn Maps, the original subdivision plat, and all properties that were constructed prior to 1900 to 
determine if there is any validity to the applicant’s statement.  Specifically, staff observed that: [1] the home was originally platted 
on a single lot that took up the entire block indicating that the land making up Block 2 was under common ownership, [2] the 
Sanborn Maps do not show driveway access, and [3] based on homes constructed during a similar time period as the home on 
the subject property there does not appear to be a pattern to where driveways were located during this time period (see Table 
1).  Taking all of this into consideration, staff does not see anything that would indicate that “…carriages/vehicles most likely 
would have entered the home from Williams.”  In fact, it is just as probable to assume that the property had access from Kernodle 
Street, especially when considering that the front door of the home on the subject property faces Kernodle Street.  Finally, in 
the applicant’s information he links the proposed driveway to fixing drainage issues on the site.  Staff has reviewed the 
information that the applicant has submitted and cannot determine a correlation between the two (2) issues (i.e. proper drainage 
of the property can be achieved regardless of where the driveway is located).  It should also be noted that the applicant’s plan 
appears to propose creating a concentrated flow condition, which would have to be engineered to determine if the existing 
drainage systems has the capacity necessary to accommodate this flow.  In addition, this would have to be approved by the 
City of Rockwall and the Texas Department of Transportation (TXDOT). 
 
TABLE 1: DRIVEWAY LOCATION IN RELATION TO THE FRONT DOOR FOR HOME CONSTRUCTED PRIOR TO 1900 
NOTES: THE FRONT DOOR IS ASSUMED TO BE THE FRONT OF THE HOUSE SO: [1] FRONT = DRIVEWAY AND FRONT DOOR FACING THE SAME STREET; [2] SIDE 
= DRIVEWAY IS LOCATED ON ONE OF THE SIDE YARDS WITH THE FRONT DOOR FACING THE FRONT YARD; AND [3] REAR = DRIVEWAY IS AT THE REAR OF 
THE PROPERTY AND THE FRONT DOOR IS FACING THE FRONT YARD. 

PROPERTY YEAR BUILT DRIVEWAY LOCATION CURRENT USE MULTIPLE STREET FRONTAGE 
307 S. CLARK STREET 1890 FRONT RESIDENTIAL NO 
302 S. FANNIN STREET 1895 REAR COMMERCIAL YES 
702 N. GOLIAD STREET 1898 FRONT COMMERCIAL NO 
912 N. GOLIAD STREET 1893 FRONT COMMERCIAL NO 
501 KERNODLE STREET 1885 SIDE YARD RESIDENTIAL YES 
300 MUNSON STREET 1880 FRONT RESIDENTIAL YES 
402 MUNSON STREET 1885 SIDE YARD RESIDENTAIL YES 
406 E. RUSK STREET 1890 FRONT RESIDENTAIL YES 
507 E. RUSK STREET 1890 SIDE YARD RESIDENTAIL YES 
406 STARR STREET 1896 FRONT AND SIDE YARD RESIDENTAIL YES 
501 STORRS STREET 1885 FRONT RESIDENTIAL YES 
602 STORRS STREET 1890 SIDE YARD RESIDENTIAL YES 
605 WASHINGTON STREET 1895 FRONT RESIDENTAIL NO 

 
Subsection 06.03(G)(5), Standards for Approval, of Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development 
Code (UDC), states “(t)he Historic Preservation Advisory Board must approve the application for a Certificate of Appropriateness 
(COA) if it determines that … the application will not adversely affect the character of the site and the proposed work is consistent 
with the regulations contained in this section [Section 06.03, Historic Overlay (HOV) District, UDC] and proposed preservation 
criteria [Appendix D, Historic Preservation Guidelines, UDC].”  Based on the information contained in this case memo, the 
proposed driveway approach off of SH-66 appears to not only have the potential to create an unsafe condition by adding an 
additional driveway onto SH-66, but also provides the applicant with the ability to subdivide the property into additional lots that 
could affect the character of the subject property.  In addition, the driveway request is not consistent with the guidelines contained 
in the Unified Development Code (UDC) and used to evaluate Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) requests.  With all of this 
being said, the approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) is a discretionary decision for the Historic Preservation 
Advisory Board (HPAB).  Since the applicant will need to request a variance from both the City of Rockwall’s Planning and 
Zoning Commission and the Texas Department of Transportation (TXDOT), should the Historic Preservation Advisory Board 
(HPAB) choose to approve the request for a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) a recommendation for approval would be 
forwarded to the Planning and Zoning Commission; however, if the Historic Preservation Advisory Board (HPAB) chooses to 
deny the Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) this case could not move forward to the Planning and Zoning Commission for a 
variance to the driveway spacing requirements. 
 
NOTIFICATIONS 
 
On May 6, 2022, staff mailed 30 property owner notifications to all property owners and occupants within 200-feet of the subject 
property.  At the time this case memo was prepared, staff had not received any notices returned regarding the applicant’s 
request. 
 
 

160



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 6 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
If the Historic Preservation Advisory Board (HPAB) chooses to approve the request for a Certificate of Occupancy (COA), staff 
would propose the following conditions of approval: 
 
(1) The applicant will be required to seek approval of a variance from the Planning and Zoning Commission and the Texas 

Department of Transportation (TXDOT) for driveway spacing. 
 

(2) Any construction resulting from the approval of this request shall conform to the requirements set forth by the Unified 
Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted 
engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state 
and federal government. 

161



162



LILLIAN ST

E INTERURBAN ST

KE
R

N
O

D
LE

 S
T

AU
ST

IN
 S

T
OLIVE ST

N
FA

N
N

IN
ST

MARGARET ST

")66

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

City of Rockwall The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user. I

0 90 180 270 36045
Feet

Case Location Map =

H2022-004 COA for 501 Kernodle Street

163



W KAUFMAN ST

E WASHINGTON ST

N
AL

AM
O

R
D

OLI VE ST

HIGHLAND DR

HEATH ST

W
ILDW

O
ODLN

AU
ST

IN
 S

T

N
 F

AN
N

IN
 S

T

N
 C

LA
R

K 
ST

E RUSK ST
E KAUFMAN ST

N
AS

H
S

T

JACKSON S T

ELM DR

HIGHCOT TON LN

PA
R

KS
 A

VE

S 
G

O
LI

A
D

ST
N

G
O

LI
AD

ST ")66

")205

KE
R

N
O

D
LE

 S
T

AU
ST

IN
 S

T

N
 F

AN
N

IN
 S

T

LILLIAN ST

OLIVE ST

MARGARET ST

")66

601
KERNODLE ST

302
WILLIAMS ST

501
KERNODLE ST

604
KERNODLE ST

601 N
FANNIN ST

501
AUSTIN ST

306
WILLIAMS ST

301
MARGARET ST

401 N
FANNIN ST

606
KERNODLE ST

504
AUSTIN ST

402 WILLIAMS ST308
WILLIAMS ST

503 N
FANNIN ST

603 AUSTIN ST

310
WILLIAMS ST

303
WILLIAMS ST

506
KERNODLE ST

602
KERNODLE ST

607
KERNODLE ST

502
KERNODLE ST

302
MARGARET ST

304
WILLIAMS ST

406
WILLIAMS ST

465 LILLIAN ST

405 N
FANNIN ST

308 N
FANNIN ST

402 MARGARET ST

402
KERNODLE ST

404
KERNODLE ST

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

City of Rockwall

I

Date Saved:  4/4/2022
For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745

0 75 150 225 30037.5
Feet

Legend

Subject Property

200' Buffer

Notified Properties

Case Number:
Case Name:
Case Type:
Zoning:
Case Address:

H2022-004
COA for High Contributing Property
Historic
Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District
501 Kernodle Street

164



PRYOR MICA 
1036 SIGNAL RIDGE PLACE 

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

PLACE LISANNE 
1531 ZAPATA DR  

EL DORADO HILLS, CA 95762 

LAURENCE CROSSING LLC 
2500 DISCOVERY BLVD SUITE 300 

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

ORTAMOND DONALD J & JANA R 
301 MARGARET ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

LOFTUS GERALDINE J 
302 E MARGARET ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

ADAMS-ROMANO KEVIN PATRICK & JULLIAN 
ROSE 

303 WILLIAMS ST  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

POINTER PRICE 
304 WILLIAMS ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

MORALES JOSE L JR AND 
PHUONG A VUONG 
306 WILLIAMS ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

LAURENCE CROSSING LLC 
306 WILLIAMS ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

MAY PATRICIA A 
308 WILLIAMS ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

LAURENCE CROSSING LLC 
308 FANNIN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

WINES DEBORAH C 
310 WILLIAMS ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

PEREIRA ASHLE RENEE 
402 WILLIAMS ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

PLACE LISANNE 
406 WILLIAMS ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

SUMBLIN BEN III ESTATE OF 
TONI YEAGER, GUARDIAN 

501 AUSTIN ST  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

JENNIFER'S HOMES INC 
501 KERNODLE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

BARRON JOSE FELIX & MARIA MERCEDES 
502 KERNODLE ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

SUMBLIN BEN III ESTATE OF 
TONI YEAGER, GUARDIAN 

504 PRESIDIO DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

SMITH ALAN E & JUDY ROPER SMITH 
506 KERNODLE ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

JENNIFER'S HOMES INC 
519 E INTERSTATE 30 #442 

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

HALL DOUGLAS A & MARCI 
601 N FANNIN ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

BROWN JONATHAN R & CHRISTY A 
601 KERNODLE ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

GASKIN STEVE AND 
MICHAEL FLANARY 

602 KERNODLE STREET 
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

LOFLAND JANA J 
603 AUSTIN ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

FUNK TED FREDRICK AND REBECCA LYNN 
604 KERNODLE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

POINTER PRICE 
605 NAKOMA DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

PRYOR MICA 
606 KERNODLE ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

MULLINS CHRISTOPHER CHARLES AND ARYN 
ELISE 

607 KERNODLE ST  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

BROWN JONATHAN R & CHRISTY A 
7814 KILLARNEY LANE  
ROWLETT, TX 75089 

BARRON JOSE FELIX & MARIA MERCEDES 
9 PRINGLE LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

165



PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

 

CITY OF ROCKWALL ● PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT ● 385 S. GOLIAD STREET ● ROCKWALL, TEXAS 75087 ● P: (972) 771 -7745 ● E: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

CITY OF ROCKWALL                                         
PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 
EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 

 
Property Owner and/or Resident of the City of Rockwall: 
 
You are hereby notified that the Historic Preservation Advisory Board will consider the following application: 
 
Case No. H2022-004: COA for a 501 Kernodle Street 
 
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Tim Herriage for the approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for a High Contributing Property 
being a 0.7096-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 1-R, Block 2, Buttgen Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District, 
situated within the Old Town Rockwall (OTR) Historic District, addressed as 501 Kernodle Street, and take any action necessary. 
 
For the purpose of considering the effects of such a request, the Historic Preservation Advisory Board will hold a public hearing on Thursday, May 19, 2022 at 6:00 
PM. This hearing will be held in the City Council Chambers at City Hall, 385 S. Goliad Street. 
 
As an interested property owner, you are invited to attend these meetings.  If you prefer to express your thoughts in writing please return the form to: 
 

Ryan Miller 
Rockwall Planning and Zoning Dept. 

385 S. Goliad Street 
Rockwall, TX 75087 

 
You may also email your comments to the Planning Department at planning@rockwall.com.  If you choose to email the Planning Department please include your 
name and address for identification purposes.   
 
Your comments must be received by Thursday, May 19, 2022 at 4:00 PM to ensure they are included in the information provided to the Historic Preservation 
Advisory Board.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
Ryan Miller, AICP 
Director of Planning & Zoning 

 
MORE INFORMATION ON THIS CASE CAN BE FOUND AT: https://sites.google.com/site/rockwallplanning/development/development-cases 

 
PLEASE RETURN THE BELOW FORM 

 
Case No. H2022-004: COA for 501 Kernodle Street 
 
Please place a check mark on the appropriate line below:  
 

 I am in favor of the request for the reasons listed below.         
 

 I am opposed to the request for the reasons listed below. 
 

 

 

 

 

Name:  

Address:  

 

Tex. Loc. Gov. Code, Sec. 211.006 (d) If a proposed change to a regulation or boundary is protested in accordance with this subsection, the proposed change must receive, in 
order to take effect, the affirmative vote of at least three-fourths of all members of the governing body.  The protest must be written and signed by the owners of at least 20 
percent of either: (1) the area of the lots or land covered by the proposed change; or (2) the area of the lots or land immediately adjoining the area covered by the proposed 
change and extending 200 feet from that area. 

 
PLEASE SEE LOCATION MAP OF SUBJECT PROPERTY ON THE BACK OF THIS NOTICE 

166

mailto:planning@rockwall.com


167



168



1

Lee, Henry

From: Taylor Pointer <taylorpointer@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, May 17, 2022 2:13 PM
To: Planning
Subject: Case no H2022-004 COA for 501 kernodle st

We oppose the request because we want to maintain the historical integrity of the neighborhood.  We also don’t want 
to see this property (or any property along this stretch of Williams St) to go commercial. 
Thank you, 
Taylor and Price Pointer 
304 Williams St. 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
________________________ 
This email was scanned by Bitdefender 
  CAUTION:   This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 
recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 
 
 
 

169



170



171

rmiller
Oval



172

rmiller
Oval



173



174



Dear Board Members, 

Today, I come before you to request a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) to install a driveway from 

the rear of my garage to Williams Street.  I am fully aware that this is just one of three steps to the 

process.  The first step (COA) only allows the Planning and Zoning Commission to consider this request.  

If, and only if, I can pass the P&Z process, I understand I would still need Tx DOT approval.  Much of this 

is going to be difficult, but it is needed in order to protect the structure. 

As you can see in the attachments, TX DOT has installed an inlet on the SE corner of what was originally 

Block 2 of the Farmers and Merchants addition.  When viewing the contour diagrams provided by the 

City, you will see the current lot drainage forces all water from more than 1.3 acres of land under the 

historic property located at 501 Kernodle. 

You have a duty to protect and preserve this property.  You have a duty to act in a professional manner.  

If you cannot put aside your personal relationships with opposition to this plan, you should recuse 

yourself or resign. 

Scientifically, this plan is required.   

• I plan to attempt to relocate the “greenhouse” and cut a 2’ deep and 3’ wide drainage swell N 

and S along the property.  This will stop what is known as “lot to lot” drainage. 

• The sidewalk along Williams will cross the driveway, as is customary in residential 

neighborhoods.   

• There will be a drainage relief inlet and pipe under the driveway. Possibly a culvert.  This will 

allow the water to run West to East along Williams to the inlet.  Ultimately TX DOT would have 

the final say on that.  

• We will cut another drainage relief trench West to East that will be 3’ deep on the west side and 

only 6” deep on the East.  It will be a 3 foot wide relief. 

This plan specifically addresses preserving a highly contributing property, and as such, dictates the board 

approves and supports this plan. 

 

Thank you. 

 

175



1911:  Driveway could not have been 
in current gravel area according to map 

and structures present.  Given 
orientation of porch, carriages/vehicles 

most likely would have entered the 
home from Williams.  Specifically given 

the clear “dividing line” present on 
both maps and location of barn/stable.

1934:  302 Margaret is represented.  Driveway 
could not have been in current gravel area 

according to map and structures present.  Given 
orientation of porch, carriages most likely would 

have entered the home from Williams.  Specifically 
given the clear “dividing line” present on both 

maps and location of barn/stables.
176



Current topography shows the location of 
the inlet and lack of drainage areas is 

pushing an acre of water under the home.
177



Proposal 
would only 
require 
removal of 
one tree for 
driveway.  A 
Crape Myrtle 
which we will 
attempt to 
transplant

3’ wide swale redirecting water

3
’ w

id
e sw

ale red
irectin

g w
ater

inlet

178



Site plan subject to 
engineering and approval.

Greenhouse relocated if it 
doesn’t fall apart.

179



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION ADVISORY BOARD CASE MEMO 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 

 

TO: Historic Preservation Advisory Board 
 

DATE: April 21, 2022 
 

APPLICANT: Tim Herriage 
 

CASE NUMBER: H2022-004; Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for 501 Kernodle Street 
 

 

SUMMARY 
 
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Tim Herriage for the approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness 
(COA) for a High Contributing Property being a 0.7096-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 1-R, Block 2, Buttgen Addition, City 
of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District, situated within the Old Town Rockwall (OTR) 
Historic District, addressed as 501 Kernodle Street, and take any action necessary. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The structure at 501 Kernodle Street was constructed in 1885 by M. H. 
McCoy.  Mr. McCoy was a local businessman who also owned 
Rockwall’s first hardware store and later became a prominent banker.  
The home was purchased by Jim and Pat Buttgen in 1977.  During 
their tenure in the house the Buttgen’s completed several remodels of 
the home including: [1] finishing the attic into a large bedroom and 
bathroom, [2] added a den to the lower level, [3] restoration of the pine 
floors throughout the home, and [4] added kitchen cabinets.  During 
the remodel of the home, the Buttgens discovered the remains of a 
unique underground watering system invented by Mr. McCoy.  
According to the 2017 Historic Resource Survey, the house was 
constructed in a Modified L-Plan with Folk Victorian style influences 
and is classified as a High Contributing Property.  According to the 
Rockwall Central Appraisal District (RCAD), situated on the subject 
property is the 2,152 SF single-family home that was constructed in 
1885, two (2) covered porches -- being 176 SF and 476 SF -- constructed in 1885, a 100 SF gazebo constructed in 1980, and 
a 480 SF detached garage constructed in 1986. 
 
PURPOSE 
 
The applicant is requesting approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for the purpose of: [1] demolishing the 176 SF 
porch situated on the north side of the primary structure, and [2] constructing a new driveway off of Williams Street that does 
not meet the minimum standards stipulated by the Texas Department of Transportation (TXDOT) or the City.  
 
ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS 
 
The subject property is located at 501 Kernodle Street.  The land uses adjacent to the subject property are as follows: 

 
North: Directly north of the subject property is Margaret Street, which is identified as a R2U (residential, two [2] lane, 

undivided roadway) on the Master Thoroughfare Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive 
Plan. Beyond this is a vacant 0.43-acre parcel of land (i.e. 601 Kenodle Street) zoned Single-Family 7 (SF-7) 
District, and identified as a Non-Contributing Property. Beyond this are the boundaries of the Old Town Rockwall 

FIGURE 1: AUGUST 10, 2012 

180



(OTR) Historic District followed by several parcels of land developed with single-family homes that are zoned Single-
Family 7 (SF-7) District. 

 
South: Directly south of the subject is Williams Street, which is identified as a Minor Collector on the City’s Master 

Thoroughfare Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan. Beyond this are three (3) 
parcels of land (i.e. 306, 308, and 310 Williams Street) developed with single-family homes that are zoned Single-
Family 7 (SF-7) District. 306 & 310 Williams Street are classified as Low Contributing Properties and 308 Williams 
Street is classified as Low Contributing Property. Beyond this is Lofland Park, which is a 1.377-acre public park.  

 
East: Directly east of the subject property Kernodle Street, which is identified as a R2U (residential, two [2] lane, undivided 

roadway) on the Master Thoroughfare Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan. 
Beyond this are three (3) parcels of land (i.e. 502 and 506 Kernodle Street and 501 Austin Street) developed with 
single-family homes. All of these properties are zoned Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District, are located within the Old 
Town Rockwall Historic District, and are designated as Non-Contributing Properties. Beyond this is Austin Street, 
which is identified as a R2U (residential, two [2] lane, undivided roadway) on the Master Thoroughfare Plan 
contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan. Beyond this is 501 Williams Street, which is 
zoned Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District and is classified as a Non-Contributing Property.  

 
West: Directly west of the subject property are two (2) parcels of land (i.e. 302 and 303 N. Fannin Street) developed with 

single-family homes zoned Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District. 303 N. Fannin Street is classified as a Medium 
Contributing Property and 302 N. Fannin Street is classified as a High Contributing Property.  Beyond this is N. 
Fannin Street, which is identified as a Minor Collector on the Master Thoroughfare Plan contained in the 
OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan. Beyond this are three (3) parcels of land (i.e. 405, 503 & 601 N. 
Fannin Street) developed with single-family homes and zoned Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District.  405 & 503 N. Fannin 
Street are classified as Non-Contributing Properties and 601 N. Fannin Street is classified as a High Contributing 
Property.  Beyond this is the boundary of the Old Town Rockwall (OTR) Historic District. 

 

 
FIGURE 2: LOCATION MAP 

 

181



CHARACTERISTICS OF THE PROJECT 
 
The applicant -- Tim Herriage -- recently purchased the subject property 
and is in the process of remodeling the single-family home on the subject 
property.  As part of the remodel the applicant is proposing to [1] demolish 
an existing 176 SF covered porch and [2] construct a driveway approach 
off of Williams Street.  The 176 SF covered porch is situated on the 
northside of the existing single-family home.  According to the Rockwall 
Central Appraisal District (RCAD) the covered porch was constructed in 
1885; however, based on the 1911 & 1934 Sanborn Maps the covered 
porch was not constructed as of April 1934.  Staff has verified that the 
covered porch has been situated on the subject property since prior to 1977 
based on historic records of the property.  The applicant is proposing to 
remove this porch and create a standard 18-inch roof overhang (see Figure 
5 for an image of the covered porch).  According to the applicant’s letter 
the reason that the demolition is being requested is to facilitate drainage 
improvements on the property, and to allow the future subdivision of the 
subject property into “…as many as four total [lots], or as little as two [lots].”  
 
The applicant is also proposing to construct a new driveway along Williams 
Street.  The site plan provided by the applicant shows that the driveway 
will be approximately 140-feet from the intersection of Williams Street and 
Kernodle Street.  The applicant’s letter states that the driveway will be 
constructed with concrete.  This driveway would be necessary if the applicant is proposing to subdivide the lot in the future.  
Currently, the property is served from Margert Street. 
 

FIGURE 5: COVERED PORCH TO BE REMOVED FIGURE 6: PROPOSED DRIVEWAY LOCATION 
 
CONFORMANCE TO THE HISTORIC DISTRICT GUIDELINES & CITY’S CODES 
 
According to Subsection 06.03(F), Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for Alteration or New Construction, of Article 05, District 
Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC), “(t)he provisions of this ordinance [Historic Overlay (HOV) 
District] shall apply only to those properties … which meet the following criteria: [1] either be a designed historical landmark or 
be wholly or partially located within a designated historic district, and [2] either be a contributing property as defined by 
Subsection B or be located within 200-feet of a contributing property.”  In this case, the subject property meets all of the criteria 
for a property that would require a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA).  Specifically, it is situated wholly within the Old Town 
Rockwall (OTR) Historic District, is designated as a High Contributing Property, and is directly adjacent to two (2) contributing 
properties (i.e. 302 Margaret Street which is a High Contributing Property and 303 N. Fannin Street which is a Medium 
Contributing Property).  This section of the ordinance goes on to list specific examples of projects where a Certificate of 
Appropriateness (COA) is required; “…examples of situations that require a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for work 
performed on an applicable property [include:] …(b) Demolition or removal of an existing structure… [and] (c) alterations to the 
façade, including additions and removals that will be visible from a public street…”.  The two (2) projects proposed by the 

FIGURE 3: 1911 SANBORN MAPS 

FIGURE 4: 1934 SANBORN MAPS 

182



applicant (i.e. the addition of a new concrete driveway and demolition of an existing covered porch) are projects that require a 
Certificate of Appropriateness (COA). 
 
Looking at the proposed demolition of the 176 SF covered porch, Section 10, Demolition Criteria, of Appendix D, Historic 
Preservation Guidelines, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) states:  
 
“Demolition of a structure which contributes historically or architecturally to the Historic District should be prohibited, except as 
provided below.  Demolition of a structure would be allowed if: 
 
(a) The building has lost its architectural and historical integrity and importance, and its removal will not result in a negative, 

less appropriate visual effect on the Historic District; or 
(b) A structure does not contribute to the historical or architectural character and importance of the Historic District (e.g. a Non-

Contributing Structure), and its removal will result in a positive, appropriate visual effect on the Historic District; or 
(c) There is an imminent threat to the health, safety and welfare to the surrounding residents and/or property because of an 

unsafe condition that constitutes an emergency (see Section 11, Demolition by Neglect).” 
 
In this case, staff has established that the covered porch is not original to the single-family home that was constructed in 1885.  
Based on the dates estimated by staff (i.e. that the covered porch was constructed after 1934 but prior to 1977), the covered 
porch does not appear to be architecturally and historically significant to the existing single-family home, and the removal of the 
structure would bring the property closer into conformance with original structure constructed by M. H. McCoy.  
 
With regard to the proposed driveway, the applicant has submitted a site plan showing that the drive approach will be constructed 
on the side yard of the subject property off of Williams Street (i.e. SH-66).  According to Section 07, Building Standards, of 
Appendix D, Historic Preservation Guidelines, of the Unified Development Code (UDC), “(u)nless previously used for a driveway, 
the side yard is to be used for landscaping with the purpose of enhancing the structure with plant materials.”  In addition, this 
section goes on to state that “the driveway should not exceed a width of ten (10) feet …” [and] “… (o)n a corner lot, the driveway 
may extend from the side street to the garage if the garage is facing the side street.”  In this case, the garage on the subject 
property was constructed in 1980, faces towards the rear property line, and takes access from Margaret Street.  
 
Staff is also obligated to point out that the applicant’s request of setting the driveway 140-feet from the intersection of Kernodle 
Street and Margaret Street does not meet the minimum standards established by the City of Rockwall and the Texas Department 
of Transportation (TXDOT).  Specifically, the City’s Engineering Standards of Design and Construction Manual stipulates a 
minimum driveway spacing of 200-feet from the intersection of a Collector (i.e. SH-66 or Williams Street) and Local (i.e. Kernodle 
Street), and the Texas Department of Transportation’s (TXDOT’s) Access Management Manual requires a minimum spacing 
for driveways of 200-feet for State Highways with a posted speed of 30 MPH.  The applicant has stated in his letter that there 
are currently seven (7) driveways within 200-feet of the subject property that take access onto SH-66.  It should be noted that 
there are actually only six (6) residential driveways within 200-feet of the subject property, and that all but one (1) driveway is 
located on the southside of SH-66.  The subject property is currently on the northside of SH-66.  Staff should also point out that 
these homes were constructed in 1905, 1918, 1939, 1975, 1985, and 1991, well before the current traffic volumes carried by 
this roadway were established, and that many of the properties on the southside of SH-66 only have the ability to access SH-
66.  The subject property has the ability to access both Kernodle Street and Margaret Street, which are smaller roadways 
intended to carry residential traffic.  It is also worth mentioning that no new driveways have been permitted onto SH-66 in this 
area since 1991.  Staff did request that the Police Department provide a list of vehicular accidents in the area between N. Fannin 
Street and Kernodle Street from 2020 to present, and was provided with a report of five (5) separate vehicular accident reports 
in this block (i.e. one [1] from 2020, two [2] from 2021, and two [2] from 2022).  Since the applicant will need to request a variance 
from both the City of Rockwall’s Planning and Zoning Commission and the Texas Department of Transportation (TXDOT) before 
being able to proceed with construction, the Historic Preservation Advisory Board (HPAB) would be providing a recommendation 
through the action taken in this Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) case. 
 
Subsection 06.03(G)(5), Standards for Approval, of Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development 
Code (UDC), states “(t)he Historic Preservation Advisory Board must approve the application for a Certificate of Appropriateness 
(COA) if it determines that … the application will not adversely affect the character of the site and the proposed work is consistent 
with the regulations contained in this section [Section 06.03, Historic Overlay (HOV) District, UDC] and proposed preservation 
criteria [Appendix D, Historic Preservation Guidelines, UDC].”  As stated above, the proposed demolition of the covered porch 
does not appear to change the essential character of the subject property; however, the proposed driveway approach off of SH-

183



66 appears to not only have the potential to create an unsafe condition by adding an additional driveway on SH-66, but also 
provides the applicant with the ability to subdivide the property into additional lots that could affect the character of the subject 
property.  In addition, the driveway request is not consistent with the regulations contained in the Unified Development Code 
(UDC).  With this being said, the approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) is a discretionary decision for the Historic 
Preservation Advisory Board (HPAB). 
 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
If the Historic Preservation Advisory Board (HPAB) chooses to approve the request for a Certificate of Occupancy (COA), staff 
would propose the following conditions of approval: 
 
(1) The applicant will be required to seek approval of a variance from the Planning and Zoning Commission and the Texas 

Department of Transportation (TXDOT) for driveway spacing. 
 

(2) Any construction resulting from the approval of this request shall conform to the requirements set forth by the Unified 
Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted 
engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state 
and federal government. 

184



185



LILLIAN ST

E INTERURBAN ST

KE
R

N
O

D
LE

 S
T

AU
ST

IN
 S

T
OLIVE ST

N
FA

N
N

IN
ST

MARGARET ST

")66

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

City of Rockwall The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user. I

0 90 180 270 36045
Feet

Case Location Map =

H2022-004 COA for 501 Kernodle Street

186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  
 
TO: Mayor and Council Members 
 
FROM: Mary Smith, City Manager 
 
DATE: June 2, 2022 
 
SUBJECT: Wholesale Supply Contract Second Amendment and Related Agreements – 
Blackland WSC 
  
 
The City supplies wholesale water to Blackland Water Supply Corporation (Blackland) 
under a long-standing agreement.  Staff has completed negotiations on an agreement 
providing continued wholesale service through 2024 with an optional one-year renewal.  
During this time, Blackland’s Board is working to become a direct customer of the North 
Texas Municipal Water District (NTMWD) by establishing a direct connection to their 
system ending our relationship as their wholesale provider.  The following items are 
included in the attached agreements for Council’s consideration. 
Second Amendment highlights: 
• NTMWD has approved adding Blackland as a direct customer. 
• Blackland will be diligently working to design and construct the pump station to 

establish their connection point on SH66 and run transmission lines to their 
customers.  Most of their customers are in the SH276 vicinity.  All costs 
associated with the switch to direct connection to NTMWD will be borne by 
Blackland. 

• The maximum volume of water ever purchased by Blackland as our wholesale 
customer will be transferred from our NTMWD minimums to their at the transition 
date. 

• Blackland will be allowed to increase their maximum connections by about 600 
during the period they remain on our system.   

Airport Road Transfer Agreement highlights: 
• Inside Rockwall city limits (north of I-30) Blackland will transfer the right to serve 

the area under this agreement.   
• We will have to work through the PUCT transfer process but will take several 

months.  This area was annexed into the City in 1998 and we’ve been trying to 
get Blackland to agree to the transfer since that time.  In addition, a small number 
of customers at I-30 and FM549 would be transferred to Rockwall water service. 

• Rockwall will acquire Blackland’s pump station on Airport Road to maintain 
adequate pressures. 

Transfer Agreement SH276 area 

201



• Any areas of the City currently inside the City limits but beyond our ability to serve 
will be served by Blackland.  Blackland agrees to collect our garbage and sewer 
bills (if applicable). 

• At the time that our service capability extends that far then the City and Blackland 
will begin the transfer process.  Emerson Farms on Dowell Road for example. 

 
 
City staff has much appreciated the good working relationship that has developed over 
the last year under Blackland Manager Scott Muckensturm’s leadership.  This 
agreement has been a long time coming.   
 
Staff asks Council to consider authorizing the City Manager to execute the Second 
Amendment, and the related Transfer of Service agreements. 

202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



1

Teague, Kristy

Subject: FW: Boards & Commissions - Jenny Krueger

Sent: Thursday, April 21, 2022 10:44 PM 
 

 
 

 
 

Boards & Commissions 

 

NAME & ADDRESS 
Jenny Krueger 

 E Heath St  Rockwall, TX 75087 

VOTER REGISTRATION 
Registered Voter: Yes 
Voter Registration Nimber:  

PHONE NUMBER & EMAIL 
Phone:    Email:  

PERSONAL DETAILS 
Jenny Krueger is the CEO of the Boys & Girls Club of Northeast Texas.  
 
She has 22 years of experience as a youth development professional and non-profit 
Executive.  She also works as a consultant and coach for a small portfolio of emerging 
nonprofits in the Northeast Texas area.   
 
She has been recognized by Boys & Girls Club of America as a top performing leader in 
the nation, has served as a field consultant, and has been invited to participate on numerous 
national committees and task force initiatives.    
 
She lives in Rockwall with her husband and their two children.  She is an RHS graduate and 
a proud member of the fightin' Texas Aggie class of 2002. They enjoy Aggie football, 
gardening, camping, lake sports, and traveling to visit the family farm in Hye, Texas. 

BOARDS & COMMISSIONS 
Interested in Special Committee or Projects? Yes 

ART COMMISSION 

MAIN STREET BOARD 

 

   
 

 

230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

April 2022 Monthly  
Report  

 

242



 

All Calls By NFIRS Call Type Incident Count
111 Building fire 2
131 Passenger vehicle fire (cars, pickups, SUV's) 4
140 OTHER Natural vegetation fire 1
143 Grass fire 1
160 Special outside fire, other 1
311 Medical assist, assist EMS crew 171
322 Motor vehicle accident with injuries 17
324 Motor vehicle accident with no injuries. 19
342 Search for person in water 2
357 Extrication of victim(s) from machinery 1
411 Gasoline or other flammable liquid spill 1
412 Gas leak (natural gas or LPG) 58
442 Overheated motor 1
444 Power line down 5
445 Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 2
500 Service Call, other 1
511 Lock-out 1
522 Water or steam leak 1
531 Smoke or odor removal 2
550 Public service assistance, other 3
550 Smoke Detector Battery Change/Install 9
553 Public service 3
554 Assist invalid 2
561 Unauthorized burning 1
611 Dispatched & canceled en route 27
622 No incident found on arrival at dispatch address 10
631 Authorized controlled burning 1
650 Steam, other gas mistaken for smoke, other 1
651 Smoke scare, odor of smoke 4
700 False alarm or false call, other 1
711 Municipal alarm system, malicious false alarm 1
730 System malfunction, other 1
731 Sprinkler activation due to malfunction 2
733 Smoke detector activation due to malfunction 8
735 Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 6
741 Sprinkler activation, no fire - unintentional 1
743 Smoke detector activation, no fire - unintentional 4
744 Detector activation, no fire - unintentional 1
745 Alarm system activation, no fire - unintentional 2
746 Carbon monoxide detector activation, no CO 2
Grand Total 381

243



 

April 2022 Dispatch to Arrival Analysis 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

District
Total Number of 

Calls

Percent of 
Runs per 
District

Number of Calls 
in 5.5 mins or 

Less

Average FD 
Response Time 

Minutes

% in 5.5 min 
or less Goal of 90%

District 1 76 27% 59 0:04:46 78% 90%
District 2 82 29% 60 0:05:13 73% 90%
District 3 42 15% 23 0:05:33 55% 90%
District 4 42 15% 28 0:04:58 67% 90%
District 5 11 4% 6 0:05:28 55% 90%
District 6 4 1% 2 0:06:07 50% 90%
District 7 19 7% 8 0:05:58 42% 90%
District 8 9 3% 2 0:06:24 22% 90%
District 9 0 0% 0 0:00:00 No Calls 90%

Department 285 100% 188 0:05:13 66% 90%

244



 

 

April 2022 Travel Time by District 
 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

District
Total 

Number of 
Calls

Percent of 
Runs per 
District

Number of 
Calls in 4 or 

Less

Average Travel 
Time Minutes

% in 4 min 
or less Goal of 90%

District 1 76 27% 52 0:03:55 68% 90%
District 2 82 29% 58 0:04:13 71% 90%
District 3 42 15% 19 0:04:40 45% 90%
District 4 42 15% 24 0:04:02 57% 90%
District 5 11 4% 4 0:04:21 36% 90%
District 6 4 1% 2 0:05:25 50% 90%
District 7 19 7% 8 0:05:02 42% 90%
District 8 9 3% 2 0:05:52 22% 90%
District 9 0 0% 0 0:00:00 No Calls 90%

Department 285 100% 169 0:04:18 59% 90%

245



Current Month Last Month Same Month Last Year Year To Date Last Year To Date
Total Property Loss: $70,620.00 $160,000.00 $57,350.00 $857,720.00 $214,350.00

Total Content Loss: $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $10,000.00 $845,000.00 $79,600.00

Total Property Pre-Incident Value: $223,620.00 $47,441,840.00 $2,239,740.00 $60,485,410.00 $27,603,129.00

Total Contents Pre-Incident Value $5,000.00 $20,005,000.00 $665,552.00 $21,740,000.00 $11,107,699.60

Total Losses: $75,620.00 $165,000.00 $67,350.00 $1,702,720.00 $75,620.00

Total Value: $228,620.00 $67,446,840.00 $2,905,292.00 $82,225,410.00 $38,710,828.60

Page: 1 of 1

Print Date/Time:
Login ID:

Total Dollar Losses
April 2022

05/10/2022 17:19
rck\dgang

Rockwall Fire Department
ORI Number: TX504    

AllAreas:
AllIncident Type:AllLayer:

Station: All

246



0
1

3

8

11

7

0

5

10

15

Nov-22 Dec-21 Jan-22 22-Feb March-22 April-22

Inspector Call Outs

45 50 53
69

87
100

7 6 6 7 15 10

0

50

100

150

Nov-22 Dec-21 Jan-22 22-Feb March-22 April-22

Plan Reviews & Permits
Plan Reviews Permits

2

0

3

4

5

2

0

2

4

6

Nov-22 Dec-21 Jan-22 22-Feb March-22 April-22

Fire Investigations

84 83
98

74

117
105

0

50

100

150

Nov-22 Dec-21 Jan-22 22-Feb March-22 April-22

Inspections

Fire Prevention, Education, 
& Investigations Division
Monthly Report
April 2022

247



47%

Monthly Report

Spring Eggstravaganza
2000 Attendees

0 2,000 4,000 6,000 8,000

Program Revenue 

HMCC/Pavilions 

The Center 

Upcoming:

FEB:
MAR:
APR:

 

Family Fun Friday
@ The Harbor

April 2022

% of Resident Accounts 
as of April 2022

Founders Day Festival

Splash Days

Concert By The Lake Series

REVENUE   NUMBERS

248



PARKS   PROJECT   UPDATE - APRIL 2022

Lofland Park Drainage Repairs and
Boulders

Harry Myers Park Bridge
Replacement

OTHER   PROJECTS:
The Harbor Landscape Boulders

KidZone Playground
Replacement 

Gloria Williams Pool Deck
Repairs

249



Rockwall Police Department
Monthly Activity Report

ACTIVITY CURRENT MONTH PREVIOUS MONTH YTD YTD YTD %
APRIL MARCH 2022 2021 CHANGE

Homicide / Manslaughter 0 0 0 0 0.00%

Sexual Assault 1 3 6 9 -33.33%

Robbery 1 1 6 2 200.00%

Aggravated Assault 5 5 13 11 18.18%

Burglary 5 2 13 15 -13.33%

Larceny 71 80 234 210 11.43%

Motor Vehicle Theft 1 3 12 20 -40.00%

TOTAL PART I 84 94 284 267 6.37%

TOTAL PART II 126 131 485 468 3.63%

TOTAL OFFENSES 210 225 769 735 4.63%

FAMILY VIOLENCE 9 8 32 45 -28.89%

D.W.I. 20 11 58 79 -26.58%

FELONY 32 30 97 92 5.43%

MISDEMEANOR 61 59 226 184 22.83%

WARRANT ARREST 8 8 28 26 7.69%

JUVENILE 17 15 39 8 387.50%

TOTAL ARRESTS 118 112 390 310 25.81%

CALLS FOR SERVICE 1860 2025 7473 7876 -5.12%

INJURY 3 7 20 13 53.85%

NON-INJURY 79 67 273 253 7.91%

FATALITY 0 0 0 0 0.00%

TOTAL 82 74 293 266 10.15%

RESIDENT ALARMS 39 49 173 161 7.45%

BUSINESS ALARMS 155 145 590 560 5.36%

TOTAL FALSE ALARMS 0 194 763 721 5.83%

Estimated Lost Hours 0 128.04 503.58 475.86 5.83%

Estimated Cost $0.00 $3,045.80 $11,979.10 $11,319.70 5.83%

Number of Cases
Arrests

Arrest Warrants
Search Warrants

Marijuana (ounces)

0

Seized

April-2022

PART 1 OFFENSES

ARRESTS

DISPATCH

ADDITIONAL STATISTICS

ACCIDENTS

FALSE ALARMS               

ROCKWALL NARCOTICS UNIT

5
4

0

1

250



Rockwall Police Department
Dispatch and Response Times

Average Response Time
Priority 1 Number of Calls 140
Call to Dispatch 0:00:35
Call to Arrival 0:05:47
     % over 7 minutes 25%

Average Response Time
Priority 2 Number of Calls 594
Call to Dispatch 0:02:29
Call to Arrival 0:09:19
     % over 7 minutes 24%

Average Response Time
Priority 3 Number of Calls 68
Call to Dispatch 0:02:57  
Call to Arrival 0:09:39
     % over 7 minutes 49%

Average dispatch response time goals are as follows:
Priority 1: 1 Minute
Priority 2: 1 Minute, 30 Seconds
Priority 3: 3 Minutes

April 2022

Police Department

251



General Fund TIF
Sales Tax Sales Tax

Apr-19 1,293,524      20,077         
May-19 1,679,076      24,582         
Jun-19 1,420,483      31,523         
Jul-19 1,467,376      28,951         

Aug-19 1,810,970      29,022         
Sep-19 1,478,622      31,577         
Oct-19 1,565,868      24,818         
Nov-19 1,730,541      21,787         
Dec-19 1,547,746      23,781         
Jan-20 1,365,040      26,330         
Feb-20 2,273,520      27,472         
Mar-20 1,458,193      19,955         
Apr-20 1,292,639      15,829         

May-20 1,605,986      17,538         
Jun-20 1,345,598      5,881            
Jul-20 1,376,026      13,529         

Aug-20 1,979,539      17,706         
Sep-20 1,573,352      12,179         
Oct-20 1,558,570      14,888         
Nov-20 1,989,955      15,299         
Dec-20 1,634,280      14,994         
Jan-21 1,718,364      13,341         
Feb-21 2,244,778      14,935         
Mar-21 1,521,031      12,738         
Apr-21 1,952,165      10,954         

May-21 2,651,412      18,252         
Jun-21 2,080,645      27,773         
Jul-21 1,877,982      22,940         

Aug-21 1,930,521      24,860         
Sep-21 1,882,276      27,803         
Oct-21 1,860,016      19,744         
Nov-21 2,317,862      21,385         
Dec-21 1,963,345      23,464         
Jan-22 2,040,002      20,495         
Feb-22 2,664,185      23,976         
Mar-22 1,786,902      21,605         

Notes:

75% of TIF sales tax (city share) is pledged to the TIF

75% of total sales tax collected is deposited to the General Fund each month

Comptroller tracks sales tax generated in the TIF and reports it monthly 

Sales Tax Collections - Rolling 36 Months

 -

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

 3,000,000

OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP

General Fund Sales Tax

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

 5,000

 15,000

 25,000

 35,000

 45,000

OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP

TIF Sales Tax

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

252



Total Gallons Daily Average Maximum Day
Feb-20 196,611,134            6,779,695              7,579,604               
Mar-20 197,281,791            6,363,929              8,569,168               
Apr-20 226,508,245            7,550,275              10,263,848            

May-20 317,650,425            10,246,788            13,193,218            
Jun-20 455,022,410            15,167,411            20,100,668            
Jul-20 511,667,880            16,505,415            20,073,454            

Aug-20 590,693,550            19,054,630            22,031,522            
Sep-20 363,112,688            12,103,756            14,870,959            
Oct-20 397,801,934            12,832,320            15,751,199            
Nov-20 295,091,494            9,836,383              11,452,738            
Dec-20 179,571,968            7,371,629              8,653,526               
Jan-21 157,800,928            6,718,182              7,179,987               
Feb-21 199,821,312            8,288,901              17,044,360            
Mar-21 230,130,315            7,423,560              9,739,996               
Apr-21 289,545,756            9,651,525              12,683,656            

May-21 247,421,005            7,981,324              10,400,411            
Jun-21 342,904,230            11,430,141            16,988,604            
Jul-21 446,687,809            14,409,284            17,918,524            

Aug-21 486,443,590            15,691,730            18,928,160            
Sep-21 377,898,464            17,173,544            19,016,086            
Oct-21 293,280,384            11,880,576            15,338,545            
Nov-21 280,398,508            9,346,618              12,584,820            
Dec-21 262,730,021            8,475,163              10,313,293            
Jan-22 245,557,172            7,921,199              10,742,941            
Feb-22 211,955,941            7,569,855              10,394,759            
Mar-22 256,035,618            8,529,214              10,544,988            
Apr-22 281,707,217            9,390,241              11,718,730            

Source: SCADA Monthly Reports generated at the Water Pump Stations

Monthly Water Consumption - Rolling 27 Months

 100,000,000
 200,000,000
 300,000,000
 400,000,000
 500,000,000
 600,000,000

Fe
b-

20

Ap
r-

20

Ju
n-

20

Au
g-

20

O
ct

-2
0

De
c-

20

Fe
b-

21

Ap
r-

21

Ju
n-

21

Au
g-

21

O
ct

-2
1

De
c-

21

Fe
b-

22

Ap
r-

22

Total Gallons per Month

Total Gallons

 2,000,000
 7,000,000

 12,000,000
 17,000,000
 22,000,000
 27,000,000

Fe
b-

20

Ap
r-

20

Ju
n-

20

Au
g-

20

O
ct

-2
0

De
c-

20

Fe
b-

21

Ap
r-

21

Ju
n-

21

Au
g-

21

O
ct

-2
1

De
c-

21

Fe
b-

22

Ap
r-

22

Average and Max Day

Daily Average Maximum Day

253


	06/06/22 Regular CC Mtg
	 Presentation of Life-Saving Awards - Rockwall Police Department
Officer Kristopher Adair - Life Saving Award
Officer Zachary Stimson - Life Saving Award
	 Synopsis on Life Saving Awards - Rockwall Police Department

	 Presentation of Life-Saving Awards - Rockwall Fire Department
Crew members of Engine 02 "A"
Crew members of Engine 03 "A"
Crew members of Ladder 02 "A"
	 Engine 02 "A" Lifesaving Award
	 Engine 03 "A" Lifesaving Award
	 Ladder 02 "A" Lifesaving Award

	  Consider approval of the minutes from the May 16, 2022, regular City Council meeting, and take any action necessary. 
	 May 16 cc mtg mins

	 Consider an ordinance granting a franchise agreement to Atmos Energy Corporation, Mid-Tex Division to provide natural gas service in the City of Rockwall, and take any action necessary. (2nd reading)
	 Ordinance 2nd Reading

	 Z2022-016 - Consider a request by John and Rita Canavan for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Change from a Single-Family Estate 4.0 (SFE-4.0) District to a Single-Family 1 (SF-1) District for a five (5) acre tract of land identified as Lot 5 of the Mustang Acres  Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family Estate 4.0 (SFE-4.0) District, addressed as 714 Clem Road, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).
	 Ordinance 2nd Reading

	 Z2022-017 - Consider a request by Kim Lemmond of Dallas Towboys for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a Towing and Impound Yard on a 1.8040-acre tract of land identified as Tract 2-8 of the J. R. Johnson Survey, Abstract No. 128, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Heavy Commercial (HC) District, addressed as 227 National Drive, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).
	 Ordinance 2nd Reading

	 Z2022-018 - Consider a request by Carlos and Crystal Solis for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for an Accessory Building on a 3.02-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 7R of the Lofland Estates No. 2 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family Estate 2.0 (SFE-2.0) District, addressed as 2914 FM-549, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).
	 Ordinance 2nd Reading

	 Z2022-019 - Consider a request by Fred Gans of CDC Equities, LLC for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Change from an Agricultural (AG) District and Commercial (C) District to a Planned Development District for limited Commercial (C) District land uses on a 13.55-acre tract of land identified as Lots 8R, 9R & 10 of the Rainbow Acres Subdivision, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District and Commercial (C) District, addressed as 5879, 5917 & 5981 FM-3097 [Horizon Road], and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).
	 Ordinance 2nd Reading

	 Z2022-020 - Consider a request by Hellen Byrd on behalf of Donald Valk for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Change from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Light Industrial (LI) District for a 14.78-acre tract of land identified as Tracts 8 & 8-1 of the J. H. Bailey Survey, Abstract No. 34, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, situated within the SH-276 Overlay (SH-276 OV) District, addressed as 4649 SH-276, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).
	 Ordinance 2nd Reading

	 Z2022-021 - Consider a request by Ruben Chapa for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision for the purpose of constructing a single-family home on a 0.1214-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 22, Block B, Chandler's Landing, Phase 4 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 8 (PD-8) for single-family residential land uses, addressed as 5405 Ranger Drive, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).
	 Ordinance 2nd Reading

	 P2022-023 - Consider a request by Alison Winget of Links Construction on behalf of Phil Wagner of the Rockwall Economic Development Corporation (REDC) for the approval of a Replat for Lots 5, 6 & 7, Block B, Rockwall Technology Park Addition being a 7.377-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 4, Block B, Rockwall Technology Park Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial (LI) District, situated within the SH-276 Overlay (SH-276 OV) District, located at the northwest corner of the intersection of SH-276 and Innovation Drive, and take any action necessary.
	 Case Memo
	 Development Application
	 Location Map
	 Replat

	 P2022-024 - Consider a request by Bart Carroll of Carroll Consulting Group, Inc. on behalf of Robbie Hale of Shepherd Place Homes, Inc. the approval of a Replat for Lot 2, Block L, Lake Rockwall Estates East Addition being a 0.4215-acre tract of land identified as Lots 1300 & 1301, Block A, Rockwall Lake Properties Development No. 2 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 75 (PD-75) for Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District land uses, addressed as 116 Nicole Drive, and take any action necessary.
	 Case Memo
	 Development Application
	 Location Map
	 Replat
	 Closure Report

	 P2022-026 - Consider a request by Trey Braswell of Kimley-Horn on behalf of Jarrod Yates of PS LPT Properties Investors for the approval of a Replat for Lot 2, Block 1, Valk Rockwall Addition being a 4.264-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 2, Block 1, Valk Rockwall Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, addressed as 4028 N. Goliad Street [SH-205], and take any action necessary.
	 Case Memo
	 Development Application
	 Location Map
	 Replat
	 Closure Report

	 Consider a resolution suspending the June 17, 2022 effective date of Oncor Electric Delivery Company's requested rate change, approving cooperation with the Steering Committee of Cities served by Oncor to evaluate the filing, to negotiate with Oncor on the City's behalf, and take any action necessary.

	 Oncor Suspension Resolution

	 Consider approval of a water relocation located at 105 South Hampton Drive in the amount of $62,121.00 performed by Double R Utilities, Inc., to be funded out of the Water and Sewer Fund, Wastewater Operations Budget, and take any action necessary.
	 Consider approval of the construction contract for IH-30 Water Line Crossings Project and authorize the City Manager to execute a construction contract with Wilson Contractor Services, LLC, in the amount of $1,140,072.61, and take any action necessary.
	 Map
	 Engineer's Letter
	 Bid Tabulation

	 Consider awarding a bid to C & M Steel for the construction of new Equipment Covers at the Service Center for $224,422.92, approve additional funds of $30,000 from General Fund Reserves and authorize the City Manager to execute a contract for this job and take any action necessary.
	 Consider approval of an emergency repair of the sanitary sewer lift station located at 905 Williams Street (State Highway 66) in the amount of $83,750.00 performed by ConNanCo, LLC to be funded out of the Water and Sewer Fund, Wastewater Operations Budget, and take any action necessary.
	 Consider approval of a recommendation from the Hotel Occupancy Tax (HOT) Subcommittee regarding funding for the Ski Nautique's Annual event ($12,715) and the Oasis Pickleball Tournament ($20,500), and take any action necessary.
	 Memo
	 Application
	 Application Oasis

	 Appointment with Municipal Court Judge, Matthew Scott to hear briefing on Rockwall Municipal Court's Annual Report, and take any action necessary.
	 Municipal Court Annual Report
	 Photos_Municipal Court

	 H2022-004 - Discuss and consider a request by Tim Herriage appealing a decision by the Historic Preservation Advisory Board (HPAB) concerning the denial of a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for a High Contributing Property being a 0.7096-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 1-R, Block 2, Buttgen Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District, situated within the Old Town Rockwall (OTR) Historic District, addressed as 501 Kernodle Street, and take any action necessary.
	 Memorandum
	 Applicant's Appeal Letter
	 HPAB Packet from 05.19.2022

	 Discuss and consider authorizing the City Manager to execute agreements with Blackland Water Supply Corporation, including (1) Second Amendment to existing Water Supply Agreement; (2) Transfer Agreement regarding services N. of IH-30; and (3) Transfer & Collection Agreement regarding services S. of IH-30, and take any action necessary.
	 Memo
	 Second Amendment
	 Transfer Airport
	 Transfer Eastern

	 Discuss and consider filling a vacancy on the city's Park Board for a partial term through August of 2023, and take any action necessary.
	 Krueger App

	 Building Inspections Department Monthly Report - April 2022
	 B.I. Monthly Report

	 Fire Department Monthly Report - April 2022
	 Rockwall Fire Department April 2022 Monthly Report

	 Parks & Rec. Department Monthly Report - April 2022
	 Police Department Monthly Report - April 2022
	 Police Department Monthly Report - April 2022

	  Sales Tax Historical Comparison 
	 Report

	  Water Consumption Historical Statistics 
	 Report




